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Values at Veeda Clinical Research Limited

Honesty and Integrity

As one of the core values of Veeda, honesty and
integrity are embedded into our system, people
and processes to ensure transparency
throughout.

Humility

At Veeda we do not view ourselves as being
better than others, we are open and curious to
learn from anyone and anywhere and always
seek and provide honest feedback. We never
underestimate our competition which makes us
flexible and hungry for improvement.

Openness

At Veeda, the project management team and
personnel of various departments at various
levels in the hierarchy are encouraged to openly
express any constructive ideas towards
increasing the Operational efficiency in a
Project / systems in general.

Excellence

We encourage our employees to achieve all-
round excellence. For the same, as a part of our
Employee Appreciation, various awards like -
"Excellence Award, Deming Quality Award,
Innovation award" etc., are given to the
em’'ployees by the Management of Veeda,
during the Annual Function.

v" Innovation

We are known for our innovative approaches in
Clinical Research. Our Clinical Research
Department is renowned amongst the
Pharmaceutical fraternity for its clinical method
development skills expressed during Glucose
clamp studies, Experimental Medicine Studies
etc., performed in-house. On the other hand,
Veeda Bioanalytical Department has proven
itself by having developed approximately 650
Generic Bioanalytical methods including 46
NCE Bioanalytical methods in-house.
Developing  bioanalytical — methods  for
conducting Immunogenicity studies, Complex
analysis for Vitamins, Steroids and Hormones,
and Elemental Bioanalysis are few more
examples of our innovative skills.

Nurturing Individual Growth

We lay a firm emphasis on nurturing individual
growth and therefore we encourage our
employees to pursue higher education while
continuing to work with Veeda. There are many
examples of employees pursuing post-graduate
and doctoral courses within Veeda across
various work streams.
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Veeda as....

A Full-Service Independent Global
CRO:

Veeda Clinical Research Ltd. derives its
name from the Sanskrit word ‘Veda’,
meaning knowledge or wisdom.

We are one of the largest Independent
CROs in India with a scientific edge, better
foresight for Early to Late phase clinical
trials & an objective of becoming a catalyst
for enhanced drug developments to
facilitate better patient treatments.

With our 16 years of vast experience, we
are serving our global clientele
predominantly across Asia, Europe, USA &
India. Our team at Veeda has more than 700
dedicated professionals to deliver Quality
Clinical Research solutions coupled with
robust scientific expertise & excellent
regulatory knowledge to help
pharmaceutical companies deliver life-
changing therapies.

A Reliable Clinical Research Partner to
the Pharma Fraternity:

The success of a clinical trial is driven by
the strategic selection of a reliable CRO.
Our vastly experienced team of highly
qualified professionals, a comprehensive
portfolio of clinical research services to
support diverse

requirements and a robust Quality
Management System guided and nurtured
by our quality culture makes us a partner of
choice for some of the leading
pharmaceutical companies in the world.

Advancing Human Life with Scientific
Excellence & Constant Innovation:

Medical science is on a constant quest to
develop Dbetter and more effective
treatments, prevent diseases and provide
accurate cure to human life. We aim at
being a catalyst in this quest of advancing
medical science forward.

We strongly believe in scientific excellence
through teamwork and this has helped us
rise to become one of the most competent
partner for the (Bio) pharmaceutical
companies across the globe.

Veeda constantly strives to be a partner for
the pharmaceutical world by bridging the
gap of bringing a therapy from Lab to Shelf
and thereby contributing towards achieving
the human ambition of having a longer,
healthier and happier life.



VISION & MISSION:

Veeda Clinical Research Limited is one of the
largest  independent  Clinical ~ Research
Organization established in India in the year
2004 with a vision of creating a CRO with an in-

depth scientific know-how, technical edge and

&

better foresight for critical product development

programs  of  innovative  global  Bio

(pharmaceutical) companies

VISION: -

In an industry where innovation is increasingly multifaceted and collaborative, we aspire to be the
research partner of choice for innovative (bio)pharmaceutical companies worldwide for their critical

product development programs.
MISSION: -

To be the pre-eminent independent Indian contract research organisation, with global execution
capabilities, distinguished by the breadth of our services and by excellence in the quality of our:

Scientific and regulatory knowledge; Research design, execution and insights; and Client centricity.
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Regulatory Credentials

e 80 successful regulatory audits till date
e 08 successful regulatory audits in last 24 months



Veeda’s broad range of
Specialized Services

Pre-Clinical Research and Development:

Veeda Clinical Research, has set foot in the
Preclinical Ecosystem by acquiring a Majority
stake in Bioneeds (a reputed Preclinical CRO
with more than 12 years of experience). Veeda
will now provide full service as well as
functional service in all the stages of drug
development to support Biotech and
Pharmaceutical companies.

With the acquisition of Bioneeds, Veeda
Clinical Research has now the capability to
support (bio) pharmaceutical companies with
their preclinical studies towards IND and NDA
submission of both oncology and non-oncology
NCE/NME. The acquisition marks a significant
moment in Veeda CR’s history as it accelerates
Veeda’s transformation journey and its
commitment to be a 360 degree service
provider in innovation and delivery of novel
drugs.

A Leading Preclinical Contract Research
Organization:

e One stop solution for services related to
Preclinical studies in drug development

e Rich Experience in conducting preclinical
studies

e GLP certified test facility and Accredited by
the AAALAC International (the Association
for

e Assessment and  Accreditation  of
Laboratory Animal Care International)

e Product Characterization- HPLC (ProA, RP,
SE, CE), LC-MS (ORBITRAP)-Intact mass,
subunit analysis, peptide mapping, Disulfide
bond locations, glycan analysis Cell/ELISA
based assays, BIACORE based assays.

e Rich experience in Medicinal Chemistry,
Custom Synthesis, process R&D and scale-

up

Drug Chemistry & Preclinical Services:

e Exploratory  Studies: Dose limiting
toxicology studies & Dose escalation
toxicology studies.

e IND Enabling Safety studies across
mammalian toxicology, genetic toxicology,
DMPK, and bio-analysis.

e Impurity Qualification Studies (profiling,
isolation, characterization, certification and
evaluation)

e Toxicokinetic Analysis

e Preclinical Bioanalytical Services (Method
Development & Validation)

e Immunogenicity Testing

e Bioassays (invitro/invivo)

e Cell Based potency & Functional Assays

e Portfolio of ADMET assays for
NDA/ANDA enabling safety evaluations

e Polyclonal and Monoclonal Antibody
Development and Purification

e Product Characterization and Product
release testing for Biopharmaceuticals

¢ In vitro studies that are alternative to In vivo
studies

e Synthesis of potential metabolites &
impurities for initial studies



Bioavailability & Bioequivalence:

Bioequivalence is the absence of a significant
difference in the rate and extent of absorption
of the active ingredient that reaches the
systemic circulation (bioavailability). If
products have equivalent bioavailability, it is
considered they will have the same clinical
effects. Bioequivalence studies follow well-
defined procedures and are performed:

e In arandomised, cross-over design

e Where all subjects receive both test
medicines separated by a washout period
(inter-subject variability is eliminated)

e To measure the rate and extent of
absorption of the active ingredient in
plasma

e To compare the plasma concentration time
curves

BA/BE Studies in Healthy Volunteers:

20 different dosage forms

e Solid Oral Formulations (Tablets
(Immediate Release & Modified Release
e.g. ER, DR, SR), Capsules, Soft Gels, and
Sprinkles etc.)

e  Parenteral Formulations

e Topical Transdermal products (Patches,

Cream, Ointments, Solutions)

Inhalation

Nasal and Oral Sprays

Rectal Products (Suppository & Foam)

Vaginal Products (Tablet, Cream, Gel)

Long Acting Injectable

Medical Writing Services:

We have In-house experienced and highly
trained  medical  writing  professionals
responsible for preparing the study documents
in line applicable regulatory guidance and with
the sponsor’s requirements.

Feasibility assessment
Protocol and it’s amendments
Informed Consent Documents
Case Report Form
Investigator’s brochure
Patient Diary

Clinical Study Reports



Project Management Services:

Veeda Clinical Research Pvt Ltd, offers full
service of managing the Clinical or Bio-
equivalence studies from feasibility evaluation
to clinical study report submission as per the
protocol prescribed by the regulatory bodies
and the protocol designed. Constant
communication flow with sponsor, managing
execution of pilot and pivotal bioequivalence
studies including the preparation of product
feasibility, =~ Document finalization and
regulatory services, interpreting
pharmacokinetic & statistical bioequivalence
results to clinical study report submission is a
long and complex process. We have In-house
experienced and highly trained project
managers act as single point contact between
Sponsor and Veeda. They play the lead role in
planning, monitoring, controlling and closing
projects.

Types of Studies

e Conducted 3400+ Bioavailability &
Bioequivalence Studies.

e Experience of handling FTF&time-sensitive
studies

e Performed studies for injectable, rectal
suppositories, Urine PK studies, Oral DDS,
Local applications, Inhalations, etc

e Short to Long residency Studies, Oral

Inhalation - Pulmonary deposition &
Therapeutic Equivalence Study,
Pharmacokinetic interaction studies,

Intravenous Anesthetic drug BE study (e.g.
Propofol)&Glucose Clamp studies

e Dose-Proportionality Studies&First-in-
Human Studies (Phase-I trials)

Complex Studies (Glucose Clamp/
Inhalation/ Dermatology/ Suppository)

Glucose clamp:

Veeda has an extensive experience in glucose
clamp studies, a technique widely used to find
novel ways of treating metabolic disorders such
as diabetes, obesity, and fatty liver studies. The
large number of glucose clamp studies carried
out is testimony to the fact that Veeda has the
clinical experience and professional expertise,
thereby making us trusted partners for a number
of national and international clients. Veeda’s
commitment to data quality without
jeopardizing participant well-being and safety
is proof of the organization’s commitment to
transparency, safety, and ethical conduct of
clinical trials.



Inhalation:

Inhalation products belong to topical drug
delivery systems. They are delivered through
pulmonary route. These studies require
experienced staff, necessary infrastructure and
extensive training to volunteers for standardize
the dosing procedure. We understand your
need. Veeda’s state of the art infrastructure and
stable record of accomplishment with respect to
regulatory compliance, quality, and ethics
makes it a go-to CRO for perfect handling and
execution of inhalation studies.

Suppository:

Veeda has an experience of conducting multiple
studies with suppositories. Database of
compliant volunteers with experience of

previous participation in same type of studies.
Trained and experienced staff with procedures
to conduct dosing procedures.Clinics and
pharmacy with controlled temperature and
humidity to facilitate IMP handling.

Dermatology:

Veeda has an experience of conducting
Transdermal Patch Studies, Bioequivalence
(BE) with pharmacokinetic (PK) endpoints and
adhesion study, skin irritation and sensitization
study (Proof of Procedure). A proof of
procedure study for evaluation of skin irritation
parameters, to identify the study challenges and
also to evaluate cumulative skin irritation
potential of test products (Control solutions)

under occlusive patch conditions in healthy
adult human subjects.

BA/BE Studies in Patients

Amalgamation of expertise and experience in
Bioequivalence studies, Veeda provides best-
in-class services to conduct Patient based
Bioequivalence studies for various 505 B2 and
complex generic products for our drug
development clients. We have liaison with
major hospitals and investigators’ to conduct
patient PK studies and Clinical end point
studies. We have colossal experience of
conducting studies in all the major therapeutic
areas, including Oncology, Psychiatry,
Ophthalmology, Dermatology etc.



Pharmacokinetics (PK) Studies:

With our wide range of services, we provide
project planning to build quality into PK studies
from the start — with risk mitigating strategies,
efficient and effective time and budget
planning, and optimizing the performance.
Team has experience working with Risk
Management Plan,Safety Management
Plan,QA  Audit Plan, IMP Plan,Data
Management Plan,Edit check Plan,Monitoring
Plan, Project Management Plan,PK sample
management plan. The team 1is trained
thoroughly to execute all these plans. Most
importantly, the project managers are always
prepared with a risk mitigation plan for the
unforeseen conditions that may occur during a
PK study.

Clinical end point studies:

Our clinical end point studies monitoring
services include study procedure development,
source document review, patient eligibility
confirmation, patient compliance tracking,
supply inventory management, adverse events
reporting, regulatory compliance monitoring
and regulatory documentation maintenance.
Project Managers provide solution-focused
project management across our studies. They
are a single point of contact, expertise in
Therapeutic Equivalence studies. They provide
meaningful insight into your recruitment
challenges, evaluate the impact of competitive
trials, and optimize patient access and retention.
They provide accountability and transparency

with a proven track record of successful
delivery. Timelines and risks are managed
proactively, applying knowledge from past
experiences to ensure efficient study
management.

We have vast database of Investigators and site
associations to ensure rapid identification of
potential investigators and their patient
populations to help ensure enrolment goals are
met. We also train investigators and site team
on protocol requirements, Industry best
practices and technology tools, such as
electronic data capture.
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BOARD’S REPORT

To,

THE MEMBERS,

VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED

(Formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited)

Your Directors take immense pleasure in presenting the 17" Annual Report on the business and operations
of Veeda Clinical Research Limited (“the Company”) (Formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private
Limited) together with the audited annual financial accounts showing financial position of the Company
along with the summary of the standalone & consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March,
2021.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE COMPANY

During the year under review, the revenue from operations (standalone) increased by 29.44% from X1512.74
million to 1958.14 million. The financial summary of standalone and consolidated financial statements is
as below:

2 in million

PARTICULARS STANDLONE CONSOLIDATED

2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

Revenue of Operations 1,958.14 1,512.74 1,958.14 1,512.74

Other Income 385.69 24.07 385.69 24.07

EBITDA 1052.84 217.95 1049.62 217.95

Interest and Financial 48.05 50.94 48.05 50.94

charges

Depreciation 149.45 158.04 149.45 158.04

Profit/(Loss) before 855.34 8.97 852.12 8.97

taxes

Current Tax 228.80 15.30 228.80 15.30

Deferred Tax (6.35) (5.90) (6.35) (5.90)

Profit / (Loss) for the 632.89 (0.43) 629.67 (0.43)

Year

COVID-19

The world has been continuously witnessing an unprecedented crisis as a result of Covid-19. In today’s
trying times for the world in general and our nation in particular, our focus is on ensuring the safety of our
employees and all other stakeholders while we continue to work both on wellness and prevention of the
pandemic. The healthy lives and protecting livelihood both are of utmost importance to us.

Your company have senior qualified and experienced management personnel to monitor the events
happening in the external environment and take suitable preventive and corrective measures to ensure
continued safety of employees.

We are happy to mention that we have been doing whatever possible for the country in terms of fight against
Covid-19.

We have taken several steps aimed at ensuring the safety, which include work from home, social distancing
in the office premises, sanitization of our office premises; plant locations and company vehicles, thermal
screening for employees, providing sanitizers, masks etc. to employees. Apart from following all protocols




and guidelines issued by global health organizations like WHO for Covid-19, Government of India and
Government of Gujarat, we have come out with our own advisory for the safety of our employees.

RESERVES

The Company has 31339.27 million (on standalone basis) as a reserve as at the end of Financial Year.

MAJOR EVENT OCCURRED DURING THE YEAR

A. The Company has acquired 30% equity stake of M/s. Bioneeds India Private Limited in financial year
under review which resulted in to making M/s. Bioneeds India Private Limited as the associate company.
Further, the Company has also given Inter corporate loan to M/s. Bioneeds India Private Limited of

%233.30 million.

B. The Company had raised 2179.93 million through private placement in the financial year under review
(HNI-1).

Date of Board Resolution 015 March, 2021
Date of Shareholder Resolution 02" March, 2021
No. of shares issued 14,033 shares
No. of shareholders to whom the shares was issued | 7 shareholders
Face value of shares Fully Paid up Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each
Price per share % 12,822/- per share
Total amount raised through Private Placement % 179.93 million
DIVIDEND

With a view to conserve resources for the future growth of the company, the directors do not recommend
dividend on equity shares for the year ended on 31* March, 2021.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S WORKING DURING THE YEAR / STATE OF
COMPANY’S AFFAIR

The Company has so far conducted and completed about 276 studies, representing most of the regulatory
jurisdictions.

In continuation of our regulatory track record, we had successfully completed Regulatory Inspections in this
financial year by CDSCO. Inspections got closed and also received the approval for all the eligible sites.
There are no observations given by any Regulatory Authority.

In addition to the above, we have a diverse clientele with a maximum share of 7.35% for the largest client
and having about 112 active clienteles in the year under consideration.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
There is no change in nature of business of the Company as compared to last financial year.
DISCLOSURE ON DOWNSTREAM INVESTMENT

The shareholders vide special resolution in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of Company approved
acquisition of 50.1 % shareholding of M/s. Bioneeds India Private Limited.

M/s. Bioneeds is a Leading Preclinical Contract Research Organization (CRO) providing Integrated
Discovery, Development & Regulatory Services to Pharmaceutical, Biopharmaceutical, Agrochemical,
Industrial Chemical, Herbal, Nutraceutical & Medical Device companies. Bioneeds has a state of the art
facility with 200,000 sq ft built-up area in 5-acre campus in the serene outskirts of Bangalore. Bioneeds’




Synthetic Chemistry and Biopharma laboratories are housed in our Peenya facility spanning about 50,000
sq.ft. area.

The company has acquired 50.1% stake of M/s. Bioneeds India Private Limited in two tranches as mentioned
below;

1% Tranche:

After taking approval of the Board of Directors through Board Resolution on 1* March, 2021 and
shareholder approvals in Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) dated 2" March, 2021 for Downstream
Investments, company acquired 30% stake of M/s. Bioneeds India Private Limited i.e 21,42,883 equity
shares as on 19" March, 2021.

2" Tranche:

After taking approval of the Board of Directors through Board Resolution on 22nd May, 2021 and
shareholder approvals in Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) dated 25th May, 2021 for Downstream
Investments, company acquired 20.1% stake of M/s. Bioneeds India Private Limited i.e. 14,35,700 equity
shares as on 20th July, 2021.

In both the tranches, the company had also obtained a Certificate for Downstream Investment from Chartered
Accountant certifying that;

A) The company has obtained necessary approvals of Board as well as Shareholders for such downstream
investment;

B) Downstream investments made within foreign equity levels permitted;

C) All the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant FEMA regulations have been complied
with;

D) Investments made by the company within the caps as specified in the FDI policy;

E) Theinvestment is in compliance with Foreign Exchange Management (Mode of Payment and Reporting
of Non-Debt Instruments) Regulations, 2019 and Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or issue of
security by a person resident outside India) Regulations, 2017;

F) The Investment Agreement/ Shareholder Agreement between the investor and the investee company is
in compliance with the provisions of Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or issue of security by
a person resident outside India) Regulations, 2017, as amended from time to time.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN MARCH 31, 2021 AND THE DATE OF
THE REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments which have direct or indirect impact on financial position
of the company have occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of report, except as stated
below;

The company has been converted from Private Limited to Public Limited vide fresh certificate of
incorporation issued by Registrar of Companies, Gujarat dated 30™ June, 2021.

Further the company has acquired additional 20.1% shares of M/s. Bioneeds India Private Limited and
thereby making it a subsidiary company of Veeda Clinical Research Limited.

The following changes in the share capital has been made after the balance sheet date;

1) The company has made private placement offer to the identified investor (HNI-2)




Date of Board Resolution

22" May, 2021

Date of Shareholder Resolution

25" May, 2021

No. of shares issued

76,420 shares

No. of shareholders to whom the shares was issued 14 shareholders

Face value of shares

Fully Paid up Equity Shares of X 10/- each

Price per share

% 12,822/- per share

Total amount raised through Private Placement

%979.85 million

2) The company has increased its Authorized share Capital

Authorized Share Capital before increase

% 70 million

Authorized Share Capital after increase

% 80 million

Date of Special Resolution approving increase in authorized share capital 29% June, 2021

into equity shares.

3) The company has converted its Compulsorily Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares Class — A

Date of conversion (shareholder’s approval)

29 June, 2021

Class of Shares

Compulsorily Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares —
A (CCPS-A)

Converted into

Fully paid — up equity shares

Total no. of Sharcholders 3
No. of Preference Shares 3,52,29,780 shares
Ratio of Conversion 375:1

No. of equity shares before conversion

3,59,07,396 shares

No. of equity shares after conversion

7,71,562 shares

4) The company has sub-divided its equity shares of face value of *10/- each into the equity shares of

the face value of %2/- each.

Face value before sub-division

10

Face value after sub-division

2

Record date

29 June, 2021

Total No. of Equity Shares before sub-division

7,71,562 shares

Total No. of Equity Shares after sub-division

38,57,810 shares

5) The company has issued Bonus to each of its equity shareholders in the ratio of 11:1 i.e. eleven
shares to the equity shareholders for every one share held by them.

Record date

29" June, 2021

Ratio

11:1

Total No. of equity shares before bonus

38,57,810 shares

Total shares issued as a bonus

4,24,35,910 shares

Total No. of equity shares after bonus

4,62,93,720 shares

6) Directors appointed after 31% March, 2021and up to the date of the Report;

Sr. Name Designation

No.

1 Mr. Nitin Deshmukh Independent Non-Executive Director
2 Mr. Rakesh Bhartia Independent Non-Executive Director
3 Dr. Kavita Singh Independent Non-Executive Director
4 Ms. Jeanne Hecht Independent Non-Executive Director
5 Mr. S. N. Vinaya Babu Non-Executive Director




DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

No significant and material orders have been passed by any Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which have
influence to the going concern status and company’s operation in future.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal control systems in place and has reasonable assurance on authorizing,
recording and reporting transactions of its operations in all material respects and in providing protection and
safeguard against misuse or loss of assets of the Company. The Company has in place, well documented
procedures covering critical financial and operational functions commensurate with the size and
complexities of the organization. Some of the salient features of the internal control system in place are: -

1. Adherence to applicable Accounting Standards and Policies.

2. Preparation of annual budget for operation and service functions and monitoring the same with actual
performance at regular intervals.

3. Ensuring that assets are properly recorded and procedures have been put in place to safeguard against
any loss or unauthorized use or disposal.

In addition, the Company uses the services of an external audit firm (acting as Internal Audit) to periodically
review various aspects of the internal control system to ensure that such controls are operating in the way
expected and whether any modification is required.

The Company’s internal financial controls are deployed through an internally evolved framework that
addresses material risks in the Company’s operations and financial reporting objectives, through a
combination of Entity Level Controls (including Enterprise Risk Management, Legal Compliance
Framework and Anti-fraud Mechanisms such as an Ethics Framework, Code of Conduct, Whistle Blower
Policy, Anti Money Laundering Policy, Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy, etc.), Process Controls,
Information Technology based controls, period end financial reporting and closing controls and Internal
Audit.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

During the year there were no amount required to transfer into Investors Education Protection Fund.

FRAUD REPORTING BY AUDITOR

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board.

PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE

There are no such proceedings or appeals pending under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of
2016) during the year and at the end of the financial year even up to the date of this report.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN
FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

No such instance of One-time settlement or valuation was done while taking or discharging loan from the
Banks/ Financial institutions occurred during the year.




STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY,
EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE
YEAR

The Board is of the opinion that all the independent directors appointed in financial year 2021-22 are having
good integrity and possess the requisite expertise and experience (including the proficiency). The
independent directors have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances or situation which exist
or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Based on
the declarations received from the independent directors, the Board has confirmed that they meet the criteria
of independence and that they are independent of the management.

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The company vide joint venture agreement entered into with M/s. Somru Bioscience Inc. based at Canada,
incorporated a joint venture entity named M/s. Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited (IBS) with the
Registrar of Companies, Gujarat. The Company holds 50% shareholding of said Joint Venture Company.
The details are as follows;

1) Joint Venture: Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited

Financial Performance of Joint Venture i.e. M/s. Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited:

% In million

Particulars Year ended 31 March | Year ended 31 March
2021 2020

Total Income - -

Total Expenses (5.75) -

Profit Before Tax (5.75) -

Profit After Tax (5.82) -

As mentioned earlier, the shareholder approved the acquisition of 50.1 % shareholding in M/s. Bioneeds
India Private Limited. During the year under review, the Company has acquired 30% shareholding in first
tranche and thereby making Bioneeds an Associate Company of Veeda.

2) Associate Company: M/s. Bioneeds India Private Limited

Financial Performance of Associate Company i.e. M/s. Bioneeds India Private Limited:

% In million

Particulars Year ended 31 March | Year ended 31 March
2021 2020

Total Income 647.88 668.33

Total Expenses 675.53 692.69

Profit Before Tax (27.65) (24.36)

Profit After Tax (30.30) (42.21)

3) Subsidiary: N.A

The Statement containing the salient features of the financial statement of associate companies/ joint venture
companies is annexed to this report as Annexure A in prescribed form AOC-1.




EMPLOYEES

Veeda continues to maintain its focus on attracting, hiring, training and inducting top Industry talent. On the
hiring front, the Company recruited exceptional talent from pharmacy colleges and trained the fresh talent.
The focus is on optimized training duration, exhaustive coverage of all foundational skills, greater emphasis
and stress on knowledge application, continuous monitoring of trainee performance and exposure to project
environment through real-life Training Lab.

Like every year, Veeda celebrated diversity within the Company and strengthened it further by hosting an
array of activities to propagate fun, bonding and celebration at work.

Veeda, as a Company, constantly enables and encourages the employees to be empowered, happy and
enthusiastic about work. The Company’s total rewards program is based on principles of equality and is
designed to support its culture of high performance and innovation.

DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any Deposits during the year under review.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. SRBC & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of the Company retire at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company. Your directors proposes to re-appoint them as auditors of the
company who shall hold the office till the conclusion of next AGM.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

Auditors’ Report for the current financial year does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark or disclaimer which require any clarification / explanation.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Extract of the annual return of the Company in Form No. MGT-9 is annexed to this report as Annexure B.
The copy of annual return of the company is placed on the website of the company at www.veedacr.com

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. Conservation of Energy

The company is engaged in testing of various drug / medicines and Human Clinical Trials. The different
types of tests are carried out depending on the nature of material and quality of standards such sas IP, USP,
BP, etc. Testing is done using different testing equipments. Most of the tests equipments are microprocessor
based and draw only requisite power. Power is drawn by different equipments from a common source in the
laboratories.

Improvement in energy efficiency is a continuous process and is given a high priority. Efforts have also been
made to identify potential energy saving opportunities in all our operations, endeavors to optimize the
process parameters and to modernize and upgrade the technology and equipment with the objective of
increasing Energy Productivity.

Designed and installed the power distribution system to utilize the power at optimum level of requirement.
As a result the energy consumption is reduced to the lowest minimum requirement.




B. Technology Absorption
The tests / studies are carried out as per the prescribed national / international standards and regulations. The

Company undertakes clinical research under international guidelines such as DCGI, USFDA, ICH ANVISA,
MHRA etc.

In the same way, the technology involved in testing is only testing of products as per the prescribed standard
procedure / manuals. Testing technology is absorbed to the extent permitted by the appropriate guidelines.

C. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo

Foreign Exchange earned : % 1402.39 million
Foreign Exchange used : % 27.42 million

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

As required under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have constituted a CSR
Committee. The primary function of the committee is to assist the Board of Directors in formulating a
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy and review its implementation and progress from time to time.

Company is required to comply with Corporate Social Responsibility in this financial year. For that purpose,
company has spent an amount of ¥8.41 million towards the specified purpose. The Annual Report on
Corporate Social Responsibility activities is annexed herewith as “Annexure D”.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A) CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, there are following changes in Directors;

Sr. No. Name of Director Activity undertaken Date of Activity Changed Designation
1 Ajay Tandon Change in Designation 25 May 2020 Managing Director
. Appointment 25 May 2020 Additional Director
2 Manu Sahni - - - -
Change in Designation 28 Sep 2020 Director
3 Vinayak Shenvi Resignation 26 Oct 2020 Alternate Director
4 Chirag Sachdev Resignation 26 Oct 2020 Alternate Director
5 Kiran Marthak Appomtment . . 17 Aug 2020 A.ddltlonal Director
Change in Designation 28 Sep 2020 Director

During the financial year, there is change in key managerial personnel. Directors are not required to retire
by rotation in your company as the company was a private limited during the financial year and same is not
applicable to private limited company.

B) DECLARATION BY AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S)

This clause is not applicable to your company since it was a private limited company during the year under
review.

C) FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

Provisions relating to Formal Annual Evaluation are not applicable since the company was a private limited
company during the year under review.




NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Five (5) Board meeting were held during the financial year ended 31* March, 2021.

Sr. No. Date of Board Meeting | Directors Present

1 25/05/2020 All Directors were present

2 07/09/2020 All Directors were present

3 21/12/2020 All Directors were present except Mr. Binoy Gardi
4 01/03/2021 All Directors were present

5 03/03/2021 All Directors were present except Mr. Ajay Tandon

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

Your company was a private limited company at the end of financial year, and therefore provisions relating
to the establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employees were not applicable. However, the
company has adopted the vigil mechanism in its board meeting dated 22" September, 2021.

Nevertheless, Veeda’s Code of Business Conduct requires directors, officers and employees to observe high
standards of business and personal ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities. As employees
and representatives of the Company, they must practice honesty and integrity in fulfilling their
responsibilities and comply with all applicable laws and regulations. The Company has a Whistle Blower
Policy to enable persons who observe unethical practices (whether or not a violation of law), to approach
the Whistle Blower Custodian without revealing their identity, if they choose to do so. This Policy governs
reporting and investigation of allegations that are in breach of the Code of Business Conduct.

The company has established a program named “MD Connect Program” which facilitates newly recruited
employees to get connected with the Directors of the Company. The main aim of such a program is to make
the newly recruited employees aware of the principles and value system of the company. Moreover, the
employee is made aware of the whistle blowing policy and its importance in the organization.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Your company was a private limited company during the year under review and therefore the provisions
relating to Nomination and Remuneration Committee are not applicable.

However, the company has constituted such committee in its Board Meeting on 01* July, 2021. The company
comprises of below mentioned directors as a member;

Sr. No. | Name of Director Designation in Committee
1 Nitin Deshmukh Chairman

2 Rakesh Bhartia Member

3 Vivek Chhachhi Member

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred
to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions
under third proviso thereto are disclosed in Form No. AOC -2 as Annexure C.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company’s Code of Business Conduct (COBC) provides broad directions as well as specific guidelines
for all business transactions. The emphasis is on human rights, prevention of fraudulent and corrupt
practices, avoidance of conflict of interest, prevention of Sexual Harassment and unyielding integrity at all
times.




Veeda is committed to the provision of a workplace, free of Sexual Harassment (“SH”) and to provide a
redressal mechanism for all complaints of SH without fear or threat of reprisals in any form or manner
whatsoever. The work place in context of SH is not restricted to the office but includes extended work areas
such as Client’s place, work related travel, cafeterias and Company sponsored events, to name a few.

It is confirmed that the company has duly complied with applicable provisions and have a policy in relation
to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 including
the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the said Act.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:
Details are as below:

i) Details of Loans

During the financial year under review, the company has provided loan of ¥234.55 million to its associate
company i.e. Bioneeds India Private Limited for the repayment of its loan liability.

ii) Details of Investments

Sr. | Details of Investment | Name of Investee Purpose for which | Principal
No. the proceeds from | Amount
investment is | ® in

proposed to be | millions
utilized by the

recipient
1 | Investment in Equity | Bioneeds India Private Limited - 366.71
Shares of associate
company
2 | Investment in Equity | Ingenuity = Biosciences  Private | For setting up of | 3.5
shares of joint venture | Limited operations of joint
company venture company
3 | Investment in units of | ICICI Prudential Saving Fund - 200.58
mutual fund
4 | Investment in units of | [CICI Prudential Liquid Fund - 139.99
mutual fund
5 | Investment in units of | Aditya Birla Sun Life Low Duration | - 165.61
mutual fund Fund Low Duration Fund
6 | Investment in units of | Aditya Birla Sun Life Overseas Fund | - 47.50
mutual fund
7 | Investment in units of | Icici Prudential Overnight Fund - DP | - 47.50
mutual fund - Growth
8 | Investment in units of | IDFC Cash Fund-Growth - (Direct | - 35.00
mutual fund Plan)
9 | Investment in units of | IDFC Low Duration Plan - Regular - | - 65.49
mutual fund Growth
10 | Investment in units of | UTI Liquid Cash Plan - Institutional | - 80.00

mutual fund

11 | Investment in units of | UTI Money Manager Fund - | - 91.05
mutual fund Regular - Growth




*Note: The amount of investment shown above is total investments done during the year. Some of which
have been disposed of during the year and are not outstanding as on balance sheet date.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND RELATED
DISCLOSURES

A) Details of ratio of the remuneration of each director pursuant to Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to your company, since it was a
private limited company during the year under review.

B) Details of the every employee of the Company as required pursuant to 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, will be provided upon request.

C) No director of the company who is a Managing Director or whole time director is in receipt of any
commission from the company.

D) Being a private limited company during the year under review, the requirement under the heading
“Corporate Governance” is not applicable to the company. However, the Company is complying with most
of the requirements.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The company has provided share-based incentive scheme to its employees. The relevant details of the
scheme and the grant are as below.

On 20th May, 2019, the shareholders approved the Equity Settled ESOP Scheme 2019 (ESOP 2019) for issue
of stock options to the key employees and directors of the company. According to the ESOP Scheme 2019,
the employee selected by the committee from time to time will be entitled to Stock Option based on their
annual performance, subject to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting conditions described in the scheme. The
contractual life (comprising the vesting period and the exercise period) of options granted is 4 years. The
other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 13,432
Options granted during the year 6,812
Options vested till year end 5,720
Options exercised during the year Nil
Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option during | Nil

the year

Options lapsed due to resignation of the employees during the year | 664
Exercise price per share 10,644
Variation of terms of options Nil
Money realized by exercise of options N.A
Total number of options in force 19,580
Employee wise details of options granted to :

Key managerial personnel Mr. Ajay Tandon — 6812 options




Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year | N.A
of option amounting to five percent or more of options granted during
that year

Identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, | N.A
equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued capital of the
company at the time of grant

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
The requirement of Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable since company is not listed company.
COST RECORDS

The company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

The requirement of Corporate Governance Certificate is not applicable to the company since it is not a listed
company.

Nevertheless, Governance at Veeda encompasses structures, practices and processes adopted in every sphere
of the Company’s operations to provide long-term value to its stakeholders through ethical and transparent
business standards. The company has a definite Value System established which includes Humility, Honesty
and integrity, Openness, Excellence, Innovation, and Nurturing individual growth. These values are the core
elements of governance at Veeda. The Company, as a responsible corporate citizen, believes that the spirit
of Corporate Governance stretches beyond statutory acquiescence to meet the ethical, legal, economic and
social responsibilities and is centric to stakeholder trust and confidence. While the letter of the law is
paramount in all its activities, the spirit in which it is followed, keeps in view the interests of the stakeholders,
viz, shareholders, clients, employees, suppliers, society and regulatory bodies.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Company has a Risk Management Policy to identify and evaluate business risks and opportunities. This

framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business objectives and enhance
the Company’s competitive advantage. The composition of the risk management committee is as follow;




Sr. | Name of Director | Designation in
No. Committee
1 Kiran Marthak Chairman
2 Aparajita  Jethy | Member
Ahuja
3 Apurva Shah Member
S5.N. Vinaya Babu | Member
3 Ajay Tandon Member

CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER

The Corporate Identity Number (CIN), allotted by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of
India, is U73100GJ2004PLC044023 and the
Company’s Registration Number is 044023.

The Company’s Master Data and details of the
compliance filings by the Company with the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of
India, may be viewed by the members and other
stakeholders at WWW.ITca.gov.in
(MCAZ21eServices) using the above mentioned
CIN.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to
in clause () of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013, shall state that—

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
Jjudgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of atfairs of the company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit and loss of the company for
that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts
on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors had laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the company and that

such internal financial controls are adequate and
were operating effectively and

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.
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The Directors wish to thank and deeply
acknowledge the co-operation, assistance and
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achieve the results.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

KD
Nitin Deshmukh
Chairman

Place: Mumbai

Date: September 22, 2021




Annexure — A
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first provise to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of associate companies or Joint ventures

PART-A: SUBSIDIARIES: NIL

PART-B: ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Z in million

Name of Associates or Joint Ventures

Bioneeds India | Ingenuity Biosciences
Private Limited | Private Limited

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

31/03/2021 31/03/2021

Date on which the Associate or Jeint Venture was
associated or acquired

19/03/2021 16/02/2021

Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end

21,42,883 shares | 3,50,000 shares

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture

366,71 35.00

Extent of Holding (in percentage)

30% 50%

Description of how there is significant influence

Acquisition of Incorporation of

Shares Company by entering into
Joint Venture agreement
with M/s. Somru
Bioscience (Canada)

audited Balance Sheet

Reason why the associate/Joint venture 1s not N.A. N.A.
consolidated.
Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest (6.74) (0.59)

Profit or Loss for the year

1) Considered in Consolidation
2) Not Considered in Consolidation

) (032) |1 @91
2) (078 |2) (91

I. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: NIL
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the Year: NIL

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 22, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

g

Nitin Deshmukh
Chairman




Annexure B
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURNS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31st March, 2021

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rulel2 (1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

1 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN U73100GJ2004PLC044023

ii) | Registration Date 23rd April, 2004

Veeda Clinical Research Limited
iii) | Name of the Company (Formerly known as Veeda Clinical
Research Private Limited)

iv) | Category/ Sub-Category of the Company Public Limited Company

Shivalik Plaza - A, Nr. ..M., Ambawadi,
v) | Address of the Registered office and contact details Ahmedabad 380015, India
Tel: 30013000

vi) | Whether listed company NO

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikroli
Transfer Agent, if any (West)-Mumbai 400083

Phone: +91 22 49186000

vii)

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

Sl Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
No. products / services Product/ service company
1 Clinical Research 74220 100%

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Name And . % of .
Sr. Holding/ Applicable
Address Of The | CIN/GLN o . shares )
No. Subsidiary/Associate Section
Company held
Basil Private .
1. . 157069 C1/GBL Holding 67.56% 2(46)
Limited
Bioneeds India .
2. . L U01409KA2007PTC042282 | Associate 30.00% 2(87)
Private Limited

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)




i. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholder

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

year

No. of Shares held at the end of the
year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

% Change during the
year

A. Promoter

1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

b) Central Govt

c) State Govt(s)

d) Bodies Corp

e) Banks / Fl

f) Any Other
(AIF)

Sub-total(A)(1):-

2) Foreign

g) NRls-
Individuals

h) Other-
Individuals

i) Bodies Corp.

4,06,194

4,06,194

69.18%

4,06,194

4,06,19
4

67.56%

(1.62%)

j) Banks / Fl

k) Any Other....

Sub-total (A)(2):-

4,06,194

4,06,194

69.18%

4,06,194

4,06,19
4

67.56%

(1.62%)

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a)Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1)




2. Non
Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian 8,578 8,578 |1.43% | (1.43%)
1,59,7
(i) Overseas 1,59,708 27.20% | 1,59,708 26.57% | (0.63%)
08
b) Individuals
(i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal 3,896 3,896 | 0.64% | 0.64%
share capital
upto X 1 lakh
(i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh
c) Others(Speci
fy) = Trust JAIF 21,261 3.62% | 22,820 22,820 | 3.80% | 0.18%
y) —Trus
1,95,0
Sub-total (B)(2) | 1,80,969 | - - 30.82% | 1,95,002 | - 02 32.44% | 1.62%
Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)
C. Shares held
by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total 6,01,1
5,87,163 | - 5,87,163 | 100% | 6,01,196 | - 100% -
(A+B+C) 96
ii. Shareholding of Promoters
Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the %
the year year change
in
Sr. | Shareholder’s & - %’ - | g3 ¢ - %J o8- 3 sharehol
No Name e 5% 5 5 5 O 2 5%« S5 53 5 O
73} 808 _cgJo-Qm BOS.C‘”E*Sd'
[ 4 0 w 5 £ Y 4 v v Q0 +— Ing
9] 6 ¢ E - O 5 5] 6 9 £ « T E Y .
S R 28| 8@ s |xEG Qa g+ duing
=z v v < v @ the year
Basil Private
1 Limited 4,06,194 69.18% - 4,06,194 | 67.56% - -
imite
Total 4,06,194 69.18% - 4,06,194 | 67.56% - -




iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholding at the beginning of

Cumulative Shareholding during

Sir. Name of the year the year
No. Shareholder % of total % of total
No. of shares shares of the No. of shares shares of the
company company
NO CHANGE

iv. Share holding pattern of top ten shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs)

Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end
beginning of the year of the year
3. Shareholder’s Name % of total % of total
No Shares of No. of Shares of
No. of Shares
the Shares the
company company
1 Bondway Investmentt Inc. 1,59,708 27.20% 1,59,708 26.57%
2 CX Alternate Investment Fund 21,261 3.62% 21,261 3.54%
QRG Investments and Holdings
3 o - - 7,779 1.30%
Limited
Emerge Capital Opportunities
4 & P PP - - 1,559 0.26%
Scheme
5 Arjun Shanker Bhartia - - 1,169 0.19%
6 Madhu Jain - - 1,169 0.19%
7 Oriental Carbon and Chemicals Ltd - - 779 0.13%
Sachin Rashmikant Shah
8 . . - - 779 0.13%
Rashmikant Girdharlal Shah
9 Saurabh Gupta - - 779 0.13%
Total 1,80,969 30.82% 1,94,982 32.44%
v. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

% in million

Secured Loans
. Unsecured
excluding
B Loans
deposits

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of

the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due - -

Total (i+ii+iii)




Change in Indebtedness during

the financial year

- Addition - 150.00 - 150.00
- Reduction - - - -
Net Change - 150.00 - 150.00
Indebtedness at the end of the

financial year

i) Principal Amount - 150.00 - 150.00
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - 0.84 - 0.84
Total (i+ii+iii) - 150.84 - 150.84

vi. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors , Key Managerial Personnel and/ or

Manager

T in million

Sr. Particulars of
No. | Remuneration

Mr. Apurva
Shah

Mr. Binoy
Gardi

Mr. Ajay
Tandon

Mr. Nirmal
Bhatia

Total Amount

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per
provisions
contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act,
1961

3.06

3.06

14.99

11.84

32.95

(b) Value of
perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961

0.03

0.03

(c) Profits in lieu of
salary under
section 17(3) -
Income- tax Act,
1961

Stock Option -

Sweat Equity -

Commission -

4 - as % of profit -

- Others, specify -

Others, please
specify

Total (A) 3.06

3.06

14.99

11.87

32.98




B. Remuneration to other directors:

Name of MD/WTD/ Total

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration
Manager Amount

Independent Directors

- Fee for attending board committee
1y meetings

- Commission

- Others, please specify . % s L n

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

- Fee for attending board committee
meetings

- Commission

- Others, please specify = > _ = 2

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

vii. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Section of Details of Appeal
Type the Brief Penalty/Punishment | Authority [RD made.
Companies description | / Compounding fees | /NCLT/Court] | If any (give
Act imposed details)
A.Company
Penalty NONE
Punishment
Compounding
B.Directors
Penalty
Punishment NONE
Compounding
C.Other
Officers In
Default
Penalty
Punishment NONE
Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai Nitin Deshmukh
Date: September 22, 2021 Chairman
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Annexure C

FORM NO.

AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred fo in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transaction under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: Not Applicable

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
Sr{ Particulars Details Details Details Details Details Details Details

No

| | Name (s) of Dr. Kiran Bioneeds | Bioneeds | Ingenuity | Ingenuity | Synersoft Apurva
the related Marthak India India Biosciences |Biosciences|Technologies|  Shah
party & nature |(Director of the| Private Private Private Private Private (Common
of relationship Company) Limited Limited [Limited (Jointf Limited Limited [Directorship

(Associate | (Associate Venture (Joint (Common in
Company) | Company) | Company) | Venture | Directorship | Company)
Company) |in Company)

2 | Nature of Contractto | Investment Loan Investment Rent Services Rent
contracts/ provide Purchased
arrangements/ | Professional
transaction Service

3 | Duration of During the N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A, N.A. 01.04.2018
the term of his to
contracts/arran | Directorship 31.03.2023
gemenis/iransa
ction

4 | Salient terms Professional | Investment | Granting of | Subscription | Prevailing | Prevailing | Prevailing
of the Service in Equity Loan of Equity |Market Rate] Market Rate |Market Rate
contracts or Shares Shares of
arrangements newly formed
or {ransaction v
including the % 1,75,000/- Z236.67 @ 15% | ¥ 35 Lakhs | ¥ 80,536/~ | ¥ 1,35,000/- % 5,50,000/-
value, if any Monthly Crore Interest Annually Annually Annually

Rate

S | Date of 07.09.2020 101.03.202101.03.2021 | 01.03.2021 [01.03.2021] 24.11.2017 |24.11.2017
approval by
the Board

6 | Amount paid NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
as advances, if
any

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 22, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

g =

Nitin Deshmukh

Chairman




ANNEXURE D
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, the
Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. During the year under review.
A meeting of CSR Committee was held on 01 March, 2021.

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee includes formulating and recommending to the Board, a
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as
specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, recommending the amount of expenditure to be
incurred on the CSR activities, providing guidance on various CSR activities to be undertaken by the
Company and monitoring the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time.

Pursuant to the recommendation of the CSR Committee, the Board has approved a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Policy.

The details required pursuant to Section 135 of the Act are provided in SCHEDULE-I to this Report.
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SCHEDULE-1

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S REPORT
(Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013)

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy.
Pursuant to the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the Company
has framed a CSR Policy.

The Company’s CSR vision & mission is to contribute to the social, economic and environmental
development of the community in which the Company operates. The Company may undertake any one
or more CSR activities as specified in the CSR Policy. As permitted under Rule 4(2) of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company has identified following institutes
through which it has decided to carry out CSR activities:

Sr. No. | Name of the Implementing Agency

1 Rotary Club of Mumbai Queen’s Necklace Charitable Trust

2 Jan Jagrati Sevarth Sansthan

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee.

As on the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2021, the CSR Committee comprises of Mr. Ajay Tandon,
Apurva Shah and Mr. Binoy Gardi.

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years.
Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial Years as per Section 198 of the Companies
Act, 2013 was %41.9 Crores.

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): X 83,96,388/-

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year.
(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: X 83,96,388/-

(b) Amount unspent, if any; NIL

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

During the year, the Company has spent 384,11,854/- towards its CSR programme.

Details of such contribution is provided in below table:




Amount in I(Lakhs)

(@) 2 (€)] 4 6) Q) @) ®)
S.No. | CSR project | Sector in which Projects or © Amount spent on |
or activity the Project is programs | % .2 the projects or 3 = o
identified covered (1) Local area | & z programs E '% . =
or other é £ g2 |E 2 gﬂ
(2) Specify the = ) §_ %D o g =
Stateand | = g 55 |E & =
district where | 3 . 2z 43 |28 2z p
projectsor | = o | 3 =1 El g |55 E g3
programs was | S .2, | & TESEE |BS R £
undertaken | < g /2 2‘ ol 2 E 8 =
g O |0
1  |Rotary Club of] Contributions to Mumbai, 10.00 10.00 - 10.00 (Impleme-
Mumbai public funded Mabharashtra nting
Queen’s Universities, Agency
Necklace National
Charitable | Laboratories and
Trust autonomous bodies
established under
Department of
Atomic Energy
2 Jan Jagrati Promoting Nationwide 69.5 69.5 - 69.5 |Impleme-
Sevarth education, nting
Sansthan including special Agency
education
3 |Distribution of|Eradicating hunger,| Vejalpur & 4.61 4.61 - 4.61 | Direct
Grocery Kits poverty and Ahmedabad,
during lock malnutrition Gujarat
down period
TOTAL 84.1

Brief Background of the implementing agencies and the projects undertaken are as below:

Rotary Club of Mumbai Queen’s Necklace Charitable Trust

Rotary Club of Mumbai Queen’s Necklace Charitable Trust is an international humanitarian service
organization. The members of Rotary Club of Mumbai Queen’s Necklace Charitable Trust are business and
professional leaders who volunteer their time and resources to help communities throughout the world.
Rotary clubs carry out a variety of service projects that address critical issues including poverty, hunger,
illiteracy, substance abuse, and pollution.

Service to youth, especially children at risk, is a major emphasis. Working with and for tomorrow’s leaders,
Rotary sponsor services to clubs for youth and young adults and offers career development and mentoring
programs.

The Object of Rotary is to encourage and foster the ideal of service as a basis of worthy enterprise and, in
particular, to encourage and foster:

FIRST. The development of acquaintance as an opportunity for service;




SECOND. High ethical standards in business and professions, the recognition of the worthiness of all useful
occupations, and the dignifying of each Rotarian's occupation as an opportunity to serve society;

THIRD. The application of the ideal of service in each Rotarian's personal, business, and community life;

FOURTH. The advancement of international understanding, goodwill, and peace through a world fellowship
of business and professional persons united in the ideal of service.

The project undertaken on behalf of Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited covers providing financial
support of such children undergoing treatment for cancer at the TATA Memorial Hospital, a Grant-in-Aid
Institute under the Dept. of Atomic Energy, Government of India.

Jan Jagrati Sevarth Sansthan
The Jan Jagrati Sevarth Sansthan is an NGO (NGO Unique ID: UP/2019/0232160) registered under the
Societies Registration Act, 1860 vide registration no. 1958/2007-08.

The object of the NGO mainly includes the activities related to Agriculture, Animal Husbandry, Dairying &
Fisheries, Art & Culture, Biotechnology, Children, Civic Issues, Dalit Upliftment, Differently Abled,
Disaster Management, Drinking Water, Education & Literacy, Aged / Elderly, Environment & Forests, Food
Processing, Health & Family Welfare, Information & Communication Technology, Labour & Employment,
Youth Affairs, HIV / AIDS, Rural Development & Poverty Alleviation, Sports, Tribal Affairs, Water
Resources, Women's Development & Empowerment.

Further, the operational area of the NGO mainly includes Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra.

The NGO has achieved its major goals relating to upliftment of Dalits, scheduled caste, scheduled tribes,
minorities, BPLs and other backward communities, welfare of women, youth and child and their
development through education, economic environment, skill, education, health and cultural programs.

The CSR project undertaken on behalf of Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited covers Promotion of
Educational project activities mentioned under Clause (ii) of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

Distribution of Grocery Kits by the Company

Apart from the donations to above implementing agencies, the Company had donated Grocery Kits to the
Collector Office, Vejalpur, Gujarat for its distribution to the needy people during lock down period. Further
the company had also distributed Grocery kits amongst various contractual employees like custodian,
attendant, driver, janitor, assistant, supervisor etc. during the lock down period. The purpose of utilisation
of funds for above activities was for Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition as specified in Clause (i)
of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research
Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Oplnion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerty known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited) (“the Company™), which comprise the
Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31 2021, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Cash Flow Statement and the
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as the standalone financial statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the expfanatlons given to us, the
aforesald standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,
as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted In indfa, of the state of aifairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (5As), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ’Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the “Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audlt opinion on the standalone financial

statements.

Informatlon Other than the Standaione Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Dlrectors Is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information inciuded In the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditer's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conctusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, constder whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a

SRBCACOLLP 2 Limited Liabiity Parlnership with LLP Identity Ho, AAB-43(8
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Responsibillty of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(¢5) of the Act
with respect {o the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, flnancial performance incluging other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indfan Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal firancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that glve a true and fair view and are free from materiai
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basls of accounting unless management elthar intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

These charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financlal reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibillties for the Audit of the Standalone Flnancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due ta fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor’s
report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high levei of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materlai If, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financlal statements.

As part of an audlt In accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,

» Obtaln an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(D) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financiai statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and reiated disclosures made by management,
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we concfude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtalned up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ail relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

2.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtalned ali the Information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as It appears from our examination of those books:

(¢} The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Cash Flow Statement and
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financlal statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies ¢Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f} With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer te our
separate Report [n “Annexure 2" to this report;

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company being a private company tiil March 31, 2021, provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act are not applicable for the year ended March 31, 2021; and
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be Included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rufes, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disciosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in [ts standalone financial statements - Refer Note 20 to the standalone
financial statements;

. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any materlal foreseeable losses; and

1ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number; 324982E/E300003

per Sukrut Mehta

“  Partner
Membership Number: 101974
UDIN: 21101974AAAAET6561
Place of Signature: Ahmeadabad
Date: September 22, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph of Report on Other Legal and Regufatory Requirements of our
report of even date of Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research
Private Limited) for the year ended March 31, 2021,

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particuiars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) All property, plant and equipment have not been physically verified by the management
during the year however there is a regular programme of verification of alf assets over a period
of 3 years, which in our opinlon, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification during the
year in accordance with the aforesaid plan,

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(Xc¢) of the Order are not applicable.

ii. The management has conducted physical verification of fnventary at reasonable intervais during
the year and no material discrepancies were notlced on such physical verification.

hil. (a) The Company has granted loan to cne company covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In our oplnion and according to the Information and
explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial
to the company's interest. There are no other loans secured or unsecured to firms, limited
liability partnerships, or ather parties covered In the register maintained under section 189 of
the Act.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated for the
loans granted and the repayment/receipts are regular.

(¢) There are no amounts of loans granted to aforesaid company, which are overdue for more
than ninety days.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, provisions of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of ioans and advances given and investments
made have been complied with by the company. Further, in our opinion and according to the
information and expianation given to us, there are no guarantees and securitles given during the
year in respect of which provision of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence
not commented upon.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
rovisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable and hence not commented upon,
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vi. To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company Is not In the business of sale of any
goods. Therefore, In our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicabie to
the Company.
vil. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
duty of custom, goods and service tax, professional tax, cess and other statutory dues are
generally requiarly deposited with the appropriate autherities though there has been a slight
delay in a few cases of depositing Provident fund, Professional tax and Income tax.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of custom, goods and
service tax, Professional tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) The dues of income-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods
and service tax and other material statutory dues on account of any dispute, are as follows:
(Amount in millions)

Name of Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where the
statute dues invoived the amount dispute is pending
(excluding relates
Interest and
penalty)
Finance Act, Service tax 2008-09 CESTAT, Ahmedabad
1994 1.30
Finance Act, Service tax July 2012 to CESTAT, Ahmedabad
1994 2195 March 2014
Finance Act, Service tax 2015-16 Principal Commissioner
1994 52.81
Finance Act, Service tax 2007-08 to Principal Commissioner
1994 45.64 2011-12
Finance Act, Service tax 2014-15 Principal Commissioner
1994 26.19
Finance Act, Service tax 2014-15 CESTAT, Ahmedabad
1994 6.15
Customs Act, Custom FY 2012-13 fo Principal Commissioner
1962 duty 2.79 2013-14
Customs Act, Custom FY 2013-14 to CESTAT, Ahmedabad
[ 1962 duty 1,97 2016-17
viil. In our opinion and according to the [nformation and explanations given by the management, the

Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings from banks, The Company did
not have any dues payable to the financlal Institutlon, debenture holders and government during
the year.
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Xi.

xii,

xil,

Xiv.

XV.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised money by way of initlal public offer, further public offer, debt instruments and term loans
during the year hence, reporting under clause 3(Ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence

not commented upon,

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the informatlon and explanations given by the
management, we report that no materlal fraud by the company or no material fraud on the
company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the

year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company being the
private company tili March 31, 2021, the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the
Act were not applicable and hence repaorting under clause 3(xi} are not applicabie and hence not

commented upon,

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 31D of
the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations glven by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and
the details have been disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial statements, as required
by the applicable accounting standards. The Company being the private company till March 31,
2021, the provision for Section 177 were not applicable to the Company and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xiii) in so far as It relates to Section 177 of the Act is not applicabie to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and expianations given by the management and audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has complied with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of the preferential aliotment or private placement of equity shares during the
year. According to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that
the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors ar persons connected with him as referred
to in section 192 of the Act.

=
== LON
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xvi. According to the Information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Reglstration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Sukrut Mehta
Partner
Membership Number: 101974
UDIN: 21101974AAAAETE561
Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date: September 22, 2021
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Annexure Z to the independent Auditor's report of even date on the standalone financial statements
of Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinlcal Research Private Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Contrels under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™

We have audited the internal financial controfs over financlal reporting of Veeda Clinical Research
Limited (formeriy known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited) (“the Company”} as of March 3%,
2021 in conjunction with our aud!t of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responslible for establishing and maintalning internal financtal controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's poiicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial Information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Respensibility

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audlt
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing as speclfied under section 143(10) of the Act , to the extent applicable to an audilt of internai
financial controls and, both Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perferm the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internai financlal controls system over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controis operated effectively in all

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audlt evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a materlal weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of Internal control based an the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financlal statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabllity of
financlal reporting and the preparation of standalone financlal statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial conirol over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements inciudes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reascnable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonabfe assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have 3
material effect on the standalone financlal statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
standalone flnancial statements

Because of the inherent [Imitatlons of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standaione financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financiat control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes In conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Oplinion
In our opinion, the Company has, In afl material respects, an adequate internal financial controis system

over financial reporting with reference to these standaione financial statements and such Internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criterla established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financiai
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Lo
— i

per Sukrut Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 101974
UDIN: 21101974AAAAETS561
Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date: September 22, 2021




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Reseavch Private Linvited*)
Standalone Balance Sheet a5 at March 31, 2021
{All amouata in rupees million, nnless otherwise stated)

Azat Asal Asat
KAHicaiars Notes Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 01, 2019 |
L ASSETS
Noo-carrent asseis
(#) Property, plent & equipment 2l 376.04 42908 374133
{b) Capal work-in-progress 33 459 - M0
{c} Right of use assets 3.4 363.00 34077 187.17
(d) Otber intangible nssers 3z 446 670 319
() intangible assets under devalopment 3] 6.74 508 126
() Fimancial assels
(i) Investments 4.1 37021 .
() Loans 45 23455 . .
(ii3) Other financial assels 46 719¢ 69 55 2693
{g} Deferred tax assets (net) 19 61388 5514 49.48
(h) Income tax assets (net) 5 15432 15281 76.68
i) Other non-current aseets [ 1.92 197 ZM
Total nov-curvent asseds 1,649.79 106110 79728
Current assets
{a) Inventories 7 56.63 47.75 4732
(b) Feancial ssses
(i) Invesiments 4.1 298 52 = 18.53
(W) Trade receivables 42 4351 81 36048 39933
(Wi) Cash and cash equivalents 43 149.61 144.42 176.60
(iv} Bank balanee other than {ii) above 44 28.44 31.6) 2537
{v} Other financis) apsets 46 174.10 146.74 65.67
() Other corent assets 6 46.40 2370 17.2%
Total curreat assess [,205.21 73440 75007
Total assets 2,855.00 1.815,50 1,547.38
1L EQUITY AND LI1ABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equily Share capital 8 6.0) 537 587
(b) Instruments in the natwa of equity 8 35230 35230 35230
{c) Other equity 9 113927 52133 521.54
Total Equity 1,697.53 850.00 87371
Liabilities
Non-currest [Eabilitiey
() Financiai liabilitics
(i} Lease lisbilitiex 10 376.54 154 49 194.26
(ii} Other financial llabilinies 103 .50 0.50 0.50
{b) Provisions 14 32.85 2383 2020
Tatal apa-surrent Jiabilities 409.89 37942 218.5¢
Current liabjlities
(3) Fimancial liahilities
(i) Borrowings 10.1 243.22 166.91 4884
(i) Loase lizbilities ] 3748 3784 1033
(iii) Trade payables
{n) totel outstanding dues of micra emterprises 2nd small enterpriscs 1139 629 172)
total autstanding dues of credilors other than micro soterpeises and 102
anﬂem‘im e 1188 8114 10443
{iv) Other financial liabllities 103 73.60 93.64 13673
(b) Other current liabilities 11 2664 13857 11007
{c) Provigions 12 1332 1129 10 47
Todal curvent liabilities 47.53 £55.68 452.08
Total liabilitiep 1,)5742 935.50 667.64
Total equity and linbilitics 2,855,00 1,815.50 1,547.35
Summary of significant accounting policies 21
Summary of significant g jud; i and assumeti 22
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone fmancial statemems.
As per our repart of even date
ForSRBC & Ce. LLP PFor and og Bebalf of the Hoard of Directors of
Chartered Aceountants Veeda Clinical Research Limited
[CAI FRN: 324582R/E300003 (foxmerly known as "Veeda Clinical Reresrch Private Limited")

(CTN : 73100GS2004PLC044023)

-
per Sulirut Mehta Nitin Deshmukh Ajay Tandon Nirmal Bhatia
Pariner Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary & CFQ
Membership Na 101974 DIN: 00050743 DIN: 02210072 1CS1 Membership No. 12551

Date; Seplember 22, 2021
Place: Mumbai Place: Gurugrsm Placs: Ahmedabad

Dare: September 22, 2021
Place: Ahmedabad




Veedn Clinical Research Limited {formerly kmown as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Statement of Standalone Profit & Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2021
(All amenats in rupecs million, ualess otherwise stated)

Sr. No. Particulars Notes Year ended March 31, 2021 Year eaded March 31, 2020
) |Revenue from operations 13 1,958.14 1,512.74
(1) |Other income 14 385.69 24,07
(1) [Total fncorae (I+ 15) 2,343,831 1,536.81
{IV) |Expenmses
Cost of material consumed 15 139,52 132.85
Employee benefit expenses 16 49171 54326
Finunce costs 17 48,05 50.94
Depreciation and amortization expeases 3 149.45 158.04
Qther expeases 13 659.76 642.75
Total Expenses (1Y) 1,488.49 1,527.84
{V) |Profit before tax (111-1V) 88534 8.97
(V) |Tax expense 19
(1) Current tax 22880 1530
(2) Deferred 1ax {6.35) (5.90)
Total tax expense (VD) 222.45 92,40
{VII} | Proflt { (Toss) for the year (V-VI) 632.89 (0.43)
(VII} |Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reelassified to profit or luss in subsequent periods
Re-measuremend gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans {1.55) 0.97
Income tax effect 039 (0.25)
Total othey comprekensive income / (loss) for the year (VIII) (1.16) 0.72
Total comprebensive incoma / (Joss) for the year (IX) = (V1i+ VIII) 63173 0.29
Earnings per equity share (in Rs.) 21
Basic 1547 {0.01)
Diluted 15.46 (0.01)
Summary of significant aocoanting policies 2.1
2.2

Summary of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The accompanying notes are an intepral part of these standakome financial statemens.

As per our repert of even date
ForSRBC & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAT FRN: 324982E/E300003

per Sukrut Mehta
Partner
Membership No, 161974

Date: September 22, 2021
Place: Ahmedabed

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directers of
Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known a5 "Veeda Clinlcal Research Private Limited™)

(CIN : UT3100GJ2004PLC044023)

Nitin Deshmukh AJay Tandoen Nirmal Bhatia

Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary & CFO
DIN: 00060743 DIN: 02210072 [CST Membership No. 12551

Date: September 22, 2021
Place: Mumbai Place: Gurugram Place: Ahmedabad



Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Statement of standalone cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts in rupees million, ualess otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
R Mareh 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit befare tax 855.34 8.97
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Diepreciation and amortization 149.45 158.04
Employes stock option cost 592 -
Finance cost 48.05 50.94
Net interest income (5.73) (4.76)
Net gain on sale of mutual fund 9.31) 0.23)
Loss on sale of praperty, plant and equipment 0.0l 004
Liabilities no longer required written back (15.24) (7.53)
Provision for doubtful debts 271 211
Unrealized foreign exchange loss/(gain) 7.56 {1.99)
Operating profit before working vapital chaages 1,038.76 205.54
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/decrease in (rade receivables (95.65) 47.17
(Increase) in inventorics (8.87) (0.43)
(Tacrease} in financial assets (29.31) (109.52)
(Increase) other assets (22.63) (6.28)
Increase/(dectease) in trade payables 36.93 (33.68)
(Decrease) { [ncrease in other financial liahilities (9.16) 2718
Increase in other current liabilities 18.06 46.85
Increase in provisions 849 5.84
Cash generated from operation 996.60 182.69
Diirect taxes paid (230.31) (91.42)
Net cash flow generated from operating sctivities (A} 766.29 91.27
B Cash flow frowm Investing activitles
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets including intangible
assets under development and Capital work-in-progress (39.53) (90 64)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment Q.05 0.09
Interest received 4.56 501
(Investment) in fixed deposits (2.76) (23.49)
Proceeds from redemption of fixed deposits 4.58 -
(Investment in) munal funds (872.73) -
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds 583.52 1875
Loan Lo associate (233.30) -
Investment in equity shares of Joint venture in which the company is & venturer {3.50) -
Investment in equity shares agsociate (366.71) -
Net cash flow {(used in) investing activities (B) (925.82) (90.28)
C Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowing - (54.15)
Finance cost paid (7.62) (5.79)
Proceeds from / (Repayment of) shori~term bomrowing (net) 76.31 110.3t
Payment towards lease [iability {77.95) (80.84)
Issue of shares (including securities premivm) 179.93 -
Net Cash flow (used in)/generated from financing activities (C) 170.67 (34.47)
Net Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) [1.14 (33.48)
Effect of exchange differences on iranslation of foreign currency cash and cash
equivalents (5.65) 1.00
Cash ang cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 144.12 176.60
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 149,61 144.12
Companents of cash and cash equivalent
Balance with banks:
- On current accounts and cash credit accounts 148.45 143.07
Cash on hand 1,16 105
Total cash and eash equivalent at the end of the year (refer note 4.3) 149.61 144.12




Veeda Clinical Resenrch Lanied (formordy knevmn as “Veeda Clinical Research Privme Limited™)
Statement of standslene cash fows Jor the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounty in supees milllon, unless otherwise stated)

Nates ta statement of cash Mows
1} The Statsmend of Cash Flows has been prepared undar the Indirect meshad as st autin lnd AS 7 on Statament of Cash Flows nosified under Saction 133 of The Compandes Act, 2013, read
gether with B aph 7 of e Companice (Indinn A ing Stardard} Rules 20135 (es umended)
2) Changes in ligbilities arising from financing aolivibes:
Partlculars Asat Apcil 01, 2020 Cash flaws ¢neq) Othersk Asat March 31, 2021
| Finncing activifics
Shon-tamn borrowings 166 9t 76.3) - 24322
Lenss téability 39233 (77.93) 11964 43802
Total| 559.24 (1.64)] 119.64 67124
Particulars At nt April 91, 2009 Cash flows (met) Others¥ As vt March 31, 2020
Financing activitier
Shari-term barrowings 48 84 110.31 776 156.9)
Leng-term borrowings (ncluding current matunty of long term borrewing) 315 (34.15) - B
Lease Iiﬂi'ig’ 224.59 (hiL84) 24858 392.33
Tatal Ere2] {24.68) 25634 559.24

# The others columa includes the effect of reclessification of feasa liability and addition 10 loage liability on sccount of Ind AS (16,

Summacy of significam accounting policies 20
8 y of signifwcand ing judg , esti and assumpti 22
‘The accompamying notes are an Ikegral part of these standalone Financial statements
As per onr report of even dale
ForSRBC& Co.LLP Por snd on Behielf of the Board of Director of
Chanered Accountants Veeda Clinical Research Limited
KCAl FRN: 324962E/E300003 (formerly Knewn 3 *Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited ")
. {CIN : U73100GI2004PLCO44023)

-d)‘v ~
par Sukvut Mehita Nitin Deshmmich Alay Tandoo Nittaal Bhatia
Peartuer Chalrman Mansging Director Company Sexretary & CFO
bembership No. 101974 DIN: 00060743 DIN: 02210072 1CST Membership No 12551

Dae¢: Scptomber 22, 2021

Date: Sepembier 22, 2021
Place: Mumbai Ploce: Gurugram Place: Ahmedabad
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Yeeda Clinical Reseavch Limited (formerfy knewn as "Veeda Clmical Reseavch Private Limited™)
§ ol Standal h in equity for the year anded March 31, 2021
(AN amounts in supees million, unbess otherwise stated}

A) Equity share capifak
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issned, subscribed and fully paid

Particelars Note Amount
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid equity shares of Rs. 1¢ each

Balamce a3 at Apri 01, 2019 587
Tssue of equiry shares during the year 8 -
Bakauce as at March 31, 2020 587
Issue of equily shares dusing the year 3 14
Balante as at March 31, 2021 $.01

B} Instrwments in the natwre of ¢quity (Equity Component of Compulsol

Particulars Note

CCCPS Class *A'
Issucd, Subscribed and fally paid preference shares of Rs 10 each
Balunce as st April 01, 2019

Incraase during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2020

Incresse ducing the year B
Balance ss ai March 31, 2021

Freference shares Clags-4, (CCCPS Class ‘A")

C) Other equity

Other equity

Reserves and surplus

Particulars
Secuorities premium

Share optioms
oustanding reserve

Capital redemption

reserve

Retained carnings

Tatat

273.00

38.84 -

209,70

S21.54

Balanee as at April 81, 2019

Loss for the year

(0.43)
on

(@.43)
072

Other comprehensive ingome for the year

.29

0.28

Total comprehengive income for the year

Balance a5 at March 31, 2026

209.99

521.83

Profit for the year

63289
{1.16)

632 89
(116

Other comprehensive Joss for the year -

631.73

631.73

Total comprehemsive income for the year

On issue of equity skares during the year 17279

Share based payments (refer note 32)

= 5.692

1797
592

452. 719

Balance as ac March 31, 202)

38,44 3.92

1,33%.27

Summasy of significam accouating policies 21
Summary of significast accounting |udgements, astimates and assumptions 22
The accompanymrg notes are an klegral part of these standalone financial

As per our report of event date
For 8RB C & Co, LLP
Chastered Accoumtants

[CAI FRN: 324932E/E300003

per Sukrut Mehta Nitia Deshmukh
Partner Chairman
DIN: 00060743

Membersbip No. 101974

Date: September 22, 2021

Phace: Ahmedabad Place: Mumbei

For and o1 Behall of the Board of Directors of

Veeda Clinieal Resaareh Limited
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Date: September 22, 2021

NA A~

Ajay Tandon Nirmal Bhatis

Managing Director Company Secretary & CFQ
DIN: 02210072 IC8T Membership No. 12551
Place: Gurugram Place: Ahmedabad




Veedsa Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2021

1. Corporate information

Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited (“the Company™) is a private company domiciled in India
with its registered office at Shivalik Plaza — A, 2nd Floor, Opposite Ahmedabad Management
Association, Ambawadi, Ahmedabad, Gujarat — 380015, India. The Company was incorporated on
April 23, 2004 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India and is carrying on the
business of Clinical Research for various Pharmaceuticals Companies. The Company is a one roof
service global CRO specializing in the early clinical development of drugs with state-of-the-art
facilities in India. The Company provides a full range of services in phase I and II clinical research
with Clinical Data management, delivering expert and cost-effective research solutions to the
Pharmaceutical and Biotechnology Industries worldwide. The Company has become a Public
Limited Company w.e.f. June 30, 2021 and consequently the name of the Company has changed
from Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited to Veeda Clinical Research Limited.

The standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on September 22, 2021.

2.1 Significant acconnting policies
(A) Basis of preparation and transition to Ind AS

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule [II), as applicable to the

Company.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 (Indian GAAP). These financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 are first time prepared in accordance with Ind AS.
Refer to note 31 for information on how the Company adopted Ind AS.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value / amortized cost (Refer note 27).

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded
to the nearest INR millions, except when otherwise indicated.

(B) Summary of significant accounting policies
4. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged ot used 1o settle a fiability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

BN

All other assets are classified as non-current.




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(fermerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ending Mareh 31, 2021

A liability is treated as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting petiod; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

BN

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is alse its functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency
spot rates on the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons,
the Company uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the

transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or
statement of profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit and loss, respectively).

¢, Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2021

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by seiling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs

and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement
and for non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given
in the relevant notes.

(a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 27)
(b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 27)

(¢) Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 27)

d. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services is transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal
in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited®)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2021

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to
revenue from contracts with customers are provided in Note 2.2.

Sale of service

The Company’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple services to a
customer. Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when
the contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the contract, the parties to contract are
committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally
enforceable. The Company assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct
performance obligations in the contract. Revenue from customer contracts are recognized on
straight line basis on these identified distinct performance obligations.

The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for other fixed-price
contracts. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the Company to determine the
actual efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the estimated total efforts or costs to be

incurred.
Contract Balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from clinical services because the receipt
of consideration is conditional on successful completion of the project. Upon completion of the
project and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to
trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment
of financial assets in section (p) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent

measurement.
Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in section (p) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

e. Other Income

Other income is recognised when ne significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation
exists.

f. Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
r paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2021

that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accept an uncettain tax treatment. The company shall reflect the effect of
uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value
method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
{formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Notes to the Stamdalone Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2021

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set
off deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same tax

authority.
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

The company is not eligible for MAT credit entitlement since company has opted for lower tax rate
under section 115BAA of Income Tax Act, 1961.

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services tax paid, except:

i} When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable; and

if) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payabies in the balance sheet.

g. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criterias are met. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection
is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progress s stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises
of the cost of property, plant and equipments that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the
date of balance sheet.

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value method over the estimated nseful lives of the
assets as follows:

Assets Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule I of
the companies Act 2013

Plant & machinery 51015

Office equipment 10

Computers and peripherals 3

Furniture & fixtures 10

Vehicles 8
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Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful
life, whichever is lower.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {(calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangibie asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is

derecognised.

A summaty of the policies applied to the company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible Internally generated or
assets Useful lives | Amortisation method used acquired
Amortised on a straight-line basis
Computer 3 years over the period of computer | Acquired
software
software

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded
as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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j- Leases

The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The company recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (j.c., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter, as follows:

Building - up to 10 years

[f ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected 1o be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the company and payments of penalties for terminating the
tease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising the option to terminate, Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment and office premises (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months




Veeda Clinieal Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2021

of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Company as a lessor

The company has sub leased certain office premises. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the Iease terms. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

k. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Costs incwered in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:

Consumables: cost includes cost of purchase and other casts incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition, Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

L. Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent mariet transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth
year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case,
this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or
country or countries in which the company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation
surplus taken to OCIL. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount
of any previous revaluation surplus. -
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An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a

revalpation increase.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or
company of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than it’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to
goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

m. Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) and
as aresult of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but enly when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution towards provident fund and employee state
insurance scheme (ESIC) is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC. The company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service,

The company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be
made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
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iy The date that the company recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense
in the standalone statement of profit and loss:

i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
i} Net interest expense or income.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date. The company recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an
expense when an employee renders the related service.

The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting
date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does
not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting

date.

o. Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of cash-settied transactions with employees using Black-
Scholes model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation maodel, which
is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of
the most appropriae inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For cash-settled share-based
payment transactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up
to the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in the profit or loss. This
requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of each reporting period. For the
measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the
company uses Black-Scholes model for Veeda Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (VESP). The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are
disclosed in note 32.

p. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the company’s business model for managing them. With
the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
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which the company has applied the practical expedient, the company initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price

determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’
on the principal amount outstanding, This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows, The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets or both. Financial assets
classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both

holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the company commits fo purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measuremen!t

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i) Financial assets at amortised cost {debt instruments)

if) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A *financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

This category is the most relevant to the company. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that arc an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income
in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The
company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other receivables and
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Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual find.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss

category.
Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the company’s standalone balance

sheet) when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ji) The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financlal assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL'") model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss. For trade receivables and contract assets, the
company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the company does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-locking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
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ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next twelve months (a twelve month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (i.e., a lifetime ECL).

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and ather payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
it} Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities af fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criterias in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in
own credit risk are recognized in OCIL These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to
statement of profit and loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. The company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value throngh profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.
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Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs

in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to borrowings.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
canceiled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
medified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective camying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to seitle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously,
q. Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms
of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included
in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification.
Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of
the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible
preference shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when
the instruments are initially recognised,

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the standalone statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of ocutstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the company’s cash management,

s. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders
of parent company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
erage number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

New Standards, Interpretations and amendments adopted by the company

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the standalone financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Company’s annual financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2020, except for the adoption of new standards effective or amendments
to the existing Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as of April 01, 2020. The Company has not
early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet
effective. The Company applies, for the first time, following new interpretations and amendments
w.e.f., April 01, 2020 and do not have material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

a) Amendments to Ind AS 1, Ind AS 8 and Ind AS 10: Definition of Material;
b) Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19 related Rent Concessions.

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assaumptions

The preparation of the company’s standalone financial statements requires management to make
Jjudgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities,
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

i) Capital management note 29
ii) Financial risk management objectives and policies note 28
iii) Sensitivity analyses disclosures note 28

Judgements

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone
financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — company as
a lessee

The company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The company has several lease coniracts that include extension and termination options. The
company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that
create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change
in c_ircm-nstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate (e.g. construction of significant leasehold improvements,
significant customisation to the leased asset, etc.).
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Export incentive receivable

As per Government notification no. 57/2015-2020 dated March 31, 2020 the Company is entitled
to Service Exports from India Scheme (SEIS) benefits on clinical research services till year ended
March 31, 2020 and accordingly Company has accounted the same on provisional basis pending
notification in receipt of the eligible service and rate of rewards as at reporting date (Refer note

4.6).
Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

While estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions with the employees at grant date,
the company uses a DCF model for employee stock option plan. The assumption and models used
for estimating fair value for share based payment transactions are disclosed in note 32.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be wtilised. Significant management j udgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with fiture tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its Iong-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial essets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments,

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2021

the company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no abservable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such

as market interest rates).

Revenue recognition

The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for other fixed-price
contracts. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the Company to determine the
actual efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the estimated total efforts or costs to be
incurred. Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as
there is a direct relationship between input and productivity. The estimation of total efforts or costs
involves significant judgment and is assessed throughout the period of the contract to reflect any
changes based on the latest available information. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on
uncompieted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on
the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract.
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Yeeda Clinical Research Limited {{foymer)y kaown a3 "' Veedn Qlinicel Resenrch Private Lmiced")
Notes to Stamialsae Pinancial S¢ for the yewr ended Macch 31, 2021
{Al) amouats in rapees million, unless otherwise stated)

4

41

42

Finamcial assess
[nvestinents
Particulars b e Asu
March 31, 2021 Maech 31, 2000 Aprid 01, 2019
Non-current
Investment tn equity shares af associnte {(carried at cast) (Unquoted)
2,142,833 (Marets 31, 2020: Mil; Aprit 01, 202 Nil) fulty peid equity 36671 - -
shares of Bigoeeds India Privaie Limited
inveshnent in equily shares af jot vemure (carried ut cast)
(Unqeoted)
350,000 (March 31, 2020: Mk Apedl 01, 2019: Nil) fully paid cquity 350 - -
shares of Ingesmity Bicacionces Private Limiked
Total| 37021 - .
Cusrend
[nvestesunt m urils of mutunl fumds (carried sf fsir value through
prohi and loss) (Quoted)
339,115 72 Urrits (March 31, 2020: Nil; April 02, 2019 Nil) of ICICI 141,07 - F
Prudkential Savieps Pund (Regwbe Growih}
165,13k 45 Units (March 31, 2020 Nil; April 01, 201$-Nil) of ICICI o4 - .
Prudawial Liguid Fond (Regalar Growsh)
208,242 21 (Marah 31, 2020: Nit, April 0§, 2009 Nil) unig of Adilya 0741 - -
Birla Sun Life Low Dyralion Fund (Repstar Grovh)
Nil (March 31, 2020 Nil; April 01, 2019; 36,121 37 Units) of KCICT ] = 2,52
Prudcntial Baoking & Financial Scrvices Fuad (Direct Growth)
NN (March 31, 2020: Nil; April 01, 2049: 115,169.34 Uats) of IDFC * - 191
Infraskusbwre Fund {Divect Growth)
Nil (March 3), 2020: Mil, Apri) 01, 2019: 19,412.40 Units) of LM - - 179
Phorma & Heallcare Pund {Direet Growih)
Nil (March 31, 2020: Nil: Apnil 01, 2012: 113.421. 55 Units) of Aditya - - 334
Birla Swilifc Baking & Financial Sernvices Fund
Nil (March 3, 2020 Nil; Apn! 01, 2019: 75338 03 Unils) of ICICI - - 318
Predsuiicl Focused Bluochip Equite Fusd
Nil {Morch 31, 2020: Nit; Apeil 01, 2019 66,34% 64 Unils) of IDFC = + 3
Clazsic Equity Fund
Nil (March 31, 2020: Nil; Apeil 0, 2009 |72,R1).06 Unis)of LR T - - an
Infrasiemre Fund (Growth)
Total 298.82 - 1353
370.21 - -
37021 - -
298,52 - 13.5)
208 52 - 1853

Nete:
1) Subsequent to year cud, the members in their meeting held an May 25, 2021 approved acquisitien of additional 20,10% of the sharcholding in
Biomceds India Peivale Limitzd Aequisition of' the game has been complewcd on July 16, 2021,

i) Subscquenk Lo wear end, the boasd in their mecling licld on June 22, 2021 approved ivestment of Re. 240 million in optionslly comertible
rodeamablc preicence sharcs (“OCRPS™) baving coupon rowe of 0.001% in Bionccds India Private Limiled which was subscquenily approved by
aembers in their mecting held oo June 24, 2021 and the same hos been completed on July 16, 2021

Trade receivables

) Asat Asat Asat
Parsiculers March 31, 7023 March 31, 2020 April 61, 2090
"Trade receivables
Sceured, cansidered good - - -
Unsecured, comsidored yood 451.31 30048 39933
Teade reccivablos which have signiflcant increase in aredi risk 761 489 27
Trade reccivables - credit anpaircd B9 £09 809
Imgnirment all ()l for bad ond debds)

Unseeured, considered good - - -
Trade reectvables wiich have significant increase in credil risk (7.61) (429) 279
Trade receivables - credit impaired (209) (8.09) {6.09)]
‘Tatal 4%1.57 360.48 34033
Notes:

Teade mcoivables are non-interast hearing and are generally on taome of 30-90 days

For information sbous credit risk end markel risk rvlawd 10 (rade recsivable, plosse vefor not 28

No irade or othey receivabla ae duc froin diceetors or other offizerg of the company cither acvetally or jomuly wilh any other person Ner any rade
on other rercivnble pre dee fram fimp or privite compamics respectively in which any dicctor is 3 partnor, a dircetr or a member




Yeedu Climical Research Limited {formerly known a9 ''Veeda Chinionl Resenrch Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Fi il § for ihe year ended March 31, 2821
(Al amonnts in rupees milkon, unless otherwise siured)

4.3 Cash and eash equivalents
|Pmiwhr.s Asat Asat Asat
Mardh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 81. 2019

Balances with Banks:
» On coment agcoanis and cash credit accounis 14845 143.07 108.63
« Deposils with original ity of Iess thae thrae manths (rafer note - 65.04
below) .

Cash on kand 116 1.03 293

Tatal 149.61 144.12 176.60

Note:

Fixed deposits as at March 31, 202t aisounting to Nil {Macch 31, 2020: Nil; Apiid 01, 2019; Rs. 65 04 miltion) are for 2 period of 7 days and eams intarest et § 75%

44 Other bank balances

As at Agac Asar
Panlcalavs Mareh 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020 April 01,2019
» Doposits with Qriginal maturity of mare tham three months but bess then 284 3.6 2537
‘walves smonths (refer nots below)
Total 2844 316F 2537
Note:

Depasits with bank as ut March 31, 2021 amounting to Rs. 28 44 million {March 31, 2020; Rs. 31.61 million; April 01, 200%; Rs. 25.37 million) ere given es collateral security agminst cash credit
limits. These deposits are made fat a varying period for 3 months to 12 months and eams intecest ranging between 4.00% ta 5.15% (March 31, 2020; 5.80% to 6 60%; April 01, 2019: 72.25% (o ? So%)

45  Luoans
Asat As at Asat
Fardculars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 Aprild1, 2019
Non-curremd
Unseewred, considered good
Loan to associate refer noto below) 23455 - -
“Taal 234.55 - -
Nove:
Simce the above Joan given to inte is 4 and idered good, the bifurcation of koan in other catsgories as required by schedule IV of compandas Aes, 2013 viz: &) Secured b) Loans whith
have significant increase in credit risk and ¢) cradic impaired i3 not applicable
Dicclocure vequired under See 136(4) of the Companies Act 2013
Included in loans and advence are certain intercorporte depesits the particulars of which are disclosed below as required by Sec 186(4) of the Companies Aet 2013
As At Acal
Nump of the loamee Rate of Intexsst Dus dats Secured! unsecured March 31, Mareh 31, Atat
2021 2020 April B}, 2019

Loan is repayable oa o
before  fingl mawnity
daie which shall nol be
laer than 3 th
Biongeds Indea Privaw Limited 18% from he date of| Unscoured 23455 - -
disbussement or such|
odier date as muonally
agreed between the

| partins 1o Joan.

Refer note 23 {or terms and conditions of loas t wasocinte




Yeedn Qlnical Rescprch Limited (forwierly known as "Veedn Clinica) Reseurch Private Linited')
Netes to Standalone Financial Stat (s o vise year ended Maxrch 31, 2021

(All amounts ko rupees tillion, onless otherwise stated)

4.6  Other finnneial assets

Purticulars Asal Asat Asat
Marrh 31, 2024 March 31, 2020 019
Lnsecured, eonsidered good
Nos-current
Security deposits 2304 2).03 2] 66
Bank deposils with ining ty for mpre than 12 months (refer 608 565 527
nale i chow)
Exgrort incentive receivable (refer aote i below) 4287 4287 -
Sub-tatal 71.99 69.55 26.93
Unsecured, considered good
Current
Contract asset
= Due fram cuslomer (accrued revemue) (refer note 13 2) 79.51 6060 5823
Sexurity deposits = = 682
Interest accrued o secwrity deposils 036 Q45 030
Export incantive reccivable §9.21 69221 -
Bank dep with ining ity for less than 12 months (refar note 1741 1643 -
11l below)
Reimbursement receivable (refur nowe 23) 761 - -
Others - - 0.26
Sub-tota [74.10 146.74 G5.67
Toral| 246.09 21629 92.60
Notes:
i) Bank dcposits with inil ity for more then 12 months as at Mazch 3), 2021 emounting to Rs. 608 million (March 31, 2020 Re. 5,63

million; Apeil 01, 2019 Rs. £.27 million) are given as scousity ngainst bank guarantees. These doposits are made for a peciod of mere than 12 wonths
and earns interest ranging between 5.309 to 9.00% (March 31, 2020: 6.25% to 9.00%; April 01, 2019: §.25% 10 9 003}

i) As par DGFT notification no 57/2015-2020 dated Marel 31, 2020, Uic comgany is enditded to Service Exports from India Scheme (SEIS) benefits
on <linicel research services Ull year ended March 31, 2020 Ouw of the total receivable bal ling as on 31 Murch 2021, the SEIS benefits
of Rs. 42.87 million (Masch 31, 2020: Rs. 42 B7 million; Apeil 01, 2009: Nil) for the clinical research services provided during the fasancial year
ended March 31, 2020 has been accounted by the company based on the notification of sligible service category under the sdlr.me of previous year
and / or best estimated rat which arc pending to bo notified by the goveriiment authoricy as at the reporting dales. The company T is
confident that the compaay will be able to ecalize the cubtanding reczivables once the government notifics lhc snud services and rates.

iii} Bank deposity with original mauwdty for more than (2 months and with remaining maturity for less than 12 moiths s a1 March $1, 2021
amounting to R 1741 mellion {March 31, 2020: Rs 16 48 million; Apsil 01, 2019: Nil) are given as collateral scourity against cash credit limits
These deposits are made for & periad of mare diun 12 roonths and eams interest s 5 70% (March 31, 2020: 7 35%: Apri) 01, 2019 Nil)

5 Income tix assets (net)

5 Arat Anal Asal
Fariculars Mareh 31, 2021 Miurch 31, 2020 April 01,2019
Nos-current
Advance payment af Tncome tax (met of provision) 154132 152 K1 7688
Total 154.32 152.81 76.68
L] Other assets
As al | Ae ar Agat

UL March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2028 Anril 01, 2019
NomCuerent
Unsecured, considered gaod
Balance with governmet authoriti 1.92 197 214

Sub o1l 1.92 197 2,14
Cezrent
Unsecured, eonsiderad good
Propaid expenses 16 E2 1054 927
Advance to creditors 879 224 7.03
Employee advances 113 1,40 0.7
Bal with g thorities {refer noe below) 2036 912 -
Dthers = = ale

Sub tutal 4640 23,70 1728

Total| 4532 2567 19.39

Note:

Balance with government avihoritics includes GST input lax credit seceivabla (nes of liability)

7 Inventories {valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

" Agar As at A al
) &
i e Maveh 31, 2031 Mareh 31, 2020 April 91,2019
Consumables 5663 4775 4732
Total| 86.63 4775 4132
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Notes to Standalone Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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8 Share capital

Equity shaye capital
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As at April 01,2019

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount No. af shares Amount

Authorised share capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 700,000 7.00 600,000 6.00 600,000 6.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shave capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach 601.196 601 587.163 587 587,163 587

Instruments in the natuare of equity (CCCPS Class "A')

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As at April 01, 2019

No. uf shares Amount No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Authorlsed share capital
0.0001% CCCPS Class 'A' Rs. 10 each 35,640,680 356.41 35,640,680 356.4] 35,640,680 356,41

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital

0.0001% CCCPS Class 'A'Rs. 10 each 35,225,780 352.30 35,229,780 35230 35,228,780 35230

{a} Reconciliation of the equity shares and instruments entirely equity in nature outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Share Capital
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As st March 31, 2020 As at April 01, 2019
Number Amount Number Amgunt Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 587,163 5.87 587,163 587 587,163 537
Issue of equity shares during the year 14.033 0.14 - - - -
Shares ontstanding at the end of the year 501,196 6.01 587,163 5.87 587,163 587
Instruments in the nature of equity (CCCPS Class'A")
Parti As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As at April 01, 2019
arficulars
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 35,229,780 35230 35,229,780 35230 35,229,740 35230
Shares bought back during the year ® = - - - -
Shares converted during the year - - - - - &
Shares gutstanding at the end of the year 35,229,780 352.30 35,229,780 352.30 35.225,780 352.30

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares.
In respect of Ordinary shares, voting rights shall be in the same proportion as the capital paid upon such ordinary share bears to the total paid up erdinary capital of the
company.
The Dividend proposed by the board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ¢nsuing Annual General Meeting, except 1n case of interim
dividend
In the event of liguidatian, the shareholders of ordinary shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company afier distribution of all preferential amounts, in
proportion lo their shaschaldings.

(<) Subsequent to year end, the board in their meeting held on June 26, 2021 approved split of each equity share of Rs. 10 each into 5 equity shares of Rs 2 each which was
subsegquently approved by members in their meeting held on June 29, 2021

(d) Subscquent w year end, the board in their meeting held on June 26, 2021 approved issue of 11 bonus shares fully paid for each equity share of Rs. 2 each which was
sabsequently appraved by membexs in their meeting held on June 29, 202{

{e) Terms of converslon / redemption of CCCPS Class 'A*
i. The CCCPS Class 'A’ shall be entitled to 0.0001% participatory and cumulative dividend Subsequent to year end, the Board of Directors at their meeding held on May 25,
2021 have modified the peccentage of dividend from 0.0001% w0 14.11%, which has been approved and transferred to separate account, for the period from October 27, 2018
till March 31, 2021 amounting 1o Rs. 120.82 million
ii. The CCCPS Class ‘A’ shiall not be entitled to any voting rights.
iii. The conversion of CCCPS Class A’ in to equity shares shall be subject 1o the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company. The outstanding CCCPS Class 'A' shares
will be converted into 93,946 equity shares.
iv. The rights of preference shareholders shall be governed in accordance with the provisions of the Companics Act, 2013, including any statutory modification{s) and re-
enactments), thereof, and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, as may be amended from time to time,
v. The convexsio_n_ of CCCPS Class ‘A’ in to equity sharcs shall be subject to all nles, regulations prevailing / applicable at the time of such conversion and shall be subject la
: conditions of Central Gavernment of India, Reserve Bank of India and such othes statutory avthority as may be applicable and prevailing at the time of conversion




Veedn Clinical Research Limited (formerly krown as 'Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Notes te Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in rupees million, woless otherwise stated)

(1) Subsequent to year ead, the members in their mecting held on June 29, 2021 approved conversion of 35,229,780 CCCPS Class ‘A’ inte 93,946 equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

{g) Shares held by holding company

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 Asat April 01, 2019
Name of Sharcholder
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Basil Private Limited *
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 406,194 4.06 406,184 4.06 406,194 4.06

(h) 35,229,780 CCCPS Class ‘A’ of Rs. 10 each were isswed as Bonus and 11,630 CCCPS Class "B were bought back by the company during the year ended March 31, 2019

(1) Details of shareholders holding more than $% shares in the company

Equity Share Capital

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

As at April 01, 2019

Name of Sharehalder Number Y of Nomber Y% of Number Y of
Holding Holding Holding
Basil Private Limited * 406.194 67.56 406,194 69.18 406,154 69.18
Bondway Investment [nc 159.708 2657 159,708 2720 159,708 2720

* The company has passed the board resolution dated March 01, 2021 to transfer the 1,751 equity shares from Basil Private Limited o CX Alternative Investment Fund. The
said shareholding has been updated with the registrar on April 15, 2021.

Instruments in the nature of equity (CCCPS Class 'A")

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As at April 01, 2019
Name of Shareholder Number Y% ?r Number Y% ?t‘ Number b |.)f
Holding Holding Holding
Bondway Investment Inc 22,175,640 62.95 22,175,640 6295 22,175,640 65295
Arabelle Financial Services Lid. 13,048,140 37.04 13.048.140 37.04 13.048.140 37.04

(3} Subsequent io year end, the members in their meeting held on May 25, 2021 approved additional invesiment of Rs. 979.86 million in equity shares of the company through
private placement at Rs. 12,822 per share (face value of Rs. 10 and securities premium of Rs. 12,812).

9 Other equity
. Asat As at

Particul

e March 31, 2021 | March 31. 2020
Securities premium
Balance at the begioning of the year 273.00 273.00
Add; Securities premium on issue of equity shares during the year 179.79 -
Balance at the end of ihe yeur 452.79 273.0
Capital redemption reserve
Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 38,84 38.84
Share options outstanding reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Add: Compensation for options granted during the year (refer note 32) 592 -
Balance a¢ the end of the year 5.92 -
Surplus in the statement of proflt and loss
Balauce at the beginning of the year 200.99 209,70
Add/(Less): Profit / (loss) for the year 632.89 {0.43)
Add/ (Less): Other comprehensive income / (loss)} for the year (net) (L.16)| 0.72
Balance at the end of the year 8$41.72 205.99
Total other equity 1,339.27 521.83

Nature and purpase of reserves:

(1) In cases where the Company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, 2 sum equal to the aggregate amount of the premium received on those shares has
been transferred to “Securities Premium”. The Company may issue fully paid-up bonus shares to its members out of the secyrities premium and to buy-back of shares
{2) Capital redemption reserve represents the amount transferred on account of buy back of CCCPS Class B!

(3) The share options outstanding reserve : The share options besed payment reserve is used to recognize the grant date fair valve of options issued to cmployess under

employee stock option plan
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(]

10.1

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

. Asat Asat As at
Particulurs March 31, 2021 March 31,2020 April 01,2019

Noa-current borvowing

Secured

Terms loans from financial institutions
Indian Rupes loan from financial instimtions (refer note 4, 5 and 6 L - 54.15
below)
Less: Curvent matutities of long rerm borrowings clubbed under "eurrent =
financial liabilities" (refer note 10.3) (54.15)

‘Total Non-current borrowings - &

Current Borvowings
Secured

Louns repayuble on demand
Foreign currency demand loan (FCDL) from Bank (refer nate 1 & 6 below) - 166.9) 48.84

Cagh ctedit from bank (refer note 2 below) 9322 . -
Unsecured

Other Parties
[nter corporate loan (rsfer nots 3 balow) 150.00

‘Total eurrent borrewings 243.22 166314 48.84

Total borrowings 243.22 16691 48.84

Aggrepate secured loan 93.22 166.91 10292
| Agarepate unsecured loan 150.00

Details of terms and securities for the above rupee loan facilities are as follows:

1

The Company has abtained Foreign Cumency Demand Loan (‘*FCDL’) which is pard of sanclioned credit facility of Rs, 200 million from Axis Bank for working
capital requirement of the Company, Outstandiog balance of FCDL as at March 31, 2021 is Nil {March 31, 2020: Rs. 1566.91 million April 01,2019: Rs. 43.84
million). The borrowing carries interest of 6 months LIBOR + 2.50% payable an monthly resl. The effective interest rate is Nil (March 31, 2020: 2.558% to
5.185%, April 01,2019: 5.185%). The FCODL is repayable on demand.

The FCDL was secured:

ta) by way of hypothecation on entire cunent assets of the Company including stock and receivables, both present and future;

(b} by way of equitable mortgage / hypothecation of immovable / moveable fixed assets (plant and machinery, equipment, ¢tc ) other than those financed by other
banks / financial institution; and

(c) against TDR in the name of Company having value of Rs. 40.10 millian

There is no default in repayment of this Joan.

2}

The Company has availed cash ciedit facilities of Rs. 200 million fiom Axis Bank for working capital requirement of the company. Qutstanding balance of such
facilties as at March 31, 2021 is Rs. 93 22 million (March 31, 2020: Ni), April 01, 2019: Nil ) The bomowing carries intercst of 3 Months MCLR + 2 15%. The
effective interest rate is 9.45% (March 31, 2020; Nil, April 01, 2019: Nil). The said credit facility is ropayable on demand

The credit facility is secured:

(a) by way of hypotiiecsLion on entire current assets of the Compeny inclnding stock and receivables, both present and future;

(b) by way of equitable mortgage / hypothecation of immovable / moveable fixed asset (plant and machinery / equipment etc.) other than those financed by other
banks / financial institstion; and

(c) against TDR in the name of Company having value of Rs. 40.1 millian.

There is no default in repayment of this loan.

3

The company has taken unsecured loan from Ifiunik Pharmaceuticals Limited (Lender)) of Rs. 150 million for a period of 3 months. Qutstanding amount of such
loan as at March 31, 2021 is Rs. 150 million (March 31, 2020: Nil; April 01,2019 : Nil). The borrowing carries interest rafe of 11,00% p.a. (March 31, 2020: Nil;
April 01, 2019: Nil) compounded annually,

#

Tenn Loan amounting Rs. 31.79 million from GE Capital Service India ('GECSI’) for purchase of variogs medical equipment. Outstanding balance for this facility
as at Mareh 31, 2021 is Nil (March 31, 2020: Nil; Apeil 01, 2019; Rs, 10.80 million). The borrowing caries interest 2.95% above the effective State Bank of India
based ratc (Benchmark rate) payabla an manthly rest. The effective interest rate is Nil (March 31, 2020: 11.90%; Apnil 01, 2019: 12.00%2) The ¢term loan was|
repayable in structured monthly instalment and repayment which started from Apeil 26, 2015. The rupee tesm loan facilities are secured against the first and
exclusive charge on the cquipment financed by GECS1 and against the pessonal guarantee of Mr. Binoy Gardi and Mr. Apurva Shah. The loan has been repeid in
full.
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(5) [Term Loan amounting Rs. 100 million from Tata Capital Financial Services Limited (‘“TATA’) for purchase of equipment. Outstanding balance for this facility s
at March 31,2021 is Nil (March 31, 2020 - Nil , April 01, 2019 : Rs. 43.35 millien) . The borrowing camies interest at long term lending rate less 5 25% payable
on monthly rest The effective interest rate is 12.25% to 13.25% The Teym Loan was repayable in structured monthly instalment and repayment started from
January 25,2017, The Rupee Term Loan facilities are Secured against the first and exclusive charge on the equipment financed by TATA and against the personal
guarantee of Mr. Binoy Gardi and Mr. Apwrva Shah. The loan has been repaid in foll.

(6) [Indian rypee loans amounting to Rs, 54,15 million and FCDL amounting lo Rs. 48.84 million outstanding as on March 31, 2019 from banks and financial
institutions were guaranteed by the personal guarantee of Mr. Binoy Gardi and Mr. Apurva Shah. However, said personal gnarantee was removed during the vear
ended March 31, 2020 as well as Indian rupee loans amounting to Rs. 54.15 million from financial instituitons was repaid duning the year coded March 31, 2020.

102 Tradepayables
As at Asail Az at
Barfleulsns March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 1, 202¢
Outstanding dues of micro and small emterprises (refer note 25) 11.3% 6.29 17.21
Outstanding dues of creditors other than wicro and small enterprises 111.88 81.14 10442
Total 123.27 8743 121.64
Terms and conditions of the above gutstanding balances:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in 60-180 days.
For explanation on company's credit risk management process, refer note 28.
For terms and conditions with related party, refer note 23.
10.3 Other financial liabllities
. Asat As at Asat
mimi L March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 Apsil 01, 2019

Non- Current
Financial liabilides carried at amortized cost
Security deposits 0.50 0.50 050

Sub-total 0.50 0.50 0,50
Current
Financial lighilities carried at amortized cost
Current matunity of long-term borrowing (refer note 10.1) - - 54.15
Creditors for cagital goods {refer note below) 5.i8 275 571
Employee benefits payable 60.87 55.30 51.0L
Iniesest accrued but not due on borrowing 0.84 - 018
Other payable 658 20,37 19.68
Financial Yiabilities carried af fuir value througb profit & loss
Mark to market liability on forward contracts 013 1522 -

Sub-total 73.60 93.64 130.73

Total 74.10 94.14 131.23

Note:

Creditors for capital goods alsa include outstanding dues of micro enterprises aud small enterprises as at Mareh 31, 2021 Rs. §.34 million (March 31, 202¢: Rs.

0.04 million; April 01, 2019: Rs. 0.53 million) (refer note 25).
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1

Qther current liabilities
Particulars Asat As at As at
March 31. 2021 March 31, 2020 April 01, 2019
Contract liabilities
Due to customer (excess billing over revenue)  (refer
note 13.2) 201.89 132.08 83.44
Advance from customers 13.08 15.99 7.50
Statutory dues payable 16.67 10.50 14,13
Total 236.64 158.57 116.07
As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 Marck 31, 2020 April 01, 2019
Reconciliation of contract liabilities:
Balance at the beginuing of the year 148.07 95.04 168.4D
Less: Revenue recognized during the year from balance at (113.33) {62.80) (151.93)
the beginning of the year
Add: Contract liabilities created during the year 185.24 114.93 7947
Balance at the end of the year 219.98 148.07 95.94
12 Provisions
. As at As at As at
ESEiculat, March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 01, 2019
Non-current
Provision for employee benefit
Gramity (refer note 22) 29.04 22.66 18.69
Compensated absence 3.8] 2.17 2.11
Total 32.85 24.83 20.80
Current
Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity (refer note 22) 5.68 4.94 4.37
Compensated absence 7.64 635 6.10
Total 13.32 11.29 10.47

[
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13

13.1

13.2

Revenue from opérations

. Year ended March 3, | Year ended March 31,
nde ki 2021 2020

Revenue from operations
Sale of services 1,958.14 1,400.66
Total revenue from operations 1,958.14 1,400.66

Other operating income

Export incentives income = 11208
Tutal other operating revenve - 112.08
Total 1.958.14 1.512.74

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Set out below is the disaggregation of the company’s revenue from cantract with customer

A. Geographical location of customer

Particulors Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2021 2020

India 623.43 540.04
Qutside India 1.334.71 860.62
Total revenue from contract with customers 1,958.14 1.400.66
B. Timing of revenne recognition

Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Services transferred over time 1.958.14 1.400.66
Total revenue from contract with ¢customers 1,958.14 1,400.66
Contract Balances
The below table provides information about trade receivables, contract aseets and contract liabilities from the contracts with customers:

. As at As at As at
Particulavs March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 01,2019
Trade receivables {refer note 4.2) 451.51 360.48 399.33
Contract assels (refer note 4.6)

- Due from cusiomer {accrued revenue) 79.51 60.60 58.23
Contract Liabilities (refer note [ [)

- Advance from customer 18.08 1599 7.50
- Due to customer {excess billing aver revenue) 201.89 132.08 B 44

Contract assets relates to revenue eamed from ongoing clinical services. As such, the balances of this account vary and depend ¢n the number of clinical services at the

end of the year.

Trade receivables are recognized when the right to consideration becomes unconditional These are non interest bearing generally on the terms of 30-90 days. Company
has receivable from its customers for the sale of services to its customers. In March 31, 2021 Rs.2. 71 million, March 31, 2020 Rs. 2.11 million and April 01, 2019
Rs.2.78 million was recognized as pravision for expected credit losses on trade receivables.

Contract liabilities includes shott-term advances received for providing clinical services and payment received from customer against invoice raised for which clinical
services are yet to be rendered. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Cotmpary satisfies the performance obligation
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13.3 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognized in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

134

Year ended Year ended
Fartiealary March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue as per cantracted price 2,011.64 142517
Adjustments
Credit notes issved due to change in performance obligation (53.50) (24.51)
Revenue from contracts with customers 1,958.14 1,400.66

Infarmation about Company's performance obligation are summarized below:
The perfermance obligetion satisfied over a period of time as and when services are rendered in accordance with the terms of contract with customer and payment
terms is generally due within 30-90 days from the date of invoice The Campany renders customer specific services and accordingly Company is eligible to recover the
payment from the customer till the date of service rendered by the Company in case of termination received by the customer as per the terms of contract. Company does
not provide any types of warranties and related abligations te customers,

13.5 Information about msjor custommers:

14

15

Por information about major custamers, refer note 26

Other income

Particulars Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2021 2020
Interest income on

-Bank deposits 3.2i 3.47

-Loans to associate (refer note 23) 1.25 A
=Secwrity deposits 1.28 1.30
-Income tax refund - 0.66
-Others - 0.03
Net gain on investment in mutual funds 9.3} 023
Liabilities no longer required written back 15.24 7.58
Net gain on foreign currency transactions 972 1054

Reat income 0.08 -

Goods & Services tax refund income (refer note below) 345.52 -
Others 0.08 026
Total 385.69 24.07

Note:

The Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs (CBIC) wide its notification dated September 30, 2019 had notified the place of supply of Research and
Development services including Bio-equivalence and Bicavailability Studies, Clinical trials and Bio analytical studies as the lacation of the customer and accordingly
Goods and Services Tax (“GST™) s not to be levied on export of services Pursuant to this notification, the Company applied and received GST refund during the year
ending March 31, 2021 amounting to Rs 345.51 million (March 31, 2020: Nif; April 01, 2019: Nil) pertaining to GST deposited with GST authority for the period

from July 2017 to September 2019 on matter related to export of services which has been accounted based on certainty of receipt during the year.

Cost of material consumed

Particulars Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2021 2020
Opening stock of consumables 4775 4732
Purchases during the year 148.40 133.28
Less : Closing stock of consumables (56.63) {47.75)
Totsal 139.52 132.85
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16  Employee benefit expenses

Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31,2021 31,2020
Salary, bonus and allowances 45590 51150
Employee stock option expenses (refer nots 32} 592 -
Contributions to provident and other funds (refer note 22) 2275 2187
Staff welfare expenses 714 7.89
Total 491.71 $43.26
17 Fi costs
Particolars Vear cnded March | Year erded Marck
31, 2021 31, 2020
Interest ¢xpense on
-Borrowings 40] 426
*Delayed payment of income tax & TDS 0.02 0.52
-Lease liabilities (refer note 30) 3959 41.34
~Others 0.03 o
Bank charges and other borrowing cost 4.40 47
Total 48.05 5094
18 Other expenses
Year ended March | Year ended March
Faetientars 31,2021 31,2020
Clinical analytical research expenses 277.06 245.87
Marketing and business promotion expenses 19.11 23.54
Rent expenses (refer note 30) 192 1.06
Water and power charges 5502 59.43
Legal and professional charges 7927 64.40
House keeping and security expenses 66.71 75.47
Professional charges of phlebotamists, nurses end doctors 16.40 19.55
Bio analylical research cxpenses 17.04 20.24
Insurance sxpenses 792 7.84
Conveyance and petrol expenses 2.05 226
Telephone expenses 332 324
Repairs and maintenance
-Buildings 383 3.57
-Plant and machinery and others 59.38 52139
Rates and taxes 9.03 12.39
Payments 10 the auditor (refer note 18 1) 1.25 128
Expenditure towards CSR activities (refer note 24) 841 1.50
Miscellaneous expenses 29.20 30.99
Provision for doubtful debts 271 211
Net loss on mark to market of outstanding forward contract 0.13 15.22
Total £59.76 642,75
18.1 Payments to the auditor
. Year ended March | Year ended Mavch
Particalass 31,2021 31,2020
As auditor:
Audit fees 110 i.10
Tax audit fees 015 15
Reimburscment of expenses " 0.03
Total £.25 128

¥ Figure nullified in convetsion of Rupees in million,
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19 Tax sxpense
The major componcnts of income @x expenye for the period ended March 31, 2021 and March 3), 2020 are

{A) Profit and luss section

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars
Riwrelr 33, 202) Mareh 33, 2020

Current in¢ems fax

Currem income ax charge 228 RO 1530
Deferred tux
Relating to originztion and | of v ditfesencas (8.35) (3 20)
Total tax veporied in the of profit and loss 222.45 5.40
(B) Other comprehensive i (OCT) gectinn

For the year For the year
Particulars ended endail

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Deferred tax related 1o items recognized in OCI during the year

Net Josg/(uain) on cemeasurennent of defmed benefit plans 039 025)
Delesred tax charged to OC1 0.39 {0.25)
{C} Reconciliafion of tax cxp and the hce ing profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2021 and Afarch 31, 2020

Fox rhe year Ror 1he year
Particulars ended anded

Maveh 31, 2021 Afarch 39, 2020
Pryflt belfore tax 855.34 897
Tax using the Company's domestie tax rale (March 31, 2021: 23 17% and March 31, 2020: 25 17%) 21526 226
Adiugtmenc
Noa deductible expense 390 38
Impact on account of change in tax rate {refer note below) - &7l
{ncome chargeable at different tax rate {D56) -
Oxlters 385 {0.15)]
Tax expense as per standal al profit and loss 271245 240
Note:
The Company has clecied to excrcise the option permitied under Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amead ) ordi 2019 A dingly, the
company bas recognized the provision for income tax for the year ended March 31, 2020 and remazsured ity daferred tax basis the mue prescribed in the aforesaid section. The consequential immast of re-
t of defemed tax ing to Rs. 6.7) million was accounted in previous year ended March 31, 2020

{D}) Balance sheet section

. Asat Asut Az at
Particulars Mareh 31,2021 | March31,2020 | April 01, 2019
Income tnx assess (hed) 15432 15281 76 68
Income tax asscts (net) 154.32 14241 2658
E) Deferved tux
Bulance Shret Staternmnt T Profit and Loss ocL
— Atat Beat e Fnrmd;::cn ?M‘:‘Idx::tar Fo:-ﬂ;::ur Far ;::dmr
- e
Mards 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 01,2019 Mavrch 31, 2021 Mk 20, 2020 Muych 31. 2021 March 31, 2020
Deferved tax asset{Liability) (Nei)
Difference benween depreciable assets as per baoks
of accounts and wrien down value for tax purgose. 882 530 23,86 23 (L16) - -
Enployee beaefits 1234 909 910 286 023 035 (0:25)
Effecr of MTM loss / (gain) on forward contract
pavibla 0.03 383 . (3 30) 38 Z S
Effect of provision for doubtful debis 195 3.27 318 (181} Q1L - -
Right to uge 2s5ets & l2ape liabilities 1931 1445 1202 486 248 E =
Restatement of mutual fund (087 - - (0.57) = E -
Others - % 048) = 046 - -
Deferred tax expense / (ered i) - - - 635 Son 0,39 10,24,
Net defeered rax ssen (linbility) 6188 55,14 4948 |
i As mt As st As at
R Hation of deferred tax assetx
_— ¢ (nen) Mareh 30,2020 | March 31,2620 |  April o1 2819
Opaning balence as al the beginaing of the year 5504 4948 4998
Tax income/{expense) during the period recognized in peofit ar Joss 635 590 (085)
Tex i i ) during the period recognized in QCJ 039 (025) ¢35
Chslig balance as at the cod of the year 61.38 55.14 49.48
Note:

The company offsets 12x assets and liabilides if and only if it has & legally enforceable right to set off deferred lax assets and deferred tax lisbilities that rdgie to income taxed Yevied by the same ax
Authocity
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20 Contingent liabilities & capital commiiment not provided for
20.1 Contingencices
: As at Asat Asat
——— March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 0t, 209
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts:
(i} Income tax * 109.68 [07.51 10745
(i1) Service tax ** 160.43 160.43 161.50
(i) Customs # 4.75 475 475

¢ Income tax demand comprise demand fioul the Indian tax authorities for payment of additional tax of Rs 109.68 million (Mauch 31, 2020; Rs 107 51 million;
April 01, 2019: Rs. 107.45 million) upon completion of their tax seview for the asscssment yoar 2007-08 to 2019-20. The tax demands are mainly on account
of disallowances refating to transfer pricing matters, expenditure to cam cxcmpt income, depreciation on software, interest charged on loan advanced, capital
expenditure charged to 1evenue, etc. cleimed by the company under the income tax Act. The matter is pending before various authorides The said demand
amouts have been already adjusted against refund of various yeais by Income Tax department and heace net demand is Nil in respect of such period

** Service fax demand comprise demand from the Service tax authorities for payment of additional tax of Rs 16043 million (Macch 31, 202¢: Rs 160.43
million; Apsil 01, 2019: Rs. 161.5¢ millicn), upon completion of their tax review for the financial year 2008-09 ta 2015-16. The tax demands are on account
denial of expart of secvice under Rule 4 of place of provision of Services Rules, 2012, reversal of CENVAT credit under Rule 6(3) and &(5), disallowance of
input tax credic, ete. The mater is pending before various authorities.

Above amount excludes Rs. 14587 million (March 31, 2020 Rs. 145.87 million, April 01, 2019 Rs 145 87 million) for the period April 2016 ta June 2017 in
respect of matters where the company has received favourable orders from the first appellate awtherities and bas received refund. However, the department is
pursuing appeal with hipgher appellate authority. The actual owtflow would depend on the final outcome of the matter.

¥ Custom duty demand comprise demand from CBEC for payment of additional tax of Rs 4.75 million {March 31, 2020; Rs 4.75 million; April 01, 2019; Rs
4.75 millian), upon completion of their tax review for the financial year 2011412 to 2016-17. The demand is on account denial of custom duty exemption
benefit claimed under the Notification 12/2012 dated March 17, 2012, The matter is pending before various authcrities.

The company is cantesting the demands and the management, ineluding its tax advisors, believe that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate process
No tax expense has been accrued in the financial statements for the tax demand raised. The managenent belicves that the ultimate outcoms of this proceeding
will not have a materizl adverse cffoct on the company's financial position and results of operations.

Other claims not acknowledged as debt

Ciaum by a party arising out of 2 commercial contract: Rs. 1018.84 million (March 31, 2020: Rs. 1018 84 million; Aptil 01, 2019; Rs 1018 84 miliion). The
company has not acknowledged this daim. As advised by the external legal counsel, the claim is not legatly tenable. Moreover, the company is adequately
inswed and the matter is intimated (0 insurance company as well. The y has Glcd detailed 1 1o the claim Jodged. The matter is pending at
commercial count, Ahmedabad. 1o view of these, the company does not foreses any Josses on this count and accordingiy no provision is made in books of
accounts.

20,2 Capital cornal ¢

Particulars Asat As at Agat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 01. 2019
Estimated amount of contracts remaining (o be executed on capital
account and not provided for (net of advances) 266 6:05 %05
20.3 Undeclarzd acerued preference share dividend
Asat As at As at
P
i Murch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 01, 2019
Dividend on CCCPS Class ‘A' (refernate 8 (e} (i ) v i [

* Figure nullified m conversion of Rupees in million.
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21

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to cquity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attsibutable to equity holders of the Company (after adjusting for interest on the compulsory convertible preference
shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion
of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares

The lollowing reflects the income and share used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particolars March 31, 2021 Marceh 31, 2020
Prafit/(loss) after lax 632 89 (0.43)
Less: preference dividend for the year . "
Profit / (lass) after tax for the year 632,89 (0A43)
Nominal value of equity share (Amount in Rs ) {refer note i betow) 2 2
Total number of equity shares 601,196 587,163
Weighted average number of equity sharcs 587,970 587.163
Weighted average number of equity shares after considering effect of ghare split and bonns (A) 35,278,223 35,229,780
Total number of CCCPS Class 'A' 93,946 93,946
Weighted average number of CCCPS Class ‘A’ 93,946 93,946
Weighted average number of COCPS Class 'A' after considering effect of share split and bonus (B) 5,636,760 5,636,760
Tatal number of shares for basic EPS after considering ¢fleet of share split and bonus (nominal value of equity share 40,914,983 40,866,540

Rs, 2}H{C) = (A) +(B)

Effect of dilution:

Dilutive effect of stock options granted under ESQOP 474 -
Dilutive effect on weighled sverage number of stock options granted under ESOP after considering effect of share split and

bonus 28,431 -
‘Weighted aversge number of shares adjusted for the effect of didation 40,943,414 40,866,540
Earning per equity share (Amount in Rs.)

Basic earnings per share (refer note ii below) 1547 (0.01)
Diluted ¢amnings per share {refer note iii below) 15.46 (0.01)

* Pigure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million:
Notes:

i. Subsequent {0 year end, the board in their meeting held on June 26, 2021 approved split of each equity share of Rs. 10 each inte 5 equity shares of Re 2 each which was
subsequently approved by members in their meeting held on June 29, 2021, Hence, nominal vatue of equity share is presented as Rs. 2 per cquity share. (refer note 8)

i Above 2amings per share has been computed based on revised number of equity shares considering split of equity shares & issue of bonus shares subsequent to year end
(refer note 8)

{ii. There are potential equity shares as at March 31, 2020 which are anti-dilutive and hence they are ignored in the calculation of diluted eamings per share: Accordingly the
diluted earning/{loss) per share is the same as basic eamings per share.
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Notes (o the Standatone Financial Sta ts for the year ended March 31,2021
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12 Disclosure for employee benefies

() Defined conicibation plans

Amount recognized as exy and included in Node 16 "Emipluyee benefit expense”
For the year ended For the year ended

Eutficuing Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Contribution to Provident fund 1462 1253

Cantribution to Empl state i 1.64 232

Total 18.26 14.87
(b) Defined benefits plam
The Company has following post smployment benefit which s i the nature of defined benefit plan:
Gratuity
The Compmw provides for gratuity for employees in Indm o per the Payment of Gratuiry Act, 1972 Employces who arc in continupus service for a period of 5 years are etigible
for . The ofgurm\y paysble on reti inaion is the emplayces last draem basic salary per manth computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied
for the number of years of service calculated on actuanial basis The wraluity plan is a funded plan 10 the cxtent bal ilable 10 Gratuity intainad with bank

Balance available in such aceount as on 31 March 2021 is Rs 0.07 million (31 March 2020: Rs 0.07 iwillion; Aprif 01, 2019: Rs, 0 07 millior)

i i iliation of delined benefit

As at As at
L March 31, 2021 March 31 2020
Opening defined benefit obligation 2787 ek % 34
Cuvrent Servica Cost 483 4137
Past Service Coxt - (8]
Jaterest Cost 169 LS?
Components of actuanial gain/logses) on obligatian
= Due to Change in finmcial assumplions 054 04l
- Due to change in demogrephic sssumption - o
« Duc to experience adjusiments 095) 083
Benefits paid 0.39 146
Qlosing defined beneli obligalion 34.79 27.67
* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million
ii. Reconcilintion of the Fuir value of Plan sssets
. Agat Al ut
idondreenid March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
COpening value ol plam asssts 007 0.07
Laterest Income 006 0,06
Retum on plan asscte excluding included in inderest i ©06) (0.0&)
Closing valve of pian assets .07 047
ifl. Net linbility/{Asset} recognized in ¢he Balance Sheat
Parliculars As at As at As at
Murch 31, 2021 Murch 31, 2020 April 01,2012
Present Value of Defined Benefil Obligations 3479 2767 23.12
Fair Value of Plan asscis (007 (¢o7) Q. 08)
Net liability/(Asset) recognized in the Balance Sheet 34.72 27.60 23.06

iv. Expenses recognized in Profit and Loss

Yenr ended March 31,| Year caded March 31,

Particulars
2021 2020
Cutrent servics cost 483 4,37
Past service cost E 111
Net interest cost 1.63 150
Nat Gratuity cost §zed in the stateinent of Profit and Laas 6.46 6.98

v. Other Comprehensive Income

Year ended March 31,| Year ended March 31,

Particulars
2021 2020
Actuarial gams / (losses)
~ Due ko change in demographic assumption - .
~ Due to Change in financial assumplions {054} o4
- Due tp experience adjustmsnts (0.95) Q&3
Return on plan assels, excludi ized in net {D.06) (0.08)
nents of defined bem:f'l woits recognized in othae cnmprellenslve income {1.55) 0.97

& nullificd in conversion of Rupees inmillion,
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Nodes io the Stendasl Fl

(s for the yeay ended March 31, 2021

(All amaunts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

ge of the fair value of total plan assets

vi. The major caiegories of plan asseis as a per
: Yeae ended March 81,| Year ended Mareh 31 Asat
Partical i B
. 2021 2020 April 01,2019
Bank balance (escrow accoumt) 1009% 100%| 100%|
Toca) 190% 100%; 180%
Tha principal ptions used i determining above defined benefit obligations for the company’s plan are shown below:
Particulsrs For (he year ended Far the year ended For the year snded
March 31,2811 Mareh 31, 2020 April 03, 2019
Discount rate 625%pa 650% pa T20%pa
. 000% p.afor next 1 year| 12% p a for next 3 years
Fulure saary increasc (R 2 ) pethereafter] & 7 00% p.a thereafer
25% p & aryounger ages| 23% p a at younger ages| 25% p a at younger ages
Employec turnover cedocing to 5% p.a ail  reducingto 5% pa atf  redocingro 5% pa af
alder ages older ngas| older ages
Mortality rate Iodian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives| Indian Assured Lives|
Martality {2012-14) Mortality {2012-14)| Monality (2006-08)|
Sensitivity analysis for significant pssumption is as under;
Inerease / (dcerense) Im defined benefit
hligation
Particsla e
. e Far tha year anded Por the year ended
March 31, 2021 Merch 31. 2020
. 05% increase (167} {0.82)
Dissound rate 0.5% drerease 114 087
Salary i 5% increase 112 087
0 5% decrease (1.06) (0 83)
Esmployes wmover Change by 10% vpward (0.35) (0.33)
Change by 10% downward Q38 038
The following are the expected futnre henelit puyments for the defined bearfit plan :
Particolars Asat As at Asal
March 31, 2021 Moarch 31, 2020 April 03, 2019
Within the nexi 12 months (Rext annual reporting period} 419 328 270
Betwean 2 and 5 years 1393 13.99 11.18
Beyond 5 years 11.58 10.33 918
Total expected payments 34.72 27.60 23.06




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2021

{All amoants in rupess million, unless otherwise stated)

23 Related party transactions

Ag per the Indian Accounting Standard on “Refated Party Disclosures! {Ind AS 24), the related parties of the company are as follows:

Name of related parties and their rdationship

Name

Basil Private Limited

Bondway Investment Inc.

ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Bioneeds [ndia Private Limited

Key managerial personnd of the company

Mr. Apurva Shah (Director)
Mr. Binoy Gardi (Direclor}

Relationship

Holding company

Entity with significant influence on the company

Joint venture in which the company is a venturer (w.e f, March 29, 2021)
Associate (w.ef. March 19,2021)

Mr. Ajay Tandon {Managing Director - w.e.f, May 25, 2020) (Executive Director - w.e.f. May 15, 2019 up to May 25, 2020)

Mr. Vivek Chhachhi (Nominee Director)
Mr. Manu Sahni (Nominee Director) (W e f. September 28, 2020)
Ms. Aparajita Jethy Ahujz (Nominee Director)

Mr, Vinayak Shenvi (Altemate Director) (w.¢.f. Navember 21, 2018 upta October 26, 2020)
Mr Saurabh Mehta (Nominez Ditector) (w e £ November 21, 2018 upto May 11, 2020)
Mr. Chirag Sachdev (Alternate Director) (W.e.£. May 25, 2020 Up to October 26, 2020)

Mr. Kiran Marthak (Director) (W.e.f. September 28, 2020)
Mr. Ninnal Bliatia (Company Secretary)

Relative of key managerial personnel
Ms Sujata Gardi

Entity over which key managerial personuel or their relatives are able ta exercise significant inflaence

Synersoft Technologies Privats Limited

. Por the year ended For the year anded
Nature of transactions with related parties March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Joint venture in which the compuny is @ venturer
Ingenuity Bioyciences Private Limited
Investment in equity shares 350 -
Reimbuesement of expenses incurred 6.81 -
Rent income 008 -
Associate
Bioneeds India Private Limited
Investment in equity chares 366.71 -
Interest Income on ungecured loan given 1.25 =
Loan given 23330 -
Entitv over which key manngerial persunnel or their relatives
are able to exercise significant influence
Synersoft Technologies Private Limited
Availment of services for development of software 014 002
Ke® mansagerial personnel
Remuneration {incduding perquisites)
1. Mr. Apurva Shgh 308 20.73
2 Mr. Binoy Gardi 3.06 38.84
3. Mr. Ajay Tandon 15.00 13.19
Professional fees paid to nom-executive director
1. Mr. Kiran Marthak 1.3] -
Sulury (including perquisites)
L. Mr. Nirmal Bhatia 11.87 11.51
Rent - expense
1. Mr. Apurva Shah 0.55 160




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (farmerly lmown as *Veeda Clinical Research Piivate Limfted®)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2021
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Nature of transactlions with redated parties

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Reimb t of expenses
1. Mr. Apurva Shah

2. Mr. Binoy Gardi

3. Mr. Ajay Tandon

4. Mr Kiran Marthak

5. Mr. Nirmal Blsatia

W k agerial personnel

Salary
1.Ms Spjata Gardi

0.01
0.24

020
0.02
0.22

024

20.26

Outstanding balances at the end of the yenr

As at
March 31, 2021

As af
March 31, 2020

As al
April 01, 2019

Joint venture in which the company is a venturer
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Reimbursement receivable

Associnte
Bioneeds India Private Limited
Loan given (including interest accrued)

Key manageriai perscanel

Remuneration puyable (including perquisites)
1. Mr. Apurva Shah

2. Mr. Binoy Gardi

3. Mr. Ajay Tandon

Professional fees payable to nom-execative director
1. Mr. Kiran Marthak

Salary payable {including perquisites)

1. Mr. Nirmal Bhatia

Reimb t of exp payable

1. Mr, Apurya Shah

2. Mr. Binoy Gardi

3. Mr. Ajay Tandon

Belatives of key managerial personng]

Sulary payable
1. Ms. Sujata Gardi

7.61

234.55

232
82)
1.08
Q.16

0.79

551

528
105

081

009

565

0.63

051
002

Terws and condifions of fransactions with related parties

(i) The company's transactions with refated parties are at am’s length. Management believes that the company’s domestic and international
transactions with related parties post March 31, 2020 continue to be at atm’s length and that the transfer pricing legislation will not have any impact on
the financial statements particularly on the amount of the tax expense for the year and the amount of the provision for taxation at the year end.

(2) The future liability for gratuity and compensated absence is provided on aggregated basis for all the employees of the company taken 25 a whole,
the amount peraining to key managerial personnel is not ascertainable separately and therefore not included above

(3) Loan to associate

The loan granted (o Bioneeds India Privatc Limited is intended to fund the rspayment of its CVCFL liability, The loan is unsesured and is repayable an
or before final matwrity date which shall nol be later than 3 months from the datc of disbarsement or such other date as mutually agreed among the
perties to loan. Loan carries interest rate of 15.00% p.a. compounded annually. The loan has been utilized for the purpose for which it was granted.

Commitment with reated party

The company has not provided any commitment to related pasty as at March 31, 2021 (Mareh 31, 2020: Nil; April 01, 2019 Nil).
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24 Corporate social responeibility (CSR) expenditure

: Fuor the year ending For the year eading
ERHicsiars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
The gress amound required to be spent by the company on the
a) corporate sacial responaibility (CSR) activities during the year as 840 2]
per the provisions of Seetion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
b) Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year 841 L 50
c) Amount Spent during the year In cash Yt'i:'c::: aid Total In cash Y"ilo‘::: L Total
i) Canstruction/facquisition of asset - = > = - -
11} On purposcs alher than (i) above 241 - R.41 1.50 - 1.50

d) Details related to spentfunspent obligations:

i} Contribution ta public truss -
ii) Contribution to charitable tn.fslMssucialion of person 2.4) R 941 1.50 . 150

registercd undor Seclion 124 of income tax Adt, 1961
#i) Unspent amount in selation (o;

- Ongoing project = :
- Other than ongoing project - - = 771 = 771
Total 8.4 g 3.41 9.21 - 921

Details of does to micrp smd srull enterprises us per MSMED Act, 2006
The Mindstry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises hac issued an offica memocandam dated August 26, 2008 wiich recommends that the Micre and Small Esterprises
should mendion in their correspondence with its the Entr M dum Number a5 all d after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the

‘Micra, Small and Mediumn Enterprises Develop Act, 2006" (‘the MSMED Act).

Accordingly, the disclosure in yospect of the amounts payabls to such Enterprises as at March 3t, 2021 has been made in the Financial Statements based on information
received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in d with the provisions of the Act
is ot oxp i to be il The Compeny has not received any claim for i from any Supplier as o the Bal. Sheet date.

The details as required by MSMED Aet are given below,

. " As a( Asat =
artievlars Mareh 31 March 31

2021 ’ 2120 * | Apri 01,2019
The principal amount and the interest due theveon remaining unpaid te any supplier as a¢ the end of
|'accounting year;
Principal and interest amount
Treda payable 1139 629 1721
ng'ml payable Q34 0.04 0.53
The amount of interest paid by the buyer under the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the smounts of the
pay made to the supplicr beyond the appointed day during each accounting year, 4e2d 16,12 1970
The amount of intevest due and payable for the year (where the peincipal has becn paid but interest
under the MSMED Act not paid), 0.03 .03 0.32
The amount of interest actrued and remaining unpaid et (he end of ac ing yewr; and - 0.03 0.4G
The amount of further interest due and payable even in the ding period, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small caterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a - - -
deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006.

On basis of information and d ilable with the Company, the above disclosures are made in 1espect of amount due 1o the micro and small enterprizes, which have
been regi: d with the rek g authoritics. This has been relied upon by the auditors
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26 Segment reporilag
The ¢compuay is mainly d in the businzss of Clinical R h for various Pharmaceuticals Companies The company’s business falls vithin a smple business ssgment of

L)

‘Clinical Research' and 2B the activities of the Company revolve around this main bnmm The Chief Operating declszon maker (CODM) monitors the opemmg msn[ls of the

business as & wiwle for the purpose of making decmons about resowrce allocation and p asy t Th views pany's b ly a5 2
sing(e segmont and therc arc no scp ep o m terms of the requircments of Tnd AS 108 "Operating Segmm" as natified under seclion 133 of the companies Act

2013

Geagraphbical segment

For the pany is organized into cwo mejor operming geopraphics Indie and outside India. More then 30% of the Compmys business | u ﬁ'om lndm there
are no indivigual fmel,g,n countries wﬂnbullng material revenue Thus, the segment reverue, segment agsets mnd inds| cowr incinrad to acq o assets are disclosed injo twe
operating geographics [ndia and outsade India in the financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2021

Year ended Year tnded
Revenue from external customers March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2020
India 62343 540,04
Qutside India 1,334.71 860 62

The fallowing is an anabysis of the carrying amount of non-curcem assets, which do not include deferred tax asseis, income tax assets and financial assers analyzed by the
goographical erea in which the assets ar loceted:

: - As at March 31, | As at Mareh 31,| Asat April 01,
Carrying amount of num=currcal operating assels 2820 2018
India 756 83 783 .60 84419
Outside India = < =

Information about major cusiomery;
The company bas wsscssed that there are oo extemil customers from which the revenue from transaclions is 10% or more of the company's total reveaus for the year ending March

31, 2021, for the year ending March 31, 2020,
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27 Finaneial - Rair value hk h
The significanc accounting pokicias, mcluﬁgdn crilota for tecopgnilion, the bass of nd the basiz on wdiich income and experisas are recognized, in resprot of each class of fnancial
asset, financial Bability and squity Instrument arc discloscd i poto 2 1o the Standslons Financial Si
Fair valoes
A. Catepory-wice etacxilieation of fiaanelal ingirument
The carsying vius of inencial & y ies as of March 31, 2021, Masch 31, 2020 and April 01, 2019
Az Axat Asat

| Purticulars ot Maych 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2028 Apwil 0, 2019
Pinaacial assets:
At cost
Investments 41 Ry ¥ - -
Toral a70.21 - -
At amortized eost
Loans 45 23455 - -
‘Trade receivobles 42 451.51 16048 9033
Cash and cadh equivalenis 43 149.6) 14412 176.60
Other bank balances 44 2844 3161 2337
Other financial assets (current) 46 17410 146.74 &5.67
Othec finawicial assets (non-curvent} 46 71.9% 6958 26.93
Teta) 111620 75250 49390
Tool 1.480.4! 75250 69350
Fair valoe through prafit and loss
Itws 41 298 52 - 18 33

293.52 - 18.53
Total imancial assels 1.778.93 782.50 7r2.43
Finumcial liabilities
At amortized cosc
Bomowmngs lal 24122 1669) 4884
Trade payables 102 123 27 3743 i21.63
Lease liabilities 30 43402 3923 22459
QOaher financil hiabiltties (cutent) 103 7347 7843 13073
Oxher financial liabilties (non-current) 163 0% 050 050
‘Total 374.48 72568 42629
At fair vatue threugh profit & loss
Mark o tmarke Lability on forward contracts 13 13 1522 -
‘Total 0.13 1522 =
‘Total linancial ksbilitics R7461 740,52 52629

The mursgement assessed diat carrying vabacs of financial assets i ¢, tash 1d <ash squivalants, trads payables, trade receivables and other financial assels and liabslitics as at March 31, 2021, March
31,2020 and April 01, 2009 are reasouable approximations of chair fair valuzs largely due 16 the shortsterm maturities of these insromants.

The fair valuz of the financial asscts and liabilitées is included ar the amount a1 which the @ could be exch d in a currend trumaction bolween wilting pasties, other (hen in & forced or
Rquidation sale

Fuii* valoe Werarchy

The fhir valuc of the Financial Asscts and Liabiitees is included at xhn amount K which thn instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing paries, other than i a breed or
liquidation sale The Compeny uses the fallowing hi hy for g andloe disclosing the fair value of Financial Instruments by valusiion techniques:

{ib Lovel 1; quated prices {unadjusted) in active mackets for identical Assets or Lishilitiex

() Level 2: inputs other tha quoted prices included within Leve) | that are observable for the Assais or Lisbilities, either directly (i ¢, as prices) or usdirectly (i ¢ . denived from prices)

(i} Level 3: inputs for the Asgets or Liabilitias that are not based on observable matket dats (urobsarvable inputs)

Q itative disel v fair value measwwment hicrarchy :
Fair Value p
Particulars — Az at Asat Fuie Value biorwschy|  S8e=t

Parch 31. 2021 Macele 31,2020 | Awil 01,2019 Hmrreabie mpur
Investment in mu i and | fer NAY Statement
;:;r:s ment in muetual Funds 2 Fair value through profit and lnss (refer note 208 $2 . 18 53 Level-t jed by fund
Mark to market ligbility o farward contracts {rekier notc 10.3) a13 1592 . Level2 MTM ‘;::‘:“‘“' by
Fi Ial [ | ar amartized cost
The camrying amount of financial assets and Rnancial lisbilnies d a ized cost in the financial asa ble approximation of their fair vahis since the Company doea not

awiaipots tha tha carrying amounts would be significantly diffecent from the values that would eventually be recewed or settled

Recanciliation of level 1 fair values
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balance to the chosing balances or level 1 fair values representing investment in shoet term Jiguid matoal fuods.

Particulars Asut Asxt
Murch 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Opening balaes = 1853
Net ymin on investment in mutual funds 431 -
Purch a7 -
453 %2 1853
298.52 =
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2%

Finanedal risk 8 abjee(tves and peiic

The company's principal fimanoial liabilies compeise loans and bocrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial linbilivies is 10 finance the compamy's
£ Th pany's pwincipel financial assots inclada ¢rade and other recaivebles and cash and cash equivalants that derive diractly feom its epaeralions

The company ia exposed to mazrket risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The /' senior the of these eigles and ensures that financiel risk activities

aee gaverned by apgropriate polictes and pracedures and that financial risks are identified, d and ped in th with the campany’s policies and risk objectr

{8) Market risk

Market nsk is the risk that lhe fnrw]uc of future cash flows of a fi inl i will it ® of changes in market prices Market risk comprises bwo types of risk: mierest

rate risk and y risk Fi r affecied by macket nisk include b ings. ivables, pavebles and deposi

The semsitivity analysis in the following seclions relatz to the position as at March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 & April UI 2019, The sensiniviry analysis has been prepared on the basis

thal the amownt of ket debil end the propomion of fimencia) instre mﬁomm cucrencies are i The | the impact of in markel variables on the

cacrying vahucs of gratuity and other past rcts bligations and pr s

‘The sensilivity of the rebevant profil or loss item is the effect of the d changes in respective morkst risks. This i based on the linancial assets and financial lisbilities held at March

31, 2021, March 3), 2020 & Agril, 01, 2019

Expadure 10 inderest rare visk
Company's interest rale risk arises from borrowigs obligations Borrowings issued expose (o fuir valus interest rate risk The interest rate profile of the company's interest-bearing

Financial Tosoruments as reported to the managemant of the company is as follows

Variable-rate instruments As "::;:‘}' 3 | A if:':;;"l 3, | As 3!;:':!;3! o1,
Mon-curreal bortowings - - -
Current borvowings 93.22 166.91 48 84
Cuwrent portion of long tam b ings - - 5415
Interest rafe semsidvity:

A reasonsbly possible chatige of 100 basis peints in intarast rates at cthe reporting date would have increased Adecreased) equity and profit or low by the amowus shaown helave This
anclysis assumes (hat all other verables, in particulas foreign cucency exchange rales, remain

Profit or {loss) Equity, net of tax
Pariicnl
i 100 bp 1006p d 190 b i 108 bp d
March 31, 2021
Nou-cusreat borrowings - = = -
Current borrowings (0.93) nsl {7 070
Cuneat pordon of kong (erm borowings = = = =
Yaral 1D.93) 033 {0.70) 0.7
March 31, 2020
Non-current horrowings - ] - -
Cusrent bomowings (1 67) 1 67 {1.25) 125
Curent portian af'lany teem borrowings - - - -
Toial (167) 1.67 (125 123 |
Foreizn currency rkk
Foresgn curvency sisk is the cisk dhat the fair valve or future cash flows of an exyy will i b of changes in foreign wech mies The comnanys exposure (o the nsk of
changes in foreign exchangs rates relatas to the paNY's o 1g activities d ingted i United States Dollae (USD), Euro (EUR), British Pound Sterling (GBP) and Brazilian real
{BRL)
The following tabla suts forth inf ? [ating 10 unhedyed foreign Y esp as acharch 31, 202), March 31, 2020 and April 01,2019
(i) Foreign currency veceivables:
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As at April 01, 2019
Particulars In foreign Amouni in Rs. In foreign Amount in Rs. In foreign Amounat in Rs.
curieney milllinn turrency swillion curremcy milllon

Trade receivables:
- US Doltars - = = * 3103853 21470
- Euro 1,389,410 136.85 792,100 0573 B31,831 6464
-BRL 183,021 237 = - - -
- British Pound Sterling 4,038 04z 64,692 602 55,893 506
Advance o ereditor:
- IS Dollars 3,123 023 = - - 2
Total - 13587 = 71.80 = 334.90
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Notres to the St inl §¢ for the year ending March 31, 2021
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1al e

(i) Foreign currency payables:

A3 st Mereh 31,2021 Ag nt March 31, 2020 As at April 01, 2019
Paeticulars 1o ferdign Ampsnt ir Rr. Ia foreign Amguat in Re. In foredgn Armeunt in Ra,
currency milkdon EWyrEnY niillisn currescy muillieen

Trade payables:

- US Dollars 5,01¢ 350 11,047 0383 - -
Rerewines

=US Dollars = = 2214,122 16691 706,115 4B.84
- 15 Dollars 78,527 35.77 441,974 3332 316,652 21.90
~Buro - - 13,707 114 26,50 206
Other payahles:

- US Dolfars 235,607 1732 155,205 1200 5,588 E08
- British Pound Sterling - - - 3 58.500 520
Totad - 28.68 = 214,20 72.1%
Foregn curraney ssnsativity

The following tables demonstrate the senaitivity ta a reasonably possible change in USD, Buro, BRL & Brinsh Pound Sterling exchange saes, with all other variables held constant The
impact an the company’s profit befose tax is dua to changes in the fair value of moaetary assets and liabilnies

Particulars Profit or (loss) Equity, net of tax

Eftect in amount Stesngthanimg Weakening Sirengthening Weakening
March 31, 202t

$% Maveent

UsD (1.43) 143 {1.09) 10?7
EUR 6 84| (6 84) 512 (512
BRL D 12| ©12) 009 {00%)
British Pound Sterling 003 ra MJ 003 (0 02)
Moarch 31,2028

5% Movement

usD 19.65) 10.65 (197) 197
EUR Eb (3 23) 242 (242)
British Pound Sterling 030 {030} 023 (023)
{b) Credit elalr

Credit risk is (he risk lhm counterparty will not meet its obli under a finaneial i or leading to e financial loss The pany ig expoted to eredit risk
{rom its operali ies (primanily rade jvables) and fram its i g activities, inclnding deposits with banks and fi inl m d fozoign exchang and ather

fiuancial instry mem:

Tvade Receivables

Tradc Reccivebles of the company are unsecured Credit risk is managed trough pericdie monitoring of the sreditworthiness of customers irs the normal cownse of busaness, The

of Trade bles s created to the sxvent and a3 and svhen required, based wpon the cxpected calloctability of recaivables The
the concentration of cisk witis 1e5pect o rade receivables as low, 25 its Customess ere group of repute
The exposure to cradit risk for tade receivable by hic region are as foll
P ulars As a( March 31, | As at March 31, Asut Apid 01,
21 2020 2019
Domestic 1me2 18709 12303
Other regions 29629 20637 28717
Tetal 462.21 IN46 410.20
Age of trade receivables
Particulars As ot March 3, | AsarMarch 31, | Asai Apell 1,
2021 2824 2019
Not due 21066 1066.77 16939
01-30 days past dus 7552 93.22 7668
31-60 duys past due 26 B4 339§ 7541
161-90 days past due A 15.10 662
91-350 days past dus 4872 106,31 €878
Maere tham 360 days past dus A 13.10 1332
Total 467.21 A73.46 410.20

company evaluaics
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Finuncial instruments and cash deposies

for ihe year ending March 31,2021

y's treasery d

with the P

Credit sk from balances with banks and financial i

are made only with approved counterpartics and widiin credit limits

is ged by the
d to each

C

mdn limnils are

's palicy. Investments of surplis funds

d by the comp

y's Board of Di on an

annual basis, and may be opdated throughoix the year subject 1o approval of the semior managemenL The limits are set to mininize the conconiation of risks and therefore mitigate
financial loss through comntarparty's potentie] fuifure to make payments.

() Liquidity risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to mect its peosent and fshure cosh and
to, ¢ all times maintin optimum levels of liquidity to meet §ts cash and

"Im‘mc y's objective is

without i
¢losely monitoss its liquid

ty posilion and deploys a mb\\sl cash

| vequi

The comp

management system It mainwmins adequate soorces of fancing through vanious short ieam and long berm loans a1 an optimezcd cod.

The able below summarizes the maturity profile of the company’s financinl liabilities based vo | wndi dg
Particulars On dJemand Luss than L yuar | Lyearco Syears | Bfore than 5 years Total
As at March 31, 2021
Baorrowings 9322 15000 - . un
Trade payables - 12327 - - 12327
Lease Liabilities - 5748 23060 14594 434.02
Other fnancial linbilities # - 73.60 - 050 74.10
Total 93.22 435 234.60 14644 £74.61
As at March 31, 2020
Borrowings 16691 - - - 166.91
Trade payables - 8743 - - 37.43
Leage liabitiea - 3784 22502 12047 392.33
Dther i ial liabilities # - 9363 - 059 94.13
Total 18691 213.90 225.02 119.97 740.28
Asal Aprd 61,2012
Bormowings 48384 - - - 4384
Trads payabies - 121.63 - = 12163
Leasa liabilines - 3033 16290 3136 22459
Other linbilities ¥ - 13072 - Q950 13122
Tetsl 48,84 282,68 162,90 31, 526,28
# Includes curreot matwities of fong fem borrowings and interestacerued and due on borrowings

29 Capital monagracni
The company aiins o 13 capital efficiently so a3 1o safegumrd 43 rbility to as a yoing and Lo returns lo the sharehoiders.
The capital swucnire of the compaiy is based on s judge of the appropeiate bal af key of in arder to mee{ itg stratcgic and day-to-day needs We consider the

ditions and the risk ch

of the underlying asscis. In order o

nmaumofupmlmpmpuhmﬁumknndmw;wumlalwwmomlwuof + in

maintain or adjust the capital structure, the compamy may adjust the amosnt of divid

barebold

ds paid to

reiurn capital to sharaholders or issee new shares

The company "a policy is to maincain a stable and srony capital structure with 3 focus on total eqully 50 a6 1 mamtin investor, creditors and 10 suseain fucate devebopment and growth of

isb The pamy will ake appropeiate staps in ofder to maimain, or if necessary adjusy, its cupital stenciurs.
No changes were made in the objeclives, policies o« pr for g capital during tha years ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 and April 01, 2019

R As at March 31, | AsatMarch 31, As at Apr 01,
Puriiculas 2021 2020 2019
Debt (refer below nate) 24322 166,91 10299
Less: Cash and eash equivalents 148 61 14412 17660
Net debe 93.61 .79 {73.61)|
Bquity share capital 60t 587 587
Instruments i the nature of equity 352.30 35230 35130
Other equity £.339.27 521.B3 52).54
Total equicy 1,697.53 §50.00 81371
Net debt te eguity ratio 5.51%! 2.59% -
Note:
i) Delt is defined a5 long: b ings, shoet-term k ings and curreac of bomg-term b ings {excluding 6 | ¢ and e id

-

;, it (3 oot

d for

iij Since net debt 4o cquity ralio as at April 01, 2019 is
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30

0

iy

)

Lezier

Company us a Lessee:

1n b

The company hias operatinyg lease for vasious p

company hes availed tha axemption of low value of asses. The company haz opred to apply for 'Fufl R

which are ble oo a p

ls:B

1 Lease huated by the are fixed

aniginal leass term. Useful Jife of righi of use asset for computation of
method

not ising any
on right of use assels is assumad to be the term of the lease and methad used is Straight-line

al its aption The luu w'ns of premises are between 3 10 9 ysars The
undet Ind AS 116 with the date of kasc

or | optians 16 trminate or extend thy

The company has tuken certain premises on lease wherein lease rent is of low value amouating to Rs. 192 naillion far the year ended March 31, 2021 (Masch 31, 2020: Rs. 1.06 million)

The cempany applies low value lease reni exemption for shese leases

The carrying value of right of use and depreciation charged duting the yuar

iv)

v}

vi}

Asai As at Agat
Partiulars Marrch 31 2021 Mareh 31, 2020 Auri 01, 2019
Premises
Opening balance 34077 18717 18717
Additions during the yvar 8084 21006 -
D jation charged during the year (refer note 3) (56.52) (56 46) -
Closlws balance 363.00 340.77 187.17
The movement i lease Jiabilities during the yeae
Asai As nt Asag
pasticuian Mareh 30, 2021 March 31. 2020 Aprl 01, 2019
Opening Walance 39233 224 59 224 %3
Addidons 8005 20724 .
Payment of Icasc liabilitics (7795) (B0 84) -
Interest expenses {refer note 17) EERTY 4134 -
Ciosing bulance 434.02 392133 224.59
Balances of lease liabilities
. Asar Az at As at
LT Mavch 31, 2021 Marvh 31, 2020 Apri 01, 2610
Current Jease liabiliizs 5148 3TH4 3033
| Non-curren lease dabilitles 176 54 35449 10426
Total 434.02 39233 224.59
Amound recoynized in stalement of profit and loss during the year
= For the year ended For the year endcd
b ) Mareh 31, 2029 March 31, 2020
Depreciation expense on right of uye asset {refer note 3) 5852 3646
Interest =xpenae an lense linbilities (rafer nore 17) 3959 4194
E relating 10 bow value leases {incloded in ather (rcfer note | B) 192 1.06
Tatal 1040.03 59.56
Maturity analysis of leass ligbiliting
Particubirs Asat Asat Asat
March 3), 2024 March 31, 2020 April D1, 2019
Maturity analysis of | undiscounted cash flows
Less than one ysar 5748 3784 3033
Dae to five years 23060 22502 16290
Mare thun fivayenrs 14594 129 47 313
Tutal 434.02 39233 245
A t ized w cash flow S
Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
_March 31, 2021 Mareh 31,2020 |
Total cash outflow for leases 77.958 3084
Totadl 7795 20.54




Veeda Clinical Resenrchk Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited"™)
Notes fo fse Stacdalone Finaacial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in rupees miltion, mless atherwise stated)

31 First-time adoption ot Ind AS

These financial statzments, for the year ended 31 March 2021, are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For all periods up
to and including the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, rcad together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 {Indian GAAF)

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial stalements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on March 31, 2021, together
with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020, zs deseribed in the smnmary of significant accounting policies. In
preparing (hese financial statements, the Company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at Aprii 01, 2019, the Company’s date of transition to Ind
AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet
as at April 01, 2019 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions and exceptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS

{a) Decmed cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopler to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognized in the
financial statements zs at the date of (ransition after making necessary adjusiments for de-commissioning liabilities. This cxemption can alse be used
for other intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible assets and Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development Accordingly
the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets, Capital work-in-progress and infangible asscts
under development at their Previous GAAP carrying value.

(b) Designation of previously recognized financial instruments
Financial assets and (inancial liabilities are classified at fair value through profic or loss based on facts and circumstances as at the date of transition to
Ind AS ie April 01, 2015. Financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value as at the date of wransition to Ind AS i.e April 01, 2019 and not

from the date of initial recognition.

¢) Estimates

The cstimates at 1 April 2019 and at 31 March 2020 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAP except
impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model and unquated equity shates at fair value through profit or loss. The estimates used
by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at April 01, 2019, the date of transition to Ind AS and as of
March 31, 2020

d) Leases

Ind AS 116 requires an entity lo assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a Jease According to Ind AS 1186, this assessment should be cacded
out at the inception of the contract or amangement However. the Company has used Ind AS 101 exemption and assessed all arrangements based on
conditions in place as at the date of transition.

) Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the

date of transition to Ind AS

Reconciliation between previously reported Indian GAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires an eatity to reconcilc equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the
reconciliation from erstwhile Indian GAAP to Ind AS.




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Yeeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the ycar eaded March 31, 2021

(All amoonts tn rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

i

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the balance sheet as st April 01, 2019

Notes to first time

Amount as per

Effects of transition Amount as per Ind

adpption Indian GAAP to Ind AS AS
Assets
Noa-current assets
(a) Property, plant & equipment 37433 - 374.33
(b} Capital work-~in-progress 74.10 = 74.10
(¢) Right of use asaets 1 - 187.17 187.17
{d) Other intangible assets 39 - 3.19
{e) Intangible assets under development 326 - 326
(f) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 2 3075 (3.82) 2693
(¢} Deferred tax assets (net) 4 44.60 488 49.48
(h) Income tax assets (nel) 76.68 - 76.63
(i) Other non-current assets 214 - 214
609,08 188.23 797.28
Current assets
(a) Inventaries 4732 - 47.32
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 5 17.72 0.81 18.53
(1) Trade receivables 3 40211 2.78) 399.33
(1#i) Cash and cash equivalents 176.60 - 176.60
(iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above 2537 - 2537
(v) Other financial assets 65.67 - 65.67
(c) Other cutrent assets 17,23 - 17.25
752.04 (1.97) 750.07
Tatal asscts 1,361.09 186,26 154735
Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 5.87 - 5487
(b) [nstruments in the nature of equity 352.30 - 35230
(c) Other equity 1405 536.93 (15.39) 521.54
Total equity 895,10 {15.39) 879.71
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilitics
(i) Lease liabilitics - 194.26 193426
{ii) Other financial liabilities 1 2211 {21.61) 0.50
(b) Provisions 20.80 - 20.80
42.91 172.65 215.56
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 48.34 - 48 84
(ii} Lease liabilities - 30.33 3033
(ii1) Trade payables
(&) total outstanding dues of micro
entesprises and small enterprises 1721 ) 1721
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 10449 ) 10443
(iv) Other Gnancisl liabilities [31.49 (0.76) 130.73
{b) Other current liabilities 1 110.64 (0.57) 110.07
{c) Provisions 10.47 - 10.47
423.08 2%.00 452.08
Total liabilities 465.9% 201.65 667.64
1,361.09 186.26 1,547.35

Total equity and liabilitics




Veeda Clinical Rescarch Limited {formerly known as “"Veeda Clinice! Research Private Limited")
Nates to the Standalene Financial Statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in rupees millfon, cnless otherwise stated}

ii) _Effect of Ind AS adoption on the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020
Notes ta first thme  Amaount a5 per Effects of transition  Amoumt as per Xnd

adeption Indian GAAP to Ind AS AS
Assefs
Non-current assefs
{a)} Property, plant & equipment 429.08 = 429.08
{(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 = =
{c) Right of use assets | - 340.77 340.77
(d) Other intangible assets 670 - 6.70
{¢) Intangible assels under development 508 - 508
(D) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 2 75.4| (5.86) 69.55
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 4 4696 818 55.14
{(h) Income tax assets (net) 15281 - 152.81
(i) Other non-current assers 1.97 - 1.97
Current azsets 718.01 343,09 1,061.10
{a} Inveniories
(b) Financial Assets 4775 47.75
(i) Trade receivables 3 365.27 4.89) 360.48
(ii) Cash and cash cquivalents 144.12 - 144.12
{ili) Bank balance other than included in {ii) above 31.61 - 3161
(iv) Other finzncial assets 146.74 146.74
{¢) Other current assets 2370 = 23.70
759.29 (4.89) 754.40
Total assets 147730 338.20 181550
Equity and liabilities
Equity
{a) Equity shar¢ capital 5.87 - 587
{b} Instruments in the nature of equity 35230 - 35230
(<) Other equity 14 347.52 (25.69) 521.83
Total equity 905.69 (25.6%) 830.00
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Jiabilities
(i) Lease liabilities - 354.49 354,49
(ii) Othert financiat liabilities | 24.63 (24.13) 0.50
(b) Provisions 24 83 - 24.83
Deferred tax Liabilities (net) 4946 330.36 379.82
Current lishilities
{a) Financial Ligbilities
(i) Borowings 166.91 - 16691
(ii) Leasc liabilities - 3784 37.84
(ii) Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and fmall enterprises 6.29 = w2
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other 81 14 B 8114
than miero enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilitics 1 93.64 93.64
(b) Other current liabilities 162,88 (431} 15857
{c)} Provisions 11.29 - 1129
522,15 33.53 555,68
Total liahilities £71.61 363.89 935.50

Total equity and liabilities 1,477.30 338.20 1.815.50
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Notes to the Standalone Fi ial $ ts Tor the year ended March 31, 2021
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iii) Effect of Ind AS adoption on the statemment of profit and legs for the year ending March 31, 2020

Notes to irst time  Amount as per Effects of transition Amount &s per Ind
sdaptian Indiaw GAAP to Ind AS AS
Revenue from operations 1,512.74 - 1,512.74
Other income 2 23.27 0.80 24.07
Total income 1,536,01 0,80 1,536.81
Cost of materials consumed 132.85 - 132.85
Employee bencfit cxpenscs 6 54229 0.97 54326
Finance costs 1 383 42.11 5094
Depreciation and smortization expenses 1 101.58 56 46 158.04
Qther expenses 1,3,5 72692 (84 17) 642.75
Totul expense 1,512.47 15.37 1,527.84
Profit before tax 23.54 14.57) 8497
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 15.30 1530
(2) Deterred tax 4 (235) {3.55) (590)
Total tax expense 1295 (3.53) 940
Profit after tax 10.59 (11.02) {0.43)
Other comprehensive income
Itemns thas will not be reclassified to profitor loss in
subsequent periods:
Re-measurement pains / (lasses) on defined benefit plans 6,7 - 0.97 097
Income tax effect 4 = (0.25) (0.25)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - 0,72 0.72
Totul comprehensive income for the year 10.59 {10.30) 0.29
iv) Rexoncillation of tota) equity as at March 31, 2020 and April 01,2019
Equity reconciliation
Notes to first time Asat Asat
adoption March 31, 2020 April 01, 2019
Tatal equity as per previous GAAP 547,52 536.93
Impact an account of application of Ind AS 116 (net) 1,2 (28.98) (19.07)
Impact of Impairment allowance on trade receivables 3 {(4.89) 2.78)
Change on account of fair value adjustment of financial instruments 5 - Q.81
Others . 0.77
Impaci of above adjustments on deferred taxes 4 818 4.38
Closing balance of equity 321.83 521.54
v)  Impact of above Ind AS adjustments in the statement of cash flaws for the year ended March 31, 2020 is as follows.

Cash flow reconciliatian far the year ended March 31, 2020
Particulars Indian GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Net cash flow from aperating activities 10.42 30.84 91.27
Net cash flow from investing activities (90.23) - (90.28)
Net cash flow from financing activities 46.38 (30.84) (3447
Net incesase in cash and cash cquivalents {33.48) - (33.48)
Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign currency cash and cash ¢ 1.00 - 1.00
Cash and cash equivelents at the beginning of the year 176.60 176.60
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 144.12 = 144,12




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to the Standzlone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{AM amounts in rupees million, uoless otherwise stated)

Notes to first-time adoption

1. Leases

Under Previons GAAP, lease rentals were recognized as an expense after giving straipht lining impact Under Ind AS 116, the lessee shali recopnize
right of use assets and lease liabilities at the inception of lease. Right of use asset shall be depreciated over the lease period and lease liability shall be
classified as financial liability and finance cost shall be charged on it for each reporting period The above calculated amount is cumulative of
depreciation on right-of-use assets, finance cost element and reversal of lease rent expenses,

2. Interest free security deposits given

The Company has given certain interest frec sccurity deposits towards the Icase of its office premiscs. Under Indian GAAP, these depesits are recorded
at its kransaction valoe However, under Ind AS, these deposits are measored at its fair value on initizl recognition Interest income is accrued on
discounted value of these deposits and deferred rent expense is amortized to profit and loss aver the lease term

3. Impairment ullowance on trade receivables
Under Ind AS, impairment allowance on trade receivables has been determined based on ECL model This model considers the delay risk (i.e delayed
receipts of payments) and the default risk (i.e, non receipt of payments) for calculating the impairment loss an financial assets.

4, Deferred tax
The varicus transitional adjustments have led to temporary differences and aceordingly, the Company has accounted for such differences. Deferred tax

adjustments are recognized in correlation to the underiying transaction gither in retained earnings or a separate companent of equity

5.  Fair value adjustments on financial instruments
Current investments - Under Previous GA AP, current investments in instruments such as mutual funds are recognized at cost or net realizable value,

whichicver is lower Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value. The resulting fair value changes of these investments
have been recognized in retained carnings as at the date of transition and subsequently in Statemens of profit and loss for the year ended March 31,

6. Actoarial gain /loss transferred to Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, re-measurements i e actuarial gains and losses and the retum on plan assets, exeluding amounts included in the net interest expense on
the net defined benefit lisbility are recognized in other comprehensive income instead of Statement of profit and loss. As a result of this change, profil
for the year ended March 31, 2020 has increased by Rg. 0.73 million. There is no impact on total equity.

7. Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognized in a period should be inchuded in profit or loss for the period unless standard requires or
permnits otherwise Items of income and expensc that are not recognized in profit and loss but are shown in the Statement of profit and loss as 'other
comprehensive income’ includes remeasurement of defined benefit plans.

8. Qlassification and presentatian
The previous year Indian GAAP numbers have been reclassified/regrouped to make them comparable with Ind AS presentation.
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Notes to the Stawdalons Financlal § for the year eniling Mareh 31, 2021
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32 Emplayee stotk option plans

Undaer ESOP 2019, the board of directars is authorized (o grant optians ble inta subscriplion of shares of th pany. Each oplion shall be converuble inta
one equity share and the aggregate number of options subscribed indo shares shall riot exceed 5% of the paid-up capila} of the company ie 34,055 options The
options yremted under BSOP 2019 wifl be exercizablc al an exercise price of Rs. 10,644 par stiare (Rs 1 77.40 afier considering effect of splil and bonus issus). If
the oplionz expire or become unexercisable wilhow: haviag besn sxarcized m Tl the uaexercised options, which were subjest thereto, shall become avmilable for
future granL

The fasr value af the share options is cstimatcd pt the grant date using BlacksScholcs model, uking inte account the terms and condilions upon which the share
opions were geanied H the above perfi diton it omly contidered i d ining the number of i that will ulimatcly vest

The share options can be sxercised up 1o 48 months after 46 momths of vesting period and therefore, tha contractual term of each option granted is 94 monthe There
arp ne sash selllament altomatives. The company does not have B past practics of cash settlement For these share eptions The company accounws for the Veeda
Bmployse Stack Option Plan 2019 (VESP) as an equity-settled plan.

The oxp gnized foc empl ices received duriag the year is shown in ihe foliowing table;

Partical 44286 43921
Expense arising firom equitesenied sharevbased payment u"anunt-olu 392 -
Tatal expense avising fro:m sharc-based p: tr S92 -

There were no cancedlations or modifications to the Kwards in year endimg March 31, 2021 oc March 31, 2020

Movements during the year
The following table dluswares the ovnber and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movemeabs 1n, share aptions duting the yeer

Panicalars 44286 43921
Number WAEP Number WAEP

Outsh\ndiu_g ot the beginning of the year 13432 Rs 10,544 - -]
Granted during the year 6,812 Rs 10,544 14,244 Rs 10,644
Forfeited danng the year 664 < 812 x|
[Exercised during the year - - - -
Expired dwring the year - - = .
Outstandiig at the cad of the year 13480 Rs. 10644 13432 R 10,644
Exercisable at the end of the year £359 Rs. 10,644 - =

The weighted

The following wbles list the inputs to the models wsed foc the yeers ended March 31, 2021 snd March 31, 2020, respactively:

& | life for the share aptions autstanding as at March 31, 2021 is 5. 75 years (March 31, 2020: 6 39 yeams)
Ths weighted avenge fuir value of options gramed during the yoar was Rs 1,858 (March 31, 2020: Rs Nil)

44286 43521
Particulars VESP VESP
Weighted average fair values at the measurement date 1858 0
Dividend yietd (%) 0 0
Expected volarility (%} 2235 17 22
Risk—free injerest tate (%) 543 7133
Expected 1ife of share options (years) 375 639
Weighted avcrage share peice (Rs } 5,014 5,187
Muodel used Black-Scholes| Black-Scholes|

The expecied volatility reflecis the assumption that the historical valatility over a period simitar 1o the )ife of the options is indicative of funsa trends, which may not
ily be the acta)

33 An FIR dated Febnuary 13, 2021 was filed againsi five of our emplayees on allegations of falsifying government issusd identification documents of potential clinical
study valunteer participants. Although the person with regpect of whom the documeny was altegedly falsified was net a volunteer in our studies nor was the

Company named as an 3 1n the FIR, we canducted & deiled i igamion 3s per i igation plans dated Febrary 24, 202, as enhanced vide the version
dated April 01, 2021, 10 re=verify volunteer sdentification infarmation, eonfieny traceability of volunteer selated information and to reassess systems critical to the
conduct of studies While we defectad no wvidence of falsification of d at aur Meh ises, we ingtituled a corrective and preventive action plan

(“CAPA™) (0 improve our systems further. Fusther, the individual employee who is the prime accused in the FIR has since been suspended pending final
investigaions In the same context, the CDSCO, by 1tg ordurs dated August 9. 2021, cited the severcy of lapses and the lack of 8 system in place o mvoid incideacas
of genesation of fuke idemiry cards and screenimgfall and suspended tha of cur Meh facility for a period of thiny daws from the date of
cecoipt of the order, and suspended the registration of owr Shivalik and Vedant facilities For a pariod of scven days from the date of receipt of the ordess {the
“Ovdess”) During the period of susp , we were debarved from enrolling oew studies bt were allowsd to continue the ongoing studies across all three of sur
facilities. Operations st all the thyee Faoilities have now been fesumed and zll the stodies have now been rescheduled in subsoquent period
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerfy known as “Veeda Clinical Research
Private Limited™)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated FInancial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Yeeda Clinical Research
Limited (formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”) thereinafter referred to as
“the Company") and its associate and joint venture comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet
as at March 31 2021, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other
comprehensive Income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
fncluding a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Infermation
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the expianations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditor on separate financial statements and on the
other financial information of the Joint venture, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
give the information required by the Companles Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company, its associate and joint
venture as at March 31, 2021, their consalidated profit including other comprehensive income,
their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responslbilities for the Audit of the Consolldated
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company, its associate and
joint venture in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit oplnion on the conselidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors |s responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annuai Report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

SRBC &COLLP, 3 Limited Liabliity Partnershig with LLP kdenbity No, AAB-4318
Regd. Cffice : 22, Camas Streel, Block ‘B”, 3¢d Floar, Kolkata 700 016
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responslbility is to read
the other Information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
Inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolldated Financiai Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsibie for the preparation and presentation of these
conselidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financlal position, consolidated financial performance inciuding other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity
of the Company including its associate and joint venture in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the Company, Its associate and
joint venture are responsibie for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company, its associate and joint
venture and for preventing and detecting frauds and other Irreqularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
Company, its associate and joint venture are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company,
its associate and joInt venture to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but

to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the Company, its associate and joint venture are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Company, its associate and joint

venture.
Auditor's Responsibllities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financiai Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a kigh level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered materlal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
ontissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

* Obtaln an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3X1) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company
and its associate and joint venture to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company and its associate and Joint venture to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclesures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Company and its associate and joint venture of which we are
the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are
the independent auditors. For the other entity included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditor, such other auditors remain
responsible for the directlon, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them,
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other entities
included In the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance of the Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the Independent auditors with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
beaon our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Other Matter

(a) The consolidated financial statements also include the Company’s share of net loss of Rs. (2.91)

million for the year ended March 31, 2021, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements, In respect of one joint venture, whose financial statements, other financial
Information have been audited by other auditor and whose reports have been furnished to us
by the Management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this joint venture, and our reportin terms
of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid joint venture,
is based solely on the reports of such other auditor.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, s not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As

required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of

the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of joint
venture, as noted in the ‘other matter' paragraph we report, to the extent appiicable, that:

(@) We/the other auditor whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the

)

()

(d

(e)

information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
far the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

In our opinlon, proper books of account as required by law refating te preparation of the
aforesaid consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and reports of the other auditor:

The Cansolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financlal
statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company and
its associate as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company
and its associate and the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section
139 of the Act, of its joint venture, none of the directors of the Company its associates and
joint venture, incorporated in India, Is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its associate , incorporated in India, and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure” to this
report; This report does not include Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Compantes Act, 2013 (the ‘Report on internal financiai
controls’) of its joint venture, since based on report of other auditor and according to the
Information and explanation glven to us, the said report on internal financial controls is not
applicable to its Joint venture basis the exemption available to the Company under MCA
natification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated June 13, 2017, read with corrigendum dated July 13,
2017 on reporting on internal financial controls over financial reporting;

(@) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company and its associate and joint venture incorporated in India for the year ended March

31, 2021;

(h)y With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of the other auditor on separate financial statements as also the
other financial information of the joint venture, as noted In the ‘Other matter' paragraph:

i.  The consolldated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consofidated financial position of the Company, its associate and joint venture in its
consolidated financial statements - Refer Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements;

ii. The Company, its associate and joint venture did not have any materlal foreseeable
losses in long-term contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended

March 31, 2021;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Pratection Fund by the Company, Its associates and Joint venture,
incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2021.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

2
/per Sukrut Mehta
Partner
Membership Number: 101974
UDIN: 21101974AAAAEUT358

Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date: September 22,2021
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Annexure to the Independent Auditor's report of even date on the consolidated financial
statements of Veeda Clinlcal Research Limited (formerly known as "“Veeda Clinical Research

Private Limited'™)

Report on the Internal Financlal Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We were engaged to audit the internal financial control over financial reporting of Veeda Clinical
Research Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Company™), its associate and its Jjoint venture
which are companies incorporated in India, as of March 31, 2021, in conjunction with our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company, its associate and Jjoint venture, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on, the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of Its business, inciuding adherence to the respective company's policies, the
safequarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibllity

Our responsibllity is to express an opinion on the company and its associate’s internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, specHied under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both Issued
by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controis operated effectively In all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial contrels and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of Internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controfs over financial reporting with reference
to these consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controis with Reference to Consolidated Financlal Statements

A company and its associate’s internal financlal control with reference to consolidated financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company and its associate’s internal financial
control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those poliicies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonabie
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financlal controls with reference to these
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the interna! financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policles or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

fn our opinion, the Company and its associate, has, maintained in all material respects, an
adeguate internal financiai controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company consldering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

&
Lot

/ per Sukrut Mehta
Partner
Membership Number: 101574
UDIN: 21101974AAAAEU7358
Place of signature: Ahmedabad
Date: September 22,2021













Veeda Chinical Researdh Edmibted {formerly knows ns "Veeds Gimical Bescurch Private Lingited )
Statcznent of ¢canyplidatcd cash Bovrs lor the year ended 315t March, 2021
(AN 2inounts ja vupees raillEom, unless otherwise s(ited)

Nutes to statement of cash Mows:

1} The Stalement of Cash Flows hos been prepared under the [ndirect mathed os set aut i (nd AS T an Stalement of Cash Flows notified under Scction 133 of The Companies Act, 2013. read together
with Paragiaph 7 of e Corpanics (Indian A i dosd) Rules 2015 (as amended)

2) Changes in il ¢s arising from financing aetivities:
Particulars As ut April 0T, 2020 Cash flows {net) Others# As at March 31, 2021
Shiyrt-lerm bomrowings 16641 7531 > 243 22
Lense linbility 39233 (77.95) 119,64 434.02
Total 550,24 (1.64) 119.64 677,24
Particulag Asat April 01,3019 Cnsh Nlowa {neQ) Oshersd As at March 31, 2820
Einancing aetivities
Short-term b ] 45 54 11831 176 166,91
Long-terni bermowings (including currént matusity of lony terni barrowing) 3415 (54.15) - =
Lieasa liability 22459 (40 84) 24854 192 33
Tutal| 32758 {24.68) 256,34 559.24

¥ Others cobumn includes 1he effect of redassilication of lease liability and addilion to lease liability on account of Ind AS 116

Sumeary of signilcant accounling pelicies 2]

Summary of signifteant ing judg i ad i 22

‘The accompanying notes are an integral pasi of these somsolidated linuncial slalemats

AS pez our report of syen date

FarSRBC& Co. LLP For and an Belealf of the Beard of Direciors of

Chartered Accountants Yeeda Clinfeal Research Limltod

[CAI FRN; 324981 E/EI00003 (Sermarty Joown as “'Verda CBnlcal Rasearcli Private Limited')

per Splurst Mohiy Nitiw Deshawkh Ajuy Tandon Nienoal Bhwtia

Pariner Chalmssa Manngiag Di Company ¥ & CRO
Meobership No. 101974 DIN: 00060743 DIN: 0221U072 1CS] Membership No 12551
Date: Sepueinber 22 2021 Dale: Scptember 22, 2021

Place: Almedobad Place; Mumbai Place: Guropram Place: Abmedabad




¥eeda Clinical Resawrch Limited (feemerly Jnown as "Veodn Chinical Resenrch Private Limited )

kdnted ch

8 af
(All amsum iy im rmpecs million, unlesy otherwise stated)

in aquity for the year ended March 31, 2021

A) Equity shaie capital:
Equity shares of Re. 10 eacls issued, subscribed snd fully paid
Particalars Note Aregust
Tssued, Subscribed and fulty paid aquiry shares of Rs 10 each
Balance as at Apsll 1, 2019 587
Tssue of equity shares duning the year z -
Balance 21 at March 31, 2020 547
Lssve of cquity sharcs doring the year 8 0l4
Balamce a3 at March 31. 2021 6.01
B) [nstrumends in the pature of equity (Equity C of Comp ¥ Convertible Cumulative Pavticipatory Prifevence shares Class-A (CCCPS Cluas TA")
Particu!: Nute Amvun(
CCEPS Claas 'A"
Tasued, Subscribed and fully paid preference sharcs of Rs. 10 vach
Balance as at April 1, 2019 35230
Increase during tee yoar 8 5
Balarce as ut March 31,2020 35230
Increase Queing the year ] -
Bal ns a1 Mazeh 31, 2021 35230
C} Other equity
Other equity
Reserves und surplus
Paricutars
‘ Securities preminm Capitad redenplion|  Share options Retained bl
P reserve ding reserve EarmmEps
Balance as at Apedl 01, 2019 27314 33.94 - 21969 521.53
Loss for die year o = = (043) (043)
Other coprebengive ingome for the vear : s - 072 072
Tatal coraprehensive imcoxme Tor thie year - = - 0,20 nas
Balamce 35 at March 31, 2020 273.00 38.84 - 269.98 53182
Pyofit for the year < = - 629.67 62967
Other campreheasive logs for the year = = d (L17) i117)
Tatel comprchensive inconee for the year - = - 628,50 628510
On issue of aquity shares doring the year 1779 - - 17979
Share based payments {refer note 34) - - 594 - $94
Balance as ai March 31, 2021 A52.79 38.84 5.8 833.48 1,336,058
of significant ing policé 21
y of significani ing judg: i and 22

'1ry

Tha sccampacying bates are an integral parnt of these

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC & Co, LLP
Chererad Accounints

TCAT FRN: 324982E/E300003

per Subrut Mehen
Partner
Membeaship No. 101974

Date: Sepeember 22, 2021
Place: Ahmedabad

For aml on Behalf of the Bourd of Directers of

Veede Clinical Researeh Linsited

(formecly known a3 "Veeda Clinico| Research Private Limited")
(CIN : U731 00G)2004PLCO44023)

Nitin Deshmunkh Aley Tandon Nirmeal Bhatia
Chairman Mnnaping Dirsstor Company Secreiary & CFO
DIN: 00060743 DIN: 02210072 ICST Membasship No 12551
Date: September 22, 2021
Place: Mumbai Place: Ganigram Plage: Ahmedabad




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Notes to the consolidated Financial Staterents for the year ended March 31, 2021

1. Corporate information

Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited (“the Company™) is a private company domiciled in India
with its registered office at Shivalik Plaza — A, 2nd Floor, Opposite Ahmedabad Management
Association, Ambawadi, Ahmedabad, Gujarat — 380015, India. The Company was incorporated on
April 23, 2004 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India and is carrying on the
business of Clinical Research for various Pharmaceuticals Companies. The Company is a one roof
service global CRO specializing in the early clinical development of drugs with state-of-the-art
facilities in India. The Company provides a full range of services in phase I and II clinical research
with Clinical Data management, delivering expert and cost-effective research solutions to the
Pharmaceutical and Biotechnology Industries worldwide. The Company has become a Public
Limited Company w.e.f. June 30, 2021 and consequently the name of the Company has changed
from Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited to Veeda Clinical Research Limited,

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of
the directors on September 22, 2021.

2.1 Significant 2ccounting policies
(A) Basis of preparation and transition to Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division
II of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 1II), as applicable to
the Company.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 (Indian GAAP). These financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 are first time prepared in accordance with Ind AS.
Refer to note 29 for information on how the Company adopted Ind AS.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value / amortized cost (Refer note 25).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are
rounded to the nearest INR millions, except when otherwise indicated. The Consolidated Financial
Statements were not applicable for the year ended March 31, 2020 and hence comparative figures
for the year ended March 31, 2020 and as at March 31, 2020 and as at April 01, 2019 represent the
amounts as per Standalone Financials Statements of the company for the year ended March 31,
2020 and as at March 31, 2020 and as at April 01, 20189.

(B) Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprise the financial statements of the
company, its Joint Venture and its Associate acquired during the year ended March 31, 2021,
Control is achieved when the Company, its Joint Venture and its Associates are exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee.




Yeeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

The counsolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. Accounting policies are uniformly adopted
by the company, its joint venture and its associate.

The consolidated financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation were
drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Company.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed to the
equity holders of the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance,

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not
control ar joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Company’s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted by using the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the
Company’s share in net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill
relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
not tested for impairment individually.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Company’s share of the results of operations of the
associate or joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the
Company’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Company recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Company and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
associate or joint venture.

The aggregate of the Company’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown
on the face of the statement of profit and loss.

The Financial Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period
as of the Company.

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to
recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting
date, the Company determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the
associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Company calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture
and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as *Share of profit of an associate and a joint
venture’ in the statement of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
- Company measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
- the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
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control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in
profit or loss.

Particulars of consolidation

The Financial Statements of the following Associate/Joint Venture have been considered for

consolidation:
Nature of Percentage of voting Power as on
Name of the relation
Company with the March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 01,2019
company
Ingenuity
Biosciences Joint venture 50% - -
Private Limited
Bioneeds India . o
Private Limited | SS0ciate 30% - -

(C) Summary of significant acconnting policies
a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company, its associate and its joint venture presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet
based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

AW e

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is treated as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Hability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.

ek

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and labilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also its functional currency.
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency
_Spot rates on the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons,
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the Company uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the
transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or
statement of profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit and loss, respectively).

¢. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability

takes place either:
(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Cowmpany determines whether transfers have occumred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement
and for non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given
in the relevant notes.

(a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 25)
(b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 25)
(¢} Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 25)

d. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services is transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal
in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the

customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to
revenue from contracts with customers are provided in Note 2.2.

Sale of service

The Company’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple services to a
customer. Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when
the contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the contract, the parties to contract are
committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally
enforceable. The Company assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinet
performance obligations in the contract. Revenue from customer contracts are recognized on
straight line basis on these identified distinct performance obligations.

The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for other fixed-price
contracts. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the Company to determine the
actual efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the estimated total efforts or costs 1o be
incurred,

Contract Balances
Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from clinical services because the receipt
of consideration is conditional on successful completion of the project. Upon completion of the
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project and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to
trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment
of financial assets in section (p) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in section (p) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent

measurement,
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

¢. Other Income

Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation
exists.

f. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax reguiations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The company shall reflect the effect of
uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value
method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary di fferences, except:

i) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

i) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
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differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,

except:

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

i) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of defetred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
{either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set
off deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same tax

authority.
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

The company is not eligible for MAT credit entitlement since company has opted for lower tax rate
under section 115BAA of Income Tax Act, 1961.

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services tax paid, except:

i) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable; and

i) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax inchuded.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Vv




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

2. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for leng-term construction projects if the recognition eriterias are met. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives, Likewise, when a major inspection
is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises
of the cost of property, plant and equipments that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the
date of balance sheet.

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule 11 of

Assets .
the companies Act 2013
Plant & machinery Sto 15
Office equipment 10
Computers and peripherals 3
Furniture & fixtures 10
Vehicles 8

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful
life, whichever is lower,

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as

Ahmedabad
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appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is

derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible Internally generated or
assets Useful lives | Amoriisation method used acquired
C ¢ Amortised on a straight-line basis
OMPUEL | 3 years over the period of computer | Acquired
software
software

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing casts consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded
as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

j. Leases

The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The company recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-nse assets

The company recoguises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter, as follows:

Building - up to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. ;
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ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the

payment oceurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the [ease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such [ease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

iif} Short-term Ieases and leases of low-value assets

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment and office premises (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease
of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a sfraight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

The company has sub leased certain office premises. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

k. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:

Consumables: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first i, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

L. Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
.company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the hi gher of
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an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU] fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or the company, its joint venture
and its associate When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for cach of the company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are
aliocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth
year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case,
this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or
country or countries in which the company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation
surplus taken to OCL. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount
of any previous revaluation surplus.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or
company of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than it’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to
goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

m, Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
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the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution towards provident fund and employee state
insurance scheme (ESIC) is a defined contribution scheme, The company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC. The company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service.

The company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be
made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit

plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCl in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
ii) The date that the company recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense
in the consclidated statement of profit and loss:

i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
ii) Net interest expense or income.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date. The company recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an
expense when an employee renders the related service.

The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting
date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does
not have an unconditional right to defer the settiement for at |east twelve months after the reporting
date.
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0. Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using Black-
Scholes model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which
is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of
the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model inchiding the expected life of the share option,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For cash-settled share-based
payment transactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up
to the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in the profit or loss. This
requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of each reporting period. For the
measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the
company uses Black-Scholes model for Veeda Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (VESP). The
assumptions and modeis used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are

disclosed in note 32.
p- Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initia] recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the company’s business model for managing them. With
the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the company has applied the practical expedient, the company initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs, Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OClI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPIy
on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets or both. Financial assets
classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business mode! with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recogmscd on the frade
date L.e,, the date that the company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

1ii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

i) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the company. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income
in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The
company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other receivables and

loans.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual fund,

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly medifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the company’s consolidated balance
sheet) when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
ii) The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation te pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
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%/-.

‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially al]
the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the company’s centinuing involvement. In that case, the company aiso
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the company could be required to repay.

Tmpairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL") model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss. For trade receivables and contract assets, the
company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the company does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next twelve months (a twelve month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (i.c., a lifetime ECL).

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly aftributable transaction costs.

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

i} Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criterias in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable o changes in
own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to
statement of profit and loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the Profit and foss
statement. The company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

g. Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms
of the contract,
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On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included
in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification.
Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of
the conversion option is not remeasnred in subsequent years,

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible
preference shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when
the instruments are initially recognised.

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the company’s cash management,

s. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders
of parent company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

New Standards, Interpretations and amendments adopted by the company

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Company’s annual financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2020, except for the adoption of new standards effective or amendments
to the existing Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as of April 01, 2020. The Company has not
early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet
effective. The Company applies, for the first time, following new interpretations and amendments
w.e.f., April 01, 2020 and do not have material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

a) Amendments to Ind AS 1, Ind AS 8 and Ind AS 10: Definition of Material;
b) Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19 related Rent Concessions,
2.2 Significant acconnting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the company’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
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Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

i) Capital management note 27
ii) Financial risk management objectives and policies note 26
iii) Sensitivity analyses disclosures note 26

Judgements

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
Jjudgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options ~ Company as
a lessee

The company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periads covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option te terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease, That is, it considers all relevant factors that
create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renmewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change
in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements,
significant customisation to the leased asset, etc.).

Export incentive receivable

As per Government notification no, 57/2015-2020 dated March 31, 2020 the Company is entitled
to Service Exports from [ndia Scheme (SEIS) benefits on clinical research services till year ended
March 31, 2020 and accordingly Company has accounted the same on provisional basis pending
notification in receipt of the eligible service and rate of rewards as at reporting date (Refer note
4.6).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

Share-based payments

While estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions with the employees at grant date,
the Company uses a DCF model for employee stock option plan. The assumption and models used
for estimating fair value for share based payment transactions are disclosed in note 32.
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Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at

each reporting date.
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quated prices in active markets, their fair valve is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental botrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates),

Revenue recognition

The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for other fixed-price
contracts. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the Company to determine the
actual efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the estimated total efforts or costs to be
incurred. Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as
there is a direct relationship between input and productivity. The estimation of total efforts or costs
involves significant judgment and is assessed throughout the period of the contract to reflect any
changes based on the latest available information. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on
uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on
the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract.

For associate, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time in accordance with the terms
of contract with customers and payment terms which is generally due within 30-90 days from the
- ~date of invoice. Associate renders customer specific services as per the terms of contract. ASSOClatc
N ;_' does not provide any types of warranties and related obligations to its customers.




27eMYOE J¢ TWRKO[DALP Sy) S0y amppuadxs aarduod (WOY|IW 84's 5 IO *[ £ YOTRI) VOYITU e 0 63 1[TOZ I € YORIA IR SB Wado|aasp pun $1as8w ajqriow (1)
57 303 I 124 Jou pa uaIdo[3A3P 9PN 318 o1 Jusedmba 3p Eid ' Agsodasd 943 10) FNPUIDH SOSEOD (TN “0T0Z 'T € YTE) UOHTION 6¢ b S 11 Z0Z *[§ (oseyn 1¢ 55 ssaufoud-n-sprom fende) (11}
1500 PP 5K 6 Sjasse 21 Sureyar 1Apo pre Juatudenbd pue prerd “Spadosg 36 S S |2 10] VYD snejat LpUn Sy pu] 0} UK IR JO AIEP 31 §107 *10 Tdy 18 $¢ sanza FunAumo ai tum anuuon o) poyo)s sey Amedwon ayg (1)

nmuﬁaz
S0 EPE TT0L° 1€ PIEP I 1Y
{Ts8¢c} JERA ) 20 2TrOP UOITETINIBQ
= uomapQq
308 uonppy
LLGPE G707 ‘1€ WMEIN Ju Sy
rasqueedd 8250
RUROWY 1a5EN () OR )0 A10ae))|
(€ Mon saja1) §R5E 6L Ja YNy ¢
[{:44] s (23] [T02°1€ YL Je sy
REQ - BES uonenEIde))
£921 99 [ 1601 COMPPY
805 90 - 0Z0Z *IE MB35V
3907
- yusudopasp zspun eseaBead
spise qq3uspg -Bipom [ende)y P—
juamdojaap JAPER SRFE o|iFumyu] pUE ssatdoad-ur-yaom (epude) gg
BLFEY 05°08¢ (1§~ 110 §606 6T [O1 1975 [AX) 1LSE LO'LES (#)+{V) 190
oLe P'F oYL = 5 1'p 9071 - STT 1801 {s1) 1MoL
oL9 o b [=1A oFE 1Ie 9zl ST 1801 remy0s mindiwo
3557 A q3usIuy T°€|
80°6TF ¥0°9L¢ 15787 (i) %] BI'LE $S°095 410 9P'PE 9TTS (v o],
EI'e 9t ¥ - Ltso Lo 062 = = [ 34 SN
LINE €82 287l Wi 9T L Loy [ /N] EpPBE £ITORY 29 Saurumg
8S¥I TTEN Lzt = oL LG8 (14,54 - ¢ 19 x4 ssqndwio)
L its STL 110 BSE 8L€ 9SG £ LIO ¥T 390t wsadinbs 213103
[3.34:4 SO 6¥Z PEOTT = 13 66 €9 6t 60E = g8 el PRISE Asuryoear 22 uery
SPs3 6108 P vZ - ozl Irel 9 K01 - BLD 0816 spuRwaanxdum proyasea|
spssu dppdun], 1's
970t 170t 120L*1£ orely ‘10 Iudy 18 g yae 10 1
"IE YPEIY JB Sy ‘IS PIRW N EY | Je seaduwRg Jugso[D uejIMpAq | meA 3 sof oBsmyy nao w_mu_ﬂueaﬁ.a_“nc = “Mﬂn:u_a“ s-_—-ﬂ_n. uapnpa UTHPEY e aw Mw.nu——wnuu_“(.nao SARWIIEY
AIOTH LAN NOLLYIDTHdaa AJ0TI SS0UD

1207 L€ W8 J€ s& JurwIo[a4ap JIpUN 913858 3[q)2uB)u) Puk sjassx d|qiFueyin 1oy HD “Sa:504d-up-ya0m 153de Yuawdimbe » wued *Aaaadosg ¢

1207 “1€ 4MBIN pIpTa Jwak an) 1of

(PAIEIS F5pAIY0 SSI]UN ‘U0 K S39dnt W sjundury [[y)

3§ [EY LY Ptep[ 0} N

(P aI] 3)RALIL YAIEEIY [SIUMD BPIOA,, T& UMOWN ALI21ha0)) PIMTIT LTG5 (ENUI|D BPBIA




RS JO J0ATdOTon2P A [0 amyrpuadica astdm0s (Do)
s 303 y0id 134 Jou Pus Wraurdo[3ASp JOPUN e sforpa udinba 39 Juerd Kuedoid
03 PRSP S11 S8 $y555 a[qubueicn 910 pus 1eaudinba pue trepd

[ 92 € & *610C " 10 Midy) UOY[IN 80'S T :DTOZT ‘1€ YOMUIY 19 7 wswdofoasp sopun spasse apqeireiu] (10)
) 2inyrpaadia sastdiod (WO 0 [ pg 84 36 10T ‘10 (Ldv) IN 0202 i € PRI T8 b2 ssaaBosd-ur-ytom pusde ) (m)
‘Ruadoug Jo sway 3 [0 10) JYYD SUoANH 19PN Sy PU[ 01 OUISTR 40 ajEp 3T §0T [0 Y e Sk sanjea Budumo Xy g IMUTD 0 P9 sey Aredaon ay [, (f)

SIJON
LLorE 0202 "[€ YIBIA Y4 6V
tor9s)
90012 ueppy
AR 6107 ‘IO 2dy e 2y
asiwad WO
unowy V5T (10K 10 09t
(€ MU sagal) s1assw asn jo ary s
84 £80°8 = 0I0Z ‘1€ WITH 3% 5y
LB ET1 - L LTl wonezi(ede)
(A1 @1 L6k ualippy
9f°LL 9T'E oy 6102410 Indv e sy
b 1}
— IR WdoPAIP Japum ssaadoad
S)assa u—ﬂ_anE lﬂ_uu—.-n; —!nﬂu En?naﬂknﬁ
W udoRAap JApUN SPsse AqIEUTU] PBY ssa1n0ad-ul-10m [MIanD £f
TSLLE 8L'gey 62101 52'0 85°T0H - LO'LES o LE'6ST IS4 (ay) TYLOL
(1% 0L’ iy - 1T'r - 18°0L - 0% (1% (@) 1moL
6l'tE s e = e - 1201 = oL 61'€ Amyos minduroy
SLASSY ATHIONYINI T'€
CCPLE 80'6Ly 8146 6T'0 u6 = 9T'9%s iv'o SETST £E'PLE (v} moL
4 24 14 o OO 50 = 06¢T $00 €10 3T S3IRA,
el el ie 9TL - 9L - £F 8¢ - B9bT SLEN EIMUX]J PATE rjreLin]
TR 857l i68 - 5% - $S €7 - Ersl e minduiosy
r3T 06 L E =44} 344 - 890 ££0 1z6 ¥z wawdinks ey
06662 SE48T 6669 - 66 €9 - ¥9 ISE - 238 06 66C ArsuTgoEuz pue ey
324 Sheg [ £4¢ = wir - 9816 9608 05 9% $pIUA 0K ploRsERT
SIASSY ITIIONYL '
Vo (Ldy e 00T 00T “1E PEW ¥ 6102 ‘To 1dv 7¢ 020215 o9 $107 ‘10 1pdy
SIZTOILCY e sy IEWIEHIE Y |1t 2auejeq Swisopy nomnpeq  [eaAay) dop ssond seodue|rq Awmpdg | 18 58 UT|BE Fuisor) woajenpaq TonIPpY W sv ueieq Jumadg tremxy ey
HOOTH LAN NOLLYIDTH4Aa ADOTH SE0OHD

B0 '[E PI=] 1® SB I3 wdopAIp Jepum Sjasss ayqiBuca) pue spsse #qI3umut sagiQ ‘sseaBord-ars10m [eiyde ) s mdinbs 3 juayd ‘Axadosrg £

IT0T “1€ YUY Papwd read 2y anp

fparess IVEMIIGIO0 S92J U0 ‘uon|(ime 534N Wl SjuBOnZE [1Y)

1S 1PUT T PayepfIosate o} s3joN

(WpoImury el 1 PARSY [BUW|D EPRA, E¥ UMoR] SHPWI05) PoIIFT 4232359 [VI[UR)) FPRIA



VYeeda Clinical Researsh Limited {fornierly known as "Veedn Clinical Research Private Limited'')
Netes to did:s Fmancial for the year ended March 31, 2021
(AJl minounts in rupees million, utdess otherwise ptated)

4 Financial assats

4.1 ¢

Fhvilciias Asal As At As at
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2820 Aprll 01. 2019

Non-current

Twvestunent §n aquity shares of assacinte (carried at cost) (Ungueted)

2,142,883 (Macch 31, 2020: Nil. Apeil 01, 2019: Nil) fully paid equity 166 39 - -
shares of Bioueeds India Private Limited (refer note below)

Invesimend in equity shares of jeind vendure (carried at cosi)
{Unquotcd)

350,000 (Mearch 31, 2020: Nil; April 01, 2019; Nil) fully paid cquity 059 -
shares of Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited (refer note below)

Total 366,98 = -

Current

Tnvestment in units of nautual Nunds (carrbed at fir value through
prafit and loss) (Quoted)

33%,115.72 Units (March 3t, 2020: Nil; April 01, 2019 Nil} of ICICT 141.07 - =
Prudential Savings Fund (Regulas Growt)
165,138-45 Units (March 31, 2020: Nil; April 01, 2015: Nil) of ICICI 50.04 = =
Prudential Liguid Fund (Regular Growth)
208,249.21 (March 31, 2020: Nil; Apnl 01, 2019: Nil) unils of Aditya 10741 - -
Birla Sun Life Low Duration Fund (Regulas Growth)
Nil (March 31, 2020: Nil; Apsil 01, 2019; 36,12].37 Units) of ICICE . = 252
Prudcntial Banking & Financial Services Fund (Direct Growil)
Nil (Marchs 31, 2020: Mil; April 01, 2019 115,169 34 Units) of [DFC = - 191
Infrastructure Fund (Direct Growth)
Nil (March 31, 2020: Nil, April 01, 2D19; 19,817 40 Unles) of UTI - - 1.79
Phanma & Healthcare Fund (Disact Gravah)
Nil (Macch 31, 2020: Nil; Apcil 01, 2019; [13,421.55 Units) of Aditya = « 134
Birla Sunlife Banking & Financial Servicss Fund
Nil (March J1, 2020: Nil; April 01, 2015: 75,339.03 Units) of ICICI - - 318
Prudenual Focused Bluechip Equity Fund
Nil (Margh 31, 2020: Nil; April 01, 2019: £6,348.64 Units) of IDFC - - a2
Classic Equity Fund
Nil {March 31, 2020: Nil; Apsil 01, 2019; 172,811 06 Units)of L& T - - 2mn
Infrastructure Fund (Growth)

Tatal] 298.52 - 18.53

Total menecurrent investment 366,98 = F
Aguregate amount of quoted i and market value thereal” = - -

Asuregate amount of uriquoted investmenls 366 98 - -

Total current investments 29252 - 13.53

Aguregate amount of quoted investments and market valua thercof 298 52 - 18.53
Aggregate amount of unguoted | - = =

Node:

yof of iny in ssdotiate:

. Year coded March Year ended March
Porticulars 31,2001 51,2020

Opening carrying value 25 a1 April § -
Add: Invesomeut in associare during the year 366 71 -
Less: Share of {loss) of assoviate 31 -
AddAess: Share of other comprehionsive income/(Joss) (net of tax) {0.01) -

| Chosing cavrying value as af March 31 366,39 -
Summary of movement of invesinent in joint vewture:
Year ended March Year ended March

Particalars 31,2021 31, 2020
Opeming carrying valuc us at April | E
Add: Invesiment in joint venture daring the year 350 -
Less; Share of |oss of joint venture @90 -
Addlless: Share of ather comprehensive income/(lose) (et of tax) =
Closing carrylug vatue as at March 31 0.59 -

Mate:

i} Subsequent to year end, the member; in tredr meeling held on May 25, 202) approved acquissiion of additional 20, 10% of the shaceholding in
Bioneeds India Privatc Liwmited. Acquisition of the same bas been completed an July 16, 2021,

ii) Subscquent la year end, the baard in their meeting held on June 22, 2021 approved investment of Rs. 240 million in optianafly canvertible
redeemable preference shares (“OCRPS") having conpow rate of 0.001% in Bionceds India Privats Limited which was subsequently spproved by
members in theisr meeting leld on June 24, 2021 and the same has been completed on July 16, 2021,

APrO.
o AL uN e

———




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (fermiexly known as *'Veeda Chinlcal Research Private Linited™)
Notes to consolidaled Finanekal Siatemears far (e year emded March 31, 2021
{All amounts in rupees million, unless adherwise stated)

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Trade receivables

; _ As Aswi Asw
i Mayel 31, 2020 Mavech 31, 2020 April 01,2019
Trade ceceivables

| Seaured, considered yood = = A
Unsecwed, considered good 451.50 360.48 399.23
Trade receivables which have significant increase in eredi) risk 768 489 2%
Tradc receivables - credit impaired 809 8.0% 209
Trmpuirniene a8, 1T for bad and doubiful Jebts)

Ulsecured, considared good = - ~
‘Trade receivables which have signifscant increasc in cradit nisk (761 (4.89)| (2 T2)|
Teade receivables - credit impeired (8.09) {8.0%) (8.05)
Total 451.51 360.48 39933
Notes;

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are gencrally on terns of 30-90 days.
For information abaut credit visk and market risk related 1o tradk receivable, please refer note 26
No trade or other receivable are due from divectors or other officers of the company sithar ssverally or jointly with any other person Nor any trade or ther receivable ars due fram firms ar PrIvate companies

regpectively in which any director is & partner, a dircctor or 2 member

Cash and cash equivalents

Agat As at Az ut

Particalars Maseh 31, 2021 Mardl 31, 2030 April D1, 2019
Balances with Banks:

- On cuveent aecounts and cash credit aceounts 148.45 143.07 108.63
-Deposits veith original ity of less than three months (refer nole = 6504
below) -

Cash on hand 116 1.05 293

Total 149.61 144.12 176,60

Note:

Fixcd deposits as at March 31, 2021 amounsing to Nil {March 31, 2020: Nol; Apeil 01, 2019; Rs. §5.04 mllion) are for a period of 7 days and varns interssl at 5 75%.

Other bank balances

Purticolars As at As at Asar
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 Aprid 01, 201¢
- Deposits with Original naturity of more than three months but less than 28 d4 1161 2537
bwelve manths (refex note below)
Tatul 2R.44 3).61 2537

Note:
Deposits with bank as st March 3), 202] amountiag o Rs. 2844 nillion {Masch 31, 2020: Rs. 31.61 willion; April 91, 2015: Rs. 2537 inillioe) sre given as collateml securdy agaiast cash credit limits. These
depasits are minde for & verying pesiod for 3 months to (2 months and zarns interest ranging between 4.00% ta 5.t 5% (March 31, 2020; 5 30% Lo 6 GO%; Apeil 0, 2019; 725% to 7 50%)

Loans
. Asat Az at As at
Farticulars Marci 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2028 April 01, 2019

Nan-current
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to associate (refar note below} 23455 = -

Toaal 234.88 - s
Note:
Since the above loan given o is d and idsred good, the bifurcation of lnan in othes categories as required by schedule I of panies. Act, 2013 Viz 2) Securad b) Loans which have
significant increase in credit risk and c) credit impaired is not applicable
Disclosure required snder Se¢ 185(4) of the Companies Act 2013
Included w loans end ad are certain i 3 deposits the particulars of which are disclosed below es vequired hy See 186(d) of the Companies Act 2013

Name of the loanee Rate of Incereat Due date Secured/ unsecured Ag ut haiad Ae at

Barch 31, 2021 Merch 31,2020 | April 01,2019

Loan is repayabla on or
before  final muturity|
dute which shall not be
later  than 2 months|
Bioneeds India Private Limited 5% from the dare off Unsecured 234 55 - i
disbursement or such
other date as mutually
agreed  botwsen  the
partics 1o loan

Refer note 23 for terms and conditions of loan 1o




Veeda Clinical Research Limited {formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limied™)

Notcs to

lidated Fimamcial Stat ts Jor the year ended March 31, 2021

{All amuunis in rupaes mitkos, wnless atherwise stated)

4.6

"

Other financial assets
pther fmancial assels

Parliculars As al As at As at
March 31, 2001 Mardh 31, 2020 April 01, 2019
Unseenred, conzidered good
Non-current
Security depasi 23.04 2103 21.66
Bank depasits with remaining matunty for more than 12 montha (refer 608 565 §27
uote ( betowr)}
Export ngenfive receivable frefer note ii below) 4287 4287 -
Sub-total 71.99 69.55 26.93
Uusecured, considered good
Current
Contract asgcl
- Due from customer (acersed raverne) (vefar note 13.2) 795) 6060 4523
Secunty depasits = = 683
Intesest accrued on security deposits 036 045 Q30
Export incentive reccivable 6921 6921 -
Bank deposiis with remaininy maturity for less than 12 months (refer note 17.41 16 48 =
ii3 below)
Reimbursemeni receivahle (refer nots 23) 7.6 - iy
Dthers = = 026
Sub-rotal 174.10 146.74 65.67
Total 246,09 216.24 922.60
Notes:
1) Bank deposits with remainitig maturity foc more than 12 months as al March 31, 2021 amounting te Rs. 6.08 million (March 31, 2020: Ry 565
million; Apsil 01, 2019; Rs 5.27 million) are given as security against bartk guarantses. These deposits ara made foc a period of more than |2 months
and cems intorest ranging betweon 5.30% to 9.00% (March 31, 2020: 6.25% to 9.00%; Apeil 01, 2019: 6 25% to 9.00%)
ii) As per DGFT notificalion no 57/2015-2020 dated March 31, 2020, the company is entitled to Service Exports from Tndia Schene (SEIS) benefits
on clinical research services 1ill year ended March 31, 2020 Out of the total receivable bal ding as on 31 March 2021, (he SEIS benefits of
Rs 4287 milfian (March 31, 2020: Rs. 42 87 million; Apcil 01, 2019: Nil) For the clinical resaarch services provided during the finencial yoer ended
Margh 31, 2020 has been naoounxr.d by the company bascd on the natification of chigible scrvice category under the scheve of pravious year and lot
besl estimated rates which are y g 10 be natfied by the g thority as at the reporting dates The company's is
that the company will be able 1o realize the ling recei abl onea the g natifies the said sevvices and rates
iii) Bank deposits with original maturity of mate than 12 months and with remaining maturity for less than 12 months es at March 31, 202] amounting
{0 Ra.17.41 million (March 31, 2020: Rs. 16 48 millian; April 01, 2019: Nil) are given as collateral secunty against cash ceedit homts. These deposits
are made for 2 peniod of more than | 2 months and eams interest ot 5 70% (herch 31, 2020: 7 35%, Apnl 01, 2019: Nil)
Income tax nssels (net)
3 Asat As at Asut
Liarticulave Mureh 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020 Aped OF, 2015
MNaw-eurrent
Advance payment of Income fax (et of provision) 154 32 15281 T6 68
‘Total| 154.32 152,81 76.53
Otber assets
Particulars Ap at Asat Asat
Murch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 01. 2019
Nan-Current
Dmsccwred, comsidered good
Balance with povemment avthorities 192 £ 97 214
Suab tatal 1.92 1.97 214
Cuwrreat
Unsecured, considered gaod
Prepaid expenses 1612 1094 9.27
Advance 1b creditors 879 224 7.03
Employce advances 112 140 076
Balance with governmont awthorities (rsfer note below) 2036 912 -
Dihers = = 019
Sub tatall 4639 23.70 17.25
Total] 45.31 25.6% 19.39
Note:
Balance with government authorities includes GST input tax credit receivable (net of liabilisy)
Inventories (valued af lower of cost and et realizable value)
. Ad at As at As at
Particulacs Mareh 31, 2021 Murch 31, 2020 April 01. 2019
Consumables 5663 4375 4732
Total 56.63 4775 47,32




Veeda Clinical Research Limited {favmerly kvown as “Vreda Clinical Resesvrh Private Limited")
Notes to \(duted Fi il S for the yeur ended Murch 31,2021
{AR amemmts in rupees enillion, wnless otherwiss atuted)

4 Sharc capita!
Equity share capital
Particulars As at March 31,2021 As at Murch 38, 2020 Ax at April 01,2019
No. of shares Amount Mo, of shares Amount No. of shires Amupunt
Authorsed share cupital
Equity Shares of Ry, 10 cach 7.60.000 7.00 £.00,000 6.00 6,00.000 600
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share <apitzl
Equity Shares of Re. 10 eagh 601,196 60l 237,163 5.7 582163 587

Instruments in the nature of equity (CCCPS Class *A')
Particulars As at March 31. 2021 Asx ot March 31, 2020 Asat April 01, 2009
Mo, of shares Amaunt No. of shares Amuunt Ne. af shures Amount

Authorised share capital
0.0001% CCCPS Ciass 'A'Rs 10 cach 3.56.40.680 35641 35640640 35641 3,56.40,684 356 4t

Issued, yubseribed and fally paid up shave capital

00K % CCCPS Class 'A' Rs. 10 cach 3.52.29.780 M 3.52.29.780 33230 3.52,29.780 35230

{) Recanciliution of dee equity shaves und instremients emircly equicy in nature ouistusding at the beginming und at the cad of the reporving yeur

Equity Share Capital
Particalars | As ut March 31, 2021 As ut March 31, 2020 As at April U1, 2019
I Number Amuunt Number Amount Numiber Amount
547 537,163 5.E?

Shares oulstanding ul the beginning of the ywar 347,163 537 347,163
Issue of oquity shares during the vear 14,033 014 = - . -
al the end of the vear 6,01.196 01 587,163 587 5,487,163 5.87

Instruments in the natore of equity (CCCPS Class 'A")
s Asat March 31, 2021 Aa at March 31, 2020 As at April 01, 2019
Pardiculars Number Amount Number Amount Number F Amount
Shures outstatiding gt the beginming 0 1he vear 3.52,29,780 35230 | 3,52,29.7%0 35230 3,5239.7%0 35230
Shares bought bock during the year . - - - s -
Shiarcs converied during the year - - - - = .
Shares outstanding at the end of the vear 3.52,29,780 35230 3.81.29,240 35230 3,52,29,780 35130

th) Tevins/rights attached 40 equicy shaves.
(w sespeet of Ordinary sharcs, volimg xights shal be in the sgme propartian 5 the capilal pad tpon such ordiinary share bears 6o the lowd paid up ordinary capiw) of the eampony

The Disidend proposed by Lc board of Diregtors. if any. is subjeet o the approval of he sharcholdars in the enzuing Anawal Genoral Metting, except in cosc of interm dividend

In the evenl of liguidalioa, the shareholders of ardinary shares arc eligible Lo receive the rempining asscls ol the pany alicr dicufbwiion of all prek Inp ton 1a
their sharcholdings.

{e} Subrquent ks year end, the board in heir meeting held gn Juno 26, 2021 spproved split of cacly equity shase of Rs. |4 eoch inta § cquity shares of Rz 2 cach which was subscquently
0pproved by momsbers | their mceting incld on fune 29, 2021,

(d) Subscqment to year ond, Lhe boaed In sheir mcating beld on Juae 26, 2021 approved issue of 11 bonus shares fudly paid (o1 cach cquily share of Rs. 2 cach which wes subscquently
approved by membars ie thelr mesting held om June 29, 2021

(o) Tesmsaf ¢onversion/ redemplion of CCCPS Clast 'A*
i, Tha CCCPS Class *A' zhal) be cotitled to 0.0001% ipatory and laive dividend. Subzequnt 10 Sear end, the Board of Direetors al their mosling held an May 25, 202] have
wiodified the percentage of dividand from 0.0001% (o 14.( 1%, which has been sppraved wed wranskerod 10 Sopartie account, for the period Gom Octobee 27, 2018 11l Magch 31. 202t
amounting 1o Rs [20 €2 million

ii. The CCCPS Class 'A’ shall ol be catitled 1o amy voung rights

ili. The coaversion of CCCPS Class "A’ in to oquity shares shall be subjcet o the zpgroval of the Board af Birectars of the Company, The oulstanding CCCPS Class ‘A’ shares will be
convertod into 93,946 equity sharos

v, The rights af'y sharchiolders skal] ba e d in dance with the dsions of e Campanics Act, 2013, isclndi § any slalutory mod ficat md 3,
therzof, and the M dum and Anticlcs of Association of the C 4 mpy be ded from time L6 timo,
v. The canvershon of CCCPS Class 'A'in ta equity shares shall be subjeer 10 all rules, regulsions prevailing / applicabl nth:ﬁmco(mmwminnmmnunuﬁmmwakr

condiliows of Contral Government of India, Resorve Bank of ndia and such othcr Falukory authority as mey bt applicable and prevailing at ¢se time of conversion.

(r) Subscquenticycarend. tho members in their mecling held on Fone 29, 2021 approved converaion al 33,229,780 CCCPS Class ‘A" into 93,946 equily shares of Rs 10 ach.




Veeda Clinieal Regearch Limited (formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Noates to l{duted Finnaclal S( for the ycur crded March 31, 2021
(AN ainounts in rupees mil livs, unless othervica stated)

(8) Shares held by holding company

As atMarch 31, 202 As at March 31, 2020 Ax at April 91, 1019
fame et St e Numbir | Amaunt Numiber Anount Number Amount
Badl Private Limited ¢
Equity shares ol Rs. L0 aoch 46,194 | 406 4.06.194 4,05 406,194 406

(B} 35.329.760 CCCPS Class ‘A’ of Rs 10 cach wexe issucd as Bonus and 11,630 CCCPS Class 'B” were bonght back by the company diwing the yex ended Mareh 31, 2019
(i) Details of sharchalders balding more tham 5% shares in the company

Equity Share Capital

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As ut April 01,2019
Nowme of Shavcheldar %ol Yol Yool
Number Halding Nurbker Hakdin Number Holdin

Basil Privae Linited * 1.06.194 67.56 406,194 [P 4G, 194 5918
Bondway Invesiment Inc 1530708 2653 1.59.70% 2720 1.52.702 2720
* The company hos passed the bonrd resolution dated March 01, 2021 a wangler e 1,751 couily shares o Basi Privats Limited 1o €3 Altemadye dovestment Fund The said
sharchotding has been updaled with the registrar on April 15, 2021

Instrumients i the nature of equity (CCCPS Class *A")

As ut March 31, 2021 As at Murel 31, 2020 Al A(Apzlllll.‘.lui')
Name of Skareholder %of N Yool % of
i) Haldi Nutu ot Helding Humber Hoiging
Bordway ivesimzid foc 22).75.640 6155 2.21.75.640 62 95 221.75.690 62 95
Ambelle Financial Services Lud. | 1.30L4R, 140 3704 1.30.48,140 3704 1,30,48 140 37104

(i) Subsoquont to year end, the members in éheir meeting beld on Mav 25, 2021 approsed additioaal investment of Re. 979 36 miflion in cquily shares of ibe company tirough private
plocement o Re. 12,832 pershare [face vakue of Rs. 10 and sccurities premium of Re 12,812)

8 Other equity
Particalars i Ko
Mareb3), 202) | hlarch 34, 2020
Securities premium
Balawce a¢ the begining of the year 21.00 173.00
Add: Securitius promivm on issue of cquity shace during 17979 -
tho year
Dialance at the end sfthe year 45279 273.00
Capila! redmn plive reserve
Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 3844 38.54
Share options autsianding reserve

Balance ut ibe bepinming of the yeare - -
Add: Compensatlon faz optians granted during the year
(refor note 32) 594 -
Halunce ut the end of the yeuar 594 -

Surplug in the statement of profit and bass

Balance at the beginning of the year 20998 200 69
Add/(Less): Profid / (loss) for the year 629 67 (0 43}
Add/ (Less): Qther comprehensive ingome / (loss) for the (L12) on
year {nct)

Bulance st the end ol the year BISAH 20098
"Total othgy wquity 133605 521.82

Nature 3od pwrpoge of reserves:
{1) In eascs where the Company isowed shares nl o premium, whether for cash ar othenise, 8 Sum cqual to Lhe aggrepae amount of the pramium seccived an thoea shares has hegn
masferred Lo "Sceurities Premium™ The Company may issuc Rolly paid-up bonus shares 1o its bers auL of the itics peemivm ad 10 buy-baek of shares

{2) Capital redompuion reserve the amowat feired om aceoumt of buy back of CCCPS Clasy ‘B

{3) Tho share options outstanding rescrve ; The share aplons bascd paymen; réserve is used 4o rocognize the smy date Fur xalac of oplions isswed 1o employres under emploves slock
oplion plan




Veeda Clinical Rescarch Limited (formerly known 25 "Yeeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Notes to consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

¢All amaunts in rupees million, nnless otherwise stated)

10

Financial Habilitles

10.1 Borrowings

Farticulars

Ag at
March 31, 2021

Asat
March 31, 2020

As at
April 01,2019

Noa-current borrowing

Secured

Terms loans from financial insdtutions
Indian Rupe¢ loan from financial institutions (refer note 4, 5 and 6
below)
Less: Current maturities of lonyg term borrowings clubbed under
“"currcnt financial liabilities" (refer nota 10.3)

54.15

(34.15)

‘Total Non-corrent horrawings

Current Borrowings

Secured

Loans repayable on demand

Foreign cumrency demand loan (FCDL) from Bank (refer note 1 & 6
below)

Cash credit from bank (refec notc 2 belaw)

Unsecured

QOther Parties

Inter cotporate loan (refer note 3 below)

93.22

150.00

166.91

4834

Totzl current borrowings

243.22

16€.91

48.34

Total borrowings

243.22

166.91

48.34

Aggregate secured loan

93.22

166.91

10299

| Agyregate ed logn 15000 - -

Details of terms and securities for the above rupee loan facilities are as follows:

(1) |The Company has obtained Foreign Currency Demand Loan {*FCDL’) which is part of sanctioned credit facility of Rs. 200 million from Axis Bank fur
working capital requirement of the Company. OQutstanding balance of FCDL as at March 31, 2021 is Nil (March 31, 2020: Rs. 166.91 million April 01,
2019; Rs. 48.84 million). The borrowing casries interest of 6 months LIBOR + 2,50% payabte on monthly rest. The effective interest rate is Nil (March 31,
2020: 3, 558% to 5.185%, April 01,2019: 5.185%). The FCDL is repayable on demand

The FCDL was secured:

(2) by way of hypothecation on atire current assets of the Company including stock and receivables, both present and Fature;

(b) by way of equitable mortgaye / hypothecation of immovable / moveable fixed assets (plant and machinery, equipment, etc.) other than those financed by
ather banks / financial institution; and

(¢) against TDR in the name of Company having value of Rs. 40.10 million,

There is no default in repayment of ¢his loan.

(2) |The Company has availed cash credit fasilities of Rs. 200 million from Axis Bank for working capital requirement of the company. Qutstanding balance of]
such facilities as at March 31, 2021 is Rs. 93.22 million (March 31, 2020: Nil, April 01, 2019: Nil ). The borrowing camies interest of 3 Months MCLR +
2.15%. The effective interest rate is 9.45% (March 31, 2020: Mil, April 01, 2019 Nil). The said crcdit facility is repayable on demand.

The credit facility is secured:

(@) by way of hypothecation on entire current assets of the Company including stock and receivables, both prescat and future;

(b) by way of squitable mortgage / hypothecation of immovablc / moveable fixed asset {plant and mechinery / equipment etc.) other ihan tose financed by
other banks / financial institution; and

(c) against TDR in the name of Company having value of Rs. 40.1 million.

There is no default in repayment of this loan.

(3) |The company has taken unscoured loan from Ifiunik Pharmaceuticals Limited ('Lender) of Rs. 150 milfion for a period of 3 months. Qutstanding amount of]
such loan as at March 31, 2021 is Rs. 150 million (March 31, 2020; Nil; April 01, 2019 : Nil). The borrowing carries interest rate of 11.00% p.a. {March 31,
2020: Nit; April 01, 2019. Nil) compounded annoally.




Veeda

Clinical Research Limited {(formezly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Nates to tidatcd Fi ial Stat s for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts in rupees million, unless othervise stated)

(O]

Term Loan amovnting Rs. 31.79 million from GE Capital Service India {*GECSI") for purchase of various medical equipment Outstanding balance for this
facility as at March 31, 2021 is Nil (March 31, 2020: Nil; April 01, 2019: Rs. 10.30 million) The borrowing carries interest 2.95% above the effective State
Bank of India based rate {(Renchmark rate) payable on monthly rest. The effective interest rate is Nil (March 31, 2020: 11.90%; April 01, 2019: 12.00%). The
terin loan was repayable in structured monthly instalment and repayment which started from April 26, 2015. The rupee term loan facilities are secured against
the first and exclusive charge on 1he cquipment financed by GBCS/ and against the personal guaraatee of Mr, Binoy Gardi and Mr. Apurva Shah. The loan
has been repaid in full

(5) |Term Loan amcunting Rs. 100 million from Tata Capital Financial Services Limited ('TATA’) for purchase of equipment Outstanding balance for this
facility as at March 31, 2021 is Nil (March 31, 2020 : Nil , April 01, 2019 : Rs. 43.35 million) . The borrowing carries interest at long term lending rate Jess
£.23% payable on monthiy rest. The effective interest rate is 12.25% to 13.25%. The Temm Loan was repayable in structured menthly instalment and
repayment started from January 25, 2017. The Rupee Term Loan facilities are Secured against the first and exclusive charge on the equipment financed by
TATA and against the personel guarantee of Mr. Binay Gardi and Mr. Apurva Shah. The loan has been repaid in full

(6) |Indéan rupee loans amounting to Rs. 54.15 million and FCDL amounting te Rs. 48.84 million outstanding as on March 31, 2019 from banks and financial
institutions were guaranteed by the personal guarantee of Mr. Binoy Gardi and Mr. Apurva Shab. However, said personal guarantce was removed during the
year ended March 31, 2020 as well as Indian rupee loans amounting to Rs. 54.15 million from financial ingtitations was repaid during the year coded March
31, 2020,

10.2 Tvade payables

Particulars Asat Asar Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020
Trade payables 123.27 8744 121.65
Total 123.27 8744 121.65
Terms and conditions of the above putstanding halances:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normaily settled in 60-130 days
For explanation on company's ¢redit risk management process, refer note 26
For terms and conditions with related party, refer note 23.
10.3 QOther financial liabilities
FParticulars L s edy
March 31, 2021 Maych 31, 2020 April 01, 2019

Noo- Current
Finaunciel liabilities carried at amortized cost
Security deposits 0.50 0.50 0.50

Sub-total 0.50 0.50 0.50
Current
Financial liabilities carried at amortized cast
Current maturity of long-term bosrowing (refer note 10.1) - - 54.15
Creditors for capital goods 518 2.75 571
Employee benefits payable 60.85 55.30 5101
Interest accrued but not due on borrowiny 0.84 - .18
Other payable 6.58 20.37 19.68
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit & loss
Mark Lo market liability on forward contracts 013 15.22 -

Sub-total 73.58 93.64 130.73

Total 74.08 94.14 131.23




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerty known as "Veeda Clinieal Research Private Limited")
Notes to congolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(ANl amounts in rupees milllon, uniess otherwise stated)

11 Qtiher current liabilities

Particulars As at Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 01, 2019
Contract liabilitics
Due to customer (excess billing over revenue)  (refer
note 13.2) 201.89 132.08 38.44
Advance from customers 18.08 15.99 7.50
Statutory dues payable 16,67 10.50 14.13
Total 236.64 158.57 110.07
K As at As at Asat
Partieulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 01,2019
Reconciliation of contract Labilities:
Balanee at the beginniag of the year 148.07 95.94 168.40
Less: Revenue recognized during the year from balance at (113.33) (62.80) (151.93)
the beginning of the year
Add: Contract labilities created during the year 185.24 114.53 79.47
Balance at the end of the vear 219.98 148.07 95.94
12 Provisions
) As at Asat Asat
e March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020 April 01, 2019
Non-current
Provision for ecmployee benefit
Gratuity {refer note 22) 25.04 22,66 £8.69
Compensated absence 3.81 217 2.11
Total 32.85 24.83 20.80
Corrent
Provision for employce benefit
Gratuity (refer note 22) 5.68 494 4.37
Compensated absence 1.64 6.35 6.10
Total 13.32 1129 1047




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as *'Veeda Clincal R
ts for the year ended March 31, 2021

T e tad S

Notes to ¢ ial Stat
{All amouuts in rupees million, unless otherwise scated)

h Private Limitcd")

3 ’MM
Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
Particulars 2021 2020

Revenue from operations
Sale of services 1,953.14 1,400.66
‘Total revenue fram operations 1,958.14 1,400.66

Qther opernting income

Export incentives income - 112.08
Total oiher nperating revenus - 112.08
Tatal 1.955.14 1,512.74

13.1 Revenoe from Contracts with Customers

Set out below is the disaggregation of the company’s revenue from contract with customer

A. Geographieal loeatian of customer

Parficulars Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2021 202¢

India 623,43 540,04

Outside India 1,334.71 860,62

‘Tatal revenue from confract with 1.958.14 1.400.66

B. Timing of r recogniti

Parficulars Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2021 2020

Services wansferred over time 1,958.14 1,400.66

Tatal from contract with rs 1.958.14 1.400.66

13,23 Coutract Balances

The below table provides information about trade receivables, comract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with customers:

) As at As at As at
Rarikabica March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 01, 2019
Trade receivables (cefer note 4.2) 45151 360.48 399.33
Contract assets (refer note 4.6)

-Due from (acerued )3 79.51 60.60 58.23
Contract Liabilities (rafer note (1)

- Advance fram customer 1808 15.92 7.50
- Dug to customer {excess billing over o) 201.89 132.08 #8.44

Coatract assets relates to ravenue earned from ongoing clinical services. As such, the balances of this account vary and depend on the

aumber of clinical services at the end of die year.

Trade receivables are recognized when the right 1 ¢considération becomes uncanditional These are non intetast bearing generally on the
terms of 30-90 days. Company has recaivable from its customers for the sale of services to its customers. In March 31, 2021 Rs.2.71
million, March 31, 2020 Rs 2.11 million and Apwil 01, 2019 Rs.2. 78 million was recognized as provision for expected credit losses on

trade receivables.

Cantrsct liabilides includes short-tenm advances received for providing clinical ssevices and payment received from customer against
invoice raised for which clinical services are yet to be rendered. Contract liabilities are racognized as revenus when the Company satisties

the performance obligation.

133 R iling the of recognized in the staternent of profit and loss with the conteacted price

. Yesr eaded Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue as per contracted price 201164 1,425.t7
Adjustments:
Credit notes issued due to change in performance obligation (33.50) (24.51)
Revenue from contracts with customers 1.958.i4 1,400.66

(/ \.,  :_ 
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13.4 Information about Company's performamce obligation are summarized below:
‘The performance ebligation satisfied over a period of time as and when services are rendered in accordance with the lenms of contract with
custorner and payment terms is generally due within 30-90 days from the date of invoice. The Company renders customer specific services
and aocordingly Company is eligible to recover the payment from the customer till the date of service rendered by the Company in case of
termination received by the customer ag per the terms of contrzct Company does not provide any rypes of warranties and related
obligations to customears.

13.5 Taformation about major rustomers:
Far information aboul major customers, refer note 24,

14 Other income

Particulars Year md;gz Taﬂ:h 31, | Year end;lizl;lalth 31,
Interest mcome on
=Bank deposits 3.21 347
-Loans to associate (refer note 23) 1.25 -
~Security deposits 1.28 1.30
~Income tax refund - 0.66
~Others - 003
Net gain on izvestment in mutual funds 931 023
Liabilities no longer required written ack [5.24 158
Net gain on foreign cunrency transactions 9.72 10.54
Rent incoms 0.08 -
Goods & Services tax refund income (refer note below) 34552 -
Dthers 0.08 0.26
Total 385.69 24.07
Note:

The Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs (CBIC) wide ifs notification dated September 30, 2019 had notified the place of supply of
Research and Developmenl secvices including Bio-equivalence and Bioavailability Studies, Clinical trials and Bio analytical studies as the
location of the customer and accordingly Goods and Services Tax (“GST™) is not ta be levied on export of services. Pursuant to this
notification, the Company applied and received GST refund during the year ending March 31, 202} amounting to Rs. 345.5]1 million
(March 31, 2020: Nil) pertaining to GST deposited with GST autherity for the peried fram July 2017 to September 2019 on mater related
to export of services which has been accounted based on certainty of receipt during the year.

15 Cost of material consumed

Particulars Year ended March 31, | Year endad March 31,
2021 2020
Opening stock of consumables 47.15 47.32
Purchases during the year 148,40 13328
Less : Closing stack of ables (56.63) {47.75)
Total 139.52 132.8%
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16 Employee benefic

Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31, 2021 31, 2026
Salary, bonus and afiowances {refer note 23) 455.88 513.50
Employes stack option expenses (refer note 32) 594 -
Contributions to provident and other fands (refer note 22) 2275 2187
Staff weifare expenses 714 7.89
Total 491,71 543,26
17  Finance costs
Particulars Year eaded March | Year ended Murch
31, 2021 31,2020
Interest expense on
-Borrowings 4,01 4.26
<Delayed payment of income tax & TDS 0,02 0.52
-Lease liabilities {refer note 23) 39.59 41.34
~Others 0.03 011
Bank charges and other b ing cost 440 4.71
TFotal 48.05 5094
18 Other expenses
Purticuluss Year coded March | Year ended March
31,2021 31,2020
Clinical analytical rasearch expenses 277.06 24587
Marketing and busi pr ki P 19.11 239
Rent expenses (refer note 28) 1.92 1.06
Water and power charges 55.02 59.43
Legal and professional changes 79.27 64.40
House keeping and security expenses &6.71 7847
Professional charges of phlebotomists, mirses and doetors 16.4Q 19.55
Bio analytical research exp 17.04 2024
Insurance expenses 7.92 7.84
Conveyance and petrol cxpenscs 2.05 2.26
Telephonre expenses 332 3
Repairs and mal
~Buildings 383 3357
-Plant and machinary and cthers 59.38 5239
Rates and taxes 9.03 1239
Payments to the auditor (refer note 13.1) 1.25 1.28
Expenditure towards CSR activities 841 1.50
Miscallanecus expenses 2920 30.99
Pravision for doubeful debts 271 211
Net loss on mark to market of outstanding forwerd contract .13 15.22
Totul 659.76 §42.78
18.1 Payments to the anditor
Year ended March | Year ended March
Particulars 31,2021 31,2020
As auditor;
Audit fees 110 1.10
Tax audit fees 0ls 6.45
Reimbursament of exy * 0.03
Total 1.25 1.28

* Figure nullificd in conversion of Rupees in million.
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19 Tax expense
The major components of income tax expemse for the period ended March 31, 2021 and Maech 31, 2020 are

(A} Prufit amd loss scctise
Feu the year enced | For (he year ended

LT March 51,3031 | Mareb 31,2020

Current incame tux

Current icoms tax dharge 22230 1530

Deferred tax

Relating ta arigmation and eevessal of temporary differances (h35) &1
11245 S.40

Total tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

(B] Other comprehensive income [OC]) section
Partkculan Far e year ended | For thy year ended

Mzrch 31,2021 Merch 31,2020

Deferved tax velated to icems recognized in OCT during the year

Met loss/{guin) on of defined benefit plans 039 {0 25)
Deferred tox charged to OCL U39 (0.25)
(€} Reconcilintion of tox expense and the ing profit multiplied by Indin's d. ic tox wnte far che year emied Marew 31, 2021 and Marek 31, 2020
For the year euded | For the ywar ended
Particulars Manch 31,2021 March 31, 2000
Pyodit belove tax 85534 B.97
Tax using the Company's domesiic tax sty (Macch 31, 2021: 25 17% and Morch 31, 2030; 25.17%) 21526 226
Adjustment
Nen deductible expensc 39 58
knpact on nccoum of change i Lax @iz (refer noke bedon) - a7l
Tcome chargeable at different cax rate (0 56) -
Others 345 4D.15)
Tax expeuse as per eonsalidated statement af profit and loss 22248 2.40
Nole:
The Company has clected 10 cxercise Qic option purmdted usder Scation LISBAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 ag itrodweed by the Taxation Laws (A dacnt) qrdl b I dingly, th
y has ized e pravision for income (ax for the year ended March 31, 2020 and remuasured its dodorivd tas basis th rats p V in the alt id ssouon The | ia) imspact of
e of deforred can img 1o Ra & 71 milkon was accounted in prevous year ended March 31, 2020

() Balunce sheet section

Asat As at Asar
Partientda:
—— March 31,2021 | March31.2028 | Awrl01,2019
Incoenc tax mssctx {nct) 154.32 1532.81 7468
lacame tax sasets (net) 154.32 15231 76.68
E) Deferied tax
Balance Sheet 5 of Profit and Loss ocl

Particul For the year Par che year
iz As at Asal Asat For the yrar ended | For the year eaded ended —

March 31,2021 | March 31, 2820 April OF, 2019 Moaech 31, 2011 March 31, 2010 Mareh 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

Deferved tax acset/(Liahility) (Net)
Differonce botweon dopreciable assets as per books
of pocaunct and wiitten down valiae for tax 2642 24.50 25.66 232 (1-18p - -
burposc
Employxr benefics 1234 209 210 216 023 039 (0.25)
Effcat of MTM loss / (2ain) on farward conieact
payable @ 003 383 - {350) 18 - <
Bffect of provision for doubiful debts 395 azz s 064 o1l ~ =
Right to usc assots & loase Jmhilites 1931 1445 1242 456 243 + -
Restatement of omtual fund 057 x H 037) * 2z =
Others - - (0.46) - 046 - -
Deferred eax expense f (credit) 2 = 2 638 S0 039 10,25 ]
Net deferred tax sscory fliability) 61.38 5514 45.41

) As at Asal s
Reconciliation of deferred Lax ussets (net) e | " A‘!m s
Opeaing bakaace 35t (e bogionioy of the year 5.4 4948 42,93
Tk incomel(exppensc) during the period rovognized i profit or loss 635 550 {0 85)
Tax income/fexpense) during the period recognized in HCT 039 {1 25) u3s
Clasing balance as at the end of the year 61.88 S5.34 49.48
Note:

The company offscts tax astets and Makilkivs if and only if it has a logally eaforocable right to 4 off defermed tax asscls and defirmed 1ax tiabilitics tiat nbate 1o income taxes Jevied by the same tax
authority.
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20

20.1

20.2

20.3

Contingent liabilities & capital commitoient not provided for

Conltingencies

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 01, 201%

Claims against the company not acknowledged as
debts:
(i) Income tax * 109.68 107.91 107.45
(11) Service tax ** 160.43 160.43 161.50
(iii) Customs # 4.75 4.75 475

* Income tax demand comprise demand from the Indian tax authoyities for payment of additional tax of Rs 109.68 million (March 31, 2020: Rs
107.91 miltion; April 01, 2019: Rs. 107.45 million) upon completion of their tax review For the assessment year 2007-08 to 2019-20. The tax
demands are mainly on account of disallowances relating to transfer pricing matters, expenditure to earn exempt income, depreciation on
software, interest charged on [nan advanced, capital expenditure charged to revenue, ete. claimed by the company under the Income tax Act. The
matter is pending before various authorities. The said demand amounts have been already adjusted against refund of various years by Income Tax
department and hence net demand is Nil in respect of such period

*+* Service tax demand comprise demand from the Service tax authoritics for paywent of additional tax of Rs 160.43 million (March 31, 2020: Rs
160.43 million; April 01, 2019: Rs. 161.50 million), upan completion of their tax review for the financial year 2008-09 to 2015-16 The tax
demands are on account denial of export of service under Rule 4 of place of provision of Services Rules, 2012, reversal of CENVAT credit under
Rule 6(3) and é(3), disallowance of input tax credit, etc The matter is pending before various autherities

Above amount exclodes Rs. 145,87 miilion (March 31, 2020 Rs 145.87 million, Apeil 01, 2019 Rs. 145 87 million) for the period April 2016 to
June 2017 in rzspect of matiers whers the company has received favourable erders from the first appellate authoritics and has received refund
However, the department is pursuing appeal with higher appellate authority. The actual outflow would depend on the final ontcome of the matter

# Custom duty demand comprise demand from CBEC for payment of additicnal tax of Rs 4 75 million (March 31, 2020; Rs 4. 75 million; April
01, 2019: Rs. 4.75 million), upon completion of their tax review for the financial year 2011-12 to 2016-17. The demand is on account denqal of
custom duty exemption benefit claimed under the Notification 12/2012 dated March 17, 2612 The matter is pending before various authorities

The company is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax advisors, believe that its position will likely be upheld in the
appellate process. No tax expense has been accrued in the financial statements for the tax demand raised. The management befieves that the
ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on the company’s financial position and results of operations

Other rlaims not acknowledged as debt

Claim by a parly arising aut of a commercial contract: Rs, 1018 84 million (March 31, 2020; Rs. 1018.84 million; Aprit 01, 2019: Rs. 1018.84
million). The company has not acknowledged this claim. As advised by the external legal counsel, the claim is not legally tenable. Moreover, the
company is adequately insured and the matter is intimated to insurance company as well. The company has filed detailed response to the claim
lpdged. The matter is pending at commercial court, Ahmedabad In view of these, the company does not foresee any losses on this ¢count and
accordingly no provision is made in books of accounts.

Capital commitment

: Exrtinsar . Man::s;: 2021 Margns;lt. 2020 Agrifgftzow
:)é:zt;h:“d;co;}capnnl account and not provided for (net 0.66 6.0 28.06
Undeclared acerned preference share dividend

e Mare 31, 2071 Mm:?lt. 2020 Apriﬁla.‘zow
Dividend on CCCPS Class’A' (refernote 8{e ) (1)} * + %

¥ Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million

¥



Veeda Clinical Rescarch Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Rescarch Private Limited'')
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2021
{All 2mounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

21 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year aitributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attribulable to equity holders of the Company (after adjusting for interest on the compulsory convertible
preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be
issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:

] For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit/ (loss) after tax for the year §29.67 (0.43)
Nomnal value of equity share (Amount in Rs.) (refer note j below) 2 2
Total number of equity shares 6,01,196 5,87,163
Weighted average number of equity shares 587970 5,87,163
Weighted average number of equity shares after considering effect of share split and bonus (A) 3,52,78,223 3,52,29,780
Total number of CCCPS Class "A' 93,946 93,946
Weighted average number of CCCPS Class 'A' 93,946 93,946
Weighted average number of CCCPS Class ‘A’ after considering effect of share split and bonus (B) 56,36,760 56,36,760
Total number of shares for basic EPS affer considering effect of share split and bonus (nominal value of 4,09,14,983 4,08,66,540
equity share Rs. 2) (C) = (A) + (B)

Effect of dilution:

Ditutive effect of stock options granted undes ESOP 474 -
Dilutive effect on weighted average number of stock options granted under ESOP after congidering effect of share 28,431 -
sphit and bonus

‘Weighted average oumber of shares adjusted far the etfect of dilution 4,09,43 414 4,08,66,540
Earning per equity share (Amount in Rs.)

Basic earnings per share (refer note ii below) 15.3% @01
Diluted earnings per share (refer note iil below} 15.38 (0.01)

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.
Notes:

i Subsequent to year end, the board in their meeting held on June 26, 2021 approved split of each equity share of Rs. 10 each into 5 equity shares of Rs. 2 cach which
was approved by members in their meeting held on June 29, 2021. Hence, nominal vahue of equity share is presented as Rs. 2 per equity share (refer note 8)

il Above eamings per share has been computed based on revised number of equity shares considering split of equity shares & issue of bonus shares subsequent to
year end (refer note 8).

iii. There are potential equity shares as at March 31, 2020 which are anti-dilutive and here they are ignared in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.
Accordingly, the diluted earning/(loss) per share is the same as basic eamings/(loss) per share.
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Ndatad Fis

22 Disdl

1 [—
¥

e (ar

(u) Dofimad <ontribution pluns

Amount recagnized us exj and neluded in Note 16 "Employes benefit expanse”

For (he year ensded Foe the year ended
Particalars Marelt $1. 3021 March 31. 2024
Cantribution to Provident fund 1462 1255
Conwibution to Employce stalc insurand 1.64 232
Total 16.26 14.37
(b) Delined benefits plan
The C has following post emplay benedit whuch is in the nature of defined benefit plan

Gretuity

‘The Company provides for pratuity for employees in India as per 1he P

(%)

is the

for grawity. The amount of ity p on

for the number of years of scrvice calcubated on actuarial basis. The gratuity plan is a funded pla ta the extent bal

myment of Gratity Act, 1972 Empley

who are in

service for a pesiod of 5 years are eligible

d with bank Balance

availablc in such account as on March 31, 2021 i2 Rs 007 millioa (31 Macch 2020; Ra 0.07 million; April 01, 2019 Re. €07 million),

i Reconciliation of defmed banefit ubligation

lest drewn besic salary per month camputed propertionately for 13 days salary multiplied
available in Gramity j

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31,2020
Openlag defined benefit obligadlon 27.67 2312
Current Service Cost 48 437
Past Service Cost = (Y]
Interest Cost 189 157
Components of actuanal gam/{losses) on obligation
- Due to Chenge in Hnancial essumptians (0.54) a4l
- D¢ 10 changs in demographic assumption = .
- Due to experience adjustments {095 063
Beuefits patd 089 146
Qlosing delined bemefit sblipation 34,79 27.67
* Figure mullified sn convarsion of Rupees in million
ii. Reconciliution of the Fair valwe of Plan assets
As at As at
—— Marclt 31, 2021 March 31, 3920
QOpening value of plan aniets 0Q7 0407
Interest Income 006 0.06
Return on plan asgeta excloding incloded in interest | {0 06} (0.00)
Clasing value of plan assets .07 0.07
il Net liability/(Asset) ¢ d in the Balance Sheet
As sl Asal Ag at
Particalurs March 31, 2621 March 31,2020 Agril 01, 2019
Present Value of Defined Brnefv Obligations 34.79 2767 2312
Fair Value of Plan assels {007} 0.07) {206)
| Net liabillty/(Asset) recognized in flie Balance Sheet 34,72 27.60 13.06
iv. E rec { ia Profit and Loss
Pretculars Year ended Msrch 31, Year ended March 31,
2021 2020
Current secviee cast 483 437
Past gervice cost 2 L1
Net interest cost 163 1.50
|Net Gratuity cosd recognized in the statom ent of Profit and Loss 646 6.99
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far the year ended March 31, 2021

v, Other Comprehensive Income
Particulars Year ended Mavch 31, Year ended March 31,
2u21 2020
Acovanal gams / (losses)
- Due ta change in demographic assumptian - *
- Due to Ohanpe in financial assumplions (0.54) 041
- Due to experience adjustments 055) 063
Rejurn on plan assets, excluding amount recopnized in net interest expense 0.066 006
Components of defined benefit costs recognizedin ather comprehensive Income (1.55) 0.98
* Figure nollified in conversion of Rupees in million
vi, Tha major categories of plan assels &s a percentage of the fair value of total plan xssets
Year ended March 31 Year ended March 31, As at
Particul > )
i 2021 2020 April 01,2019
‘Bank balance (escrow account) 100% 100% 100%
Total 108% 100% 100%

Particalars

The principul asswnptions wsed i determining above defiwed benefit ebliy

Far the year eaded

Discount rate

Futurc salary incroase

Employee turmover

Mortality rale

625%pa
7.00% pa

25% p e at younger ages|
reducing to 5% pa at
elder ages|

Indian Assured Lives|
Moctality (2012-14)

for th

e com pany’s plin are shown below:

For the yesr ended

Mareh 31, 2021 Marezh 31, 2820

650%pa

0.00% p.a for next | year
& T.00% p a thereafter

25%pe atyounger ages
reducing (0 5% pa 81
older ages|

Indian Assured Lives|

| Aprit 03, 2050

Mortality (2012-14)

For the year ended

T%0%pn
12% p.a for next 3 years &

7.00% p a thereal

25% p a at younger ages
reducing to 5% pa. a older
ages

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)

Sensitivity nnalysis lor significant

ption iz ps unders

Increuse / (decrease) in definod bomelit vbligation
Particul; Sensilivity |
articulars silivity level For ihe yeor ended For ihe year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
. 5% increasa {1.07) {082)
D ¢ rat
seount sale 5% decrease 193 087
. 0.5% increase L2 037
Sall
SHIOEESs 0.5% decrease (1.06) B3
Employes tutovet Change by 10% upward {035) {033)
Change by 10% d d 03z 035
The lolluwing are the exg 1 future benefit pnyments for the defined benofil plan :
Particulars As a¢ At ghamt
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2000 Aprd 01, 1819
Within the next 1Z months (mext annual reporting pariod) 419 328 270
Batween 2 and S yearg 1895 13.99 11.18
Beyond 5 years 11.58 1033 913
Total expecied payments 34.72 2T.60 23.06
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23 Related party fransactions

As per the Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclasures® (Ind AS 24), the related parties of the company are
as follows:

Naxae of related parties and their relatianship

Name Relatioaship

Basil Prvats Limited Holding company

Bondway Investmeat Inc. Entity with significant influeace on the company

[ngenuiry Biosciences Private Limiied Joint venture in which the company ls a venhrer (w.e £ March 23, 202])
Bioneeds [ndia Private Limited Aspociete {w c.£ March 19, 2021)

Key managerial p 1 of the company

Mr. Apurva Shah (Director)

Mr, Binoy Gardi {Bireetor)

Mr. Ajay Tandon (Managing Director = w.c.£. May 25, 2020) (Executive Director - w.e.f. May 15, 2019 up to May 25, 2020)
Mr. Vivek Chhachhi (Neminee Di: 3]

Mr, Manu Sahni (Nominee Dirsctor) (W.e.f. September 28, 2020)

Ms. Apargjita Jethy Ahuja (Nominee Diractor)

Mr. Vinayak Shenvi (Alternate Director) (w.e.f. Navember 21, 2018 upto Cetober 26, 2020)
Mr. Ssarabh Mchta (Nominee Disector) {w.¢ £ November 21, 2013 uplo May 11, 2020)

Mr. Chirag Sachdev (Aiternate Dircctor) (W.c. £ May 295, 2020 Up to October 26, 2020)

Mr. Kiran Marthak (Director) (W.e.f. September 28, 2020)

Mr. Nirmal Bhatia (Company Secretary & CFQ)

Relative of key manageriul personnel
Ms. Sujata Gardi

Entity over which key managerial personuel or their relatives are able o exereise signifleant mflusence
Synersoft Technologies Private Limited

For the year ended For the year saded
Nuature of (ransactions with relared purtles March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Joint venture in which the company is 8 venturer

Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited

Investment in equity shires 3.50 -
Reimbursement of expenses incurred 681 -
Rent income 0.08 -
Associnte

Bioneeds Indiz Private Limited

Investmeat in equity sharcs 366.71 -
Interest Income on unsecured laan given 1.25 -
Loan given 23330 -

aperial r their relatives

ure able to exercise significunt (nfluence
Synersolt Techndlogies Private Limiced
Availmeat of services for development of software 0.14 002

Key managerial personngl

Remmumeration {including perquisites)

1. Mr. Apurva Shah 346 20.73
2. Mr. Binoy Gardi 306 33.84
3. Mk Ajay Tandon 15.00 13,19
Professtonal fees paid ro nonwexecutive director

I. Mr. Kiran Marthak 131 =
Salary (including perquisites)

1. Mr. Nirmal Bhatia 11.87 11.51
Rent- ¢xpense

L. Mr. Apurva Shah 0.55 4.60

v
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Rebubursement of expeases
L. Mr. Agurva Shah

2 Mr. Binoy Qardi

3. Mr. Ajay Tandon

4. M. Kitan Marthak

5. Mr. Nirmal Bhatia

Relatives of liev manaserial personnel
Salary
I, Ms, Sujata Gardi

oLm
0.24

0.20
0.02
0.22

0.24

2026

‘Ousstanding balances at the emd of the year

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2024

Az at
April 61, 2019

Joint venture in which the company is  venturer
[ngenuity Blosciences Privite Limited
Reimbursement reczivable

Associate
Bioneeds India Private Limdted
Loan given {including interest accrued) 234.58

B
R Afon pay (i

1. M. Apurva Shah 232 - 830
2 Mr. Binoy Gardi B21 $28 -
3 Mr Ajay Tandon 108 105
Professiona] fees p tive divector
L. Mr. Kiran Marthak 016 - .
Salary payable (including perquisites)
I. Mr. Ninnal Bhatia 079 0.81 0.63
Relmbursemeot of expenses payable
1. Mr. Apurva Shah - - 0.51
2. Mr. Binoy Gardi - - 0.02
3. Mr. Ajay Tandon - 009 "

In d

perquisites)

ble ta noe

Reladves of manaj ) o
Salary payable
1. Ms. Sujata Gardi 551 5.65 -

Terms wnd conditions of ransactions with related pardles

(1) The company’s umsauions with relared partics are at wsm’s length. Management of the company believes that the company's domestic and
intes with relsted parties post March 31, 2020 coatinue to be at aom’s lcagth and that the transfer pricing legislation will nat
bave any impact oo the financial stabcments pariicularly on the amount of the tax expense for the year and the amount of the provision fix faxation
at the year snd

(2) The fomre lability for graruity and compensated absonce is provided on agaregated basis for all the amployees of the company taken as a whole,
the tning to key gerial personnel is not ascertainable separatzly and thercfore not included above.

(3) Loan t0 associate
The loan granted to Bioneeds India Private Limited is intended to fund the repayment of ite CVCFL linbility. The losn is vnsecured and is repayable
on or befare final maturity date which shall not be lates than 3 months from the date of disburscment or such other date ns mutually agreed among
the partics (o loan Loan carrics interest rate of 15.00% p.a compounded annually. The toan has been utilized for the pupose fos which it was
granted

Conmmlfent with related party
The company has not provided any commitrment to refated party as at March 31, 2021 {(March 31, 2020: Nil; April 01, 2019; Nil)

\'d
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24 Segment reporting

The company is mainly engaged in the business of Clinical Research for various Pharmaceuticals Companies. The
company’s business falls within a single business segment of 'Clinical Research' and all the activities of the Company
revolve around this main business. The Chief Operating decision maker (CODM) monitors the operating results of the
business as a whole for the purpose of making decisions about resgurce allocation and performance assessment.
Therefore, management views company’s business activity as a singfe segment and there are no separate reportable
segments in terms of the requirements of Ind AS 108 "Cperating Segments" as notified under section 133 of the

companies Act 2013,

Geographical segment

For management purposes, the company is organized into two majot operating geographics India and outside India. More
than 30% of the Company's business is from India, there are no individual foreign countrics contributing material
revenue. Thus, the segment revenue, segment assets and total cost incurred to acquire segment assets are disclosed into
two operating geographic- India and outside Indiz in the financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2021,

Revenue from external customers Aear cuded Year ended
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

India 623.43 540.04

Qutside India 1,334,71 860.62

The tollowing is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-current assets, which do not include deferred tax assets,
income tax assets and financial assets analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:;

Carrying amouut of non-current operating assets As at March 31, 2021 fhe at ;;;;ch 31, As atzAO;];" o1,
India 756.83 783.60 644.19
Outside India - - -

Information about major customers:
The company has assessed that there are no external customers from which the revenue from transactions is 10% or more
of the company's total revenue for the year ending March 31, 2021, for the year ending March 31, 2020.
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5 F!mm.'inl ﬁulnmtu - fair vaine hles nuly

The pobgics, i g the crilcra for recognition, the basis of and the basis on which income and sxperes are recognized, im
respect of vach closs ofﬁnanml assof, ﬁmaal Jiability and equity instrument an disclossd in notw 2 Lo thae idated Finaneal S
Fuir values
A, Categoryswise classification of finzneial insteument
The canrying vahae of Ainancial ¥ by caregorics as of March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 and April 01, 2019
= Asat Asat Asat

BarGeniars Notes March 31, 2021 Maceh 31,2020 | Anedi 09, 2019

Finaneial assets!

Al tost

Investncns 41 36598 = -

Total 36698 & =

At amortized <ot

Loans 45 234.55 - -

Trade reccivables 42 45151 360 4% 39933

Cash and eagh ¢quivalents 43 149.61 14412 178 60

Odber bark baances 44 4 3160 2532

Onher fmancial asscls (curromt) 46 174.10 146.74 65.67

Other financial sescrs (won-ctirreat) 46 7199 6935 2693

Total 1,110.20 75250 63390

Tatal 1,471.18 751.50 693.90

Fair valac through profit and loss

Imvestmemils 4.1 29882 = 18.53
29852 - 18.53

‘Total finanelsi assets 1,775.7¢ 752.50 71243

Financial liabilities

At amortized cust

Bomowings 0.l 24322 16691 284

Trado payables n2 12327 1743 121 63

Leass ligbilifics 21 434.02 392 33 224 5%

Qe fnoncial Babililics (catrenty 103 7345 TH43 13073

Other (manclal liabilities (aan-¢urrent) 103 050 L) 0350

Total 874,45 71560 52631

At fuir value throngh profit & loss

Mark to market liability an forward coniracts 193 013 [y >3 -

Tota) 0.13 1522 -

‘Total flnancial I[abilities §74.59 740.22 52631

Tha manageecet assesced thar caryimg vahace of finaicial asscts ic. cash and cash K trade bies, trady i and othor financial stants and

Jabditics ag at March 31, 2021, March 3|, 1020 and April 01, 2019 arc reasonable approximations of their fair valies langely Aue o the short-1zan saluriics of these
WSS

The: falr valuc of the financial asscts and liabilitivs i iachided at the amouwid at which L & could ba exchanged i e coment ion between willing

Fair yalue hierarchy

LHE TRT VANNS OF 1n6 tURpoE Assels and LI0NIUGS 5 IDCINACT 56 U AMGWHN 2 WICT (G conid pe BEA In A ciment UREWELD WILUG
paniics. other than in & forced or liquidacion sak. The Campany uses the fallowing hicrarchy for determining asdfor disclosing the fair value of Pinancisl Ingiramznls
by valuation sechaiques:

(i) Level ) quoted pricos (enadjusted) in active markets for identical Ageors or Liabilitios.
(%) Lavel 2- inpans other than quared prices included within Level 1 that arc obscrvable for the Asscis or Liabilitics, cither dircatly (i e, a prices) or midirecthy tie.
Arcrvrd fmm onerel

uantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy :
Fuir Valug o B
Partieulars asul Asat Asal ::::'r:;e :"';l“:." .
Mareh 31, 2031 Mareh 31, 2020 Al 01, 2019 bl ol
. . NAV Sutemcat
Investmant in metual funds al Fase vafoc tirough B
RO and Toss (refer niokc 4.1) 29852 1843 Level-l wv::.db:'ﬁmd
mankicr |
Mark to market liability on forward contracts MTM statcment by
{rofer note 10.3) 013 1322 = Levgk2 Yark
i ial instroment d ar d cost
Ths camying asount of financial asauts amd financial liabilitics d at ized com in the inl arc a b sumation of their fir
valuss since tha Company docs pot amlicipate diat the carrying would be signficasily diff fior the values thas would evemually be teecived or sottied

Recomeiliation ol level 1 fair vatues
The following labke shtows 2 reconcliation from the opening batanec o the ctosiug balances for kevel | Guir valmos reproscntiag Wvestmens in short tem liquid mutwal fe

. Arng Asmt
e rasisis Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Openings balande - 18353
Net gain on mvesiment w mutial funds 831
Purchascs £72.73 =
Sales 58351 18:33
Closing halance 198.82 £
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26 Financial risk gement abjeciives andl poliei
The company's prncipal financial lmblhucs compnsc loans and bormowings, trade and other payables. The wain purpese of thesc financial LabilWies is to finance 1w
pany's operations. The company's principal fi d assefs include trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivaleits that derive direcily from its operations
The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The company's senior g the B of these risks and ensures that financial risk
activities ave governed by appropiate policics and procedures and that Bnanckal 1tsks ar¢ ideotificd, measwed and managed in accordance with the company's policies and risk
objectives.
(8) Market risk

Market risk is the #isk that e fair value of future cash flows of a financkal instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of
nisk: interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include bomowings, receivables, payables and deposits.

The sensitivity analysis in the followityg sections relate to the position as st March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 & Apail 01, 20)9. The scasiivity analysis has been prepared on
the basis that the amount of net debt and the proportion of fnangial instruments in foveign currencits arc all constant The analysis excludes the impact of movements in
market variables on the canrying values of gratuity and oiber post retirement obligations and provisions,

Tl scasitivity of the relevant profit os loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market rigks. This is based on the financinl assets and financial liabilities
held at March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 & Apnil, 01, 2013

Expaosure to interest rate risk
Company's inferest tate risk arises from borrowings abligations Borrowings issued ¢xpose 10 fair valus imsrest rate risk. The inkerest rate profile of the company’s interest-
bearing Financial nstruments a¢ reported fo the manay of the company is as foll

As at March 31, | As et March 31, | Asat April 01,

Variable-rate nstruments 2031 [ 2019

Non-current bosrowings * - -

Current borrowings 93.22 166.91 48,84
= 54.15

[Curreni partion of long term bonowingy -

Tnterest rate sensitlvity:
Ar by ible cliange of L0C basis poinis in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased {(decreased) equity and profit or loss by ilie amoants shown

below. This analysus assumes that all other vartabies, in particular foreign cumency exchange rates, remain consiant

Peofle or (loss) Equity, net of tux
Partlculars

100 bp inerease | 100 bp decrease | (00 bp increase | 100 bp decrease
March 31, 2021
Non-curvent borrowings . = . <
Current barrawings (0.93) 093 {0.70) 0.70
Current portion of long et borrowings - E : -
Total (0.93) 93 (0.70) 170
March 31, 2020
Non-current borrowings - - - -
Curent barrowings (1-67) L67 (1.25) 1.25
Current portion of long texm boirowings E: - - -
Tatal 11.67) 1.67 (1.35) 1.25 |

Foreign currency
Eorcign currcney risk is the risk that the fair value o future cash flows of an expasune will fincfuare because of changes i forcign exchange rates. The company's expasure 1o
the risk of changes n foreign exchange cafes refates to the company's operating activities denominated in United States Dollar (USD), Ewro {EUR), British Povnd Sterling

(GBP) and Brazilian real (BRL).

The following fable sets forth info on relating to unhedged foreign currancy exposure as at March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 and Apdil 01, 2015,

(i) Foreign currency receiv

As at March 3], 2021 As al Mareh 31, 2020 As at April 01, 2019
Particulars In fareign Amount In Rs. In foreign Amount in Rs. In foreign Amount io Rs,

- enrrency million CUFFENCY million currency million
Trade recaivahles:

- US Dollars - = - = 31,03,853 214.%0
= Buto 13,89,410 136.85 7.92,100 65.78 8,31,831 64,64
-BRL 1,83,021 237 - - 2 3

- British Potnd Stecling 4,188 0.42 64,692 602 55,893 506
Advance to ereditors:

» US Dollass 3,123 Q.23 - - - -
Total = 139.87 = 71.8¢ = 284.40
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(ii) Foreign currency payab

As at Murch 31, 2021 As ut Mareh 31, 2020 Ag at April 01, 2010
Particulars In foreign Amount in Rs. In foreign Amuount in Bs. [n foreign Amount in Rs,
currency million coreency millkan curreney million
Lade pavables;
- US Dollars 75,010 535 11,047 083 - -
Borrowings;
- US Dollars - - 22,14,122 166.31 7.06,115 48.84
Advance from customarg:
=US Dollars 78,527 577 441974 33.32 3,016,652 21.90
- Ewo - - 13,707 114 26,503 206
Other payables:
= US Dollass 2,35,607 17.32 1,59.208 1200 15,588 1.08
- Bntish Pound Sterling - - - - 58.500 $.29
Total - 28.60 - 214.20 79.17
Ferrign currency scusitlvity

The following tebles demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonabiy possible change in USD, Euro, BRL & British Pound Stering exchangs raics, with all other variables heid
constant. The iropact on the company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and kiabilitics

Particulars Profit or (loss) Equity, net of tax

Effect in amount Strengthening Weakening Strengthening ‘Weakening
March 31, 2021

5% Movement

uspD {143) 143 (107 107
EUR 684 (6.84) 512 (5.12)
BRL 012 (0.12)] 0.09 (0.09)
Bridsh Pound Sterling 0492 {0 02)| 202 (0.02)
March 31, 2020

5% Movemend

UsD {10 65), 1065 {7.97) 797
EUR 323 323) 242 (242)
British Powd Stesling D.30 10.30} 023 {023)
{b) Credit risk

Credit risk is tha risk that counlerparty will not meet its abligations under a financial instrument or costomer contract, leading to a financial loss The compary is exposed to
credit risk from ils operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and fiom its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreigm exchange
transactions and othicy financial instruments

Trade Receivables

Trade Regeivables of the company are d Credit risk is managed through periodic monitoring of the credirworthiness of in the nommal cowrse of business.
The all for impat of Trade reccivables is d to the extent and as and when required, based upon the expected collectability of ivables. The
company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect ta trade receivables as low, as its Customers are group of repute.
The maximun exposure to eredit rigk for trade receivable by phic region arc as follows:

Particalars As utMarch 31, | Agat March 31, As at April 91,

2021 2020 2019

Domestic 170.92 167.09 123.03
Other regions 2%6.2% 206.37 287.17
Total 462.21 373.46 410,20

Age ol trade receivobles

Asat March31, | AsatMarch31, | AsatApril 01,

Particulars 2021 2020 2019

Not due 270.66 106.77 169.39
01-30 days past duc 75.52 93.22 76.68
31-60 days past due 26.84 3896 7541
6190 days past due 3574 15,19 6.62
91-360 dys past due 4872 106.31 68.78
More than 360 days past due paa) 1310 13.32
Tatal 467.21 37346 410.20
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Financizl instraments and cash depoaits

Credit risk from balances wilh banks and financial institutions is ;nanaged by the company's treasury department in d wiih the company’s policy. Investments of
surplus flnds ate made anly with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Cowtterpacty crsdit limits arc reviewed by the company’s
Board of Dirzctors on an amuel basis, and may be updated throughout the year subjecl to approval of the senior manapenwent. The limits are set to minimize the concenfralion
of nsks and therefore miligate financial boss d party’s potential failwre io mnke payments,

B

{c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity fisk is the risk tha the coinpany may nol be able 1o meel its present and fimure cash and colfwteral obligations withaut i ing ptable losses. The pany’s
objective is to, &t all times maimain optinmum levels of liguidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The company closely monitoss its liquidity poesition and deploys a
robust cash uanagement system. [t maintains adequate sources of financing tlirough various shorl tesvn and boay, ienn loans at an opéimized cost.

The table delow summarizes the matwity profile of the company’s financial Liabilities based on contractual undiscounted paynents:

Particulars Ondemand | Less than 1 year | 1 year co 5 years | More than 5 years Total

As at Mareh 31,2021

Batrowings 922 150.00 - - 243.22
Trade payables - 123.27 - - 123.27
Leasc liabiluics E 57.48 230.50 145.94 434.02
Other financial liabilities # - 73.58 - Q350 7408
Total 93.22 404.33 230.60 146.44 874.59
As at March 31, 2020

Boerowings 166.21 - - = 166.91
Trade payables - 2743 - - 87.43
Lease Liabilities - 37.84 225.02 129.47 392.33
QOther financial Liabilitics # - 93.63 - 0.50 94,13
Total £66.91 218.%0 225.02 129.97 740,80
As at April 01, 2019

Borrowings 48.84 - - e 48.84
Trade payables - 121.65 = - 121.65
Lease liabilitics - 3033 16290 3136 124.59
Other finencial liabilitics # - 130.72 - 0.50 131.22
Total 48.834 282,70 162.90 31.8¢ 526,34

# Includes current maturities of long term borrowings and imerest acesved and due on borowings

Capital management

The company aims To manages its capital cfficiently 50 as to safeguard its ability to contimue 6s a going concern and to optimize retums to the sharebolders

The capital structure of the company is hased on management's judgement of the appropriate balance of key clements in ofder ta meet its srategic and day-1o-day needs. We
consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage il capitel structwe in light of changes in economic conditions and the tisk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In arder to maintain or edjust the capital structure, the company mey adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, rerum capital to sbareholders or issue new
shares.

The company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structirre with a focus on total cquity 50 as to maintain ivestor, creditors and to sustain fisure development and
prowth of its business The company will takc appropriate sieps in order to imaintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital séructure.

g

No changes were made in the obj s, p or pt for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 and April 01, 2019,
AsatMareh 31, | AsatMarch31, | As at April 01,
Particulars 2021 2020 2019
Debt (refer below note) 243.22 16651 102.99
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 149.61 144.12 176.6D
Nel debt 93.61 2.7 (73.61)
Equity sharc capital 6.0) 587 597
Instruments in the nature of equity 35230 35230 35220
Other equity 1.336.05 521.82 521.53
Total equity 1.694.36 879.99 879.70
Net debt to equity ratio {refer note li belaw) £,82% 2.5%% =

Note:

{) Debt is defined as long-torm bosrowings, short-lerm bormowings and current maturities of long-term borrowings (cxcluding financial guarantee conmracts and contingent

consideration)

ii) Since net dedt 1o equity ratio as at Apri OF, 2019 is nepative, it is not considered for calculation
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)

i)

ity

iv)

v}

vi)

Leases

Company as a Lessee:

The company has operating lease for various premises which are r bla on a periadic basis and Mable &t its option The lease terms of premises
are between 3 to 9 ysars. The company has availed the sxemption of low value of assets. The company has opted to apply for 'Full Retraspective' as its
transition appioach wder Ind AS |16 with the date of lease Lease pay evaluated by the pany are fixed pay in nature with
company not exercising any termination or r I options to terminate or extend the ariginal lease term. Useful life of right of usc asset for computation

of amoriization expense on right of use aseets is assumed ta be the tern of the leas: and method used is Straight-line medhod.

The company has taken certain premises on lease wherein lense reat is of law value amounting to Rs, 1.92 million for e year ended March 31, 2021
(March 31, 2020: Re. .06 million). The company applies low value lease rent exeraprion for these leases.

The carrying value of right of use and depreciation charged during the year

At at Asat A at
SaEE— Maveh 31, 2021 Maxch 31, 2020 April 01, 2019
Premises
Opening batance 340.77 187.17 187.17
Additions duting the year 80.94 21006 z
Depreciation charged during the vear (refer vote 3) (58.52) (56.46) -
Closing balance 363.49 340.77 187.17
‘The movement in lease liabilities during the year
As ar As at As ar
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 Apeil 01, 2019
Qpening balance 39233 22459 224,59
Additions 80.05 20724 -
Payment of lease liabilities (77.95) (80.34) =
Interest expensas (refer note 18) 39.59 41.34 L
Closing bal 434.02 392.33 224,59
Batances of lease liabilities
As af Asgat As at
Pardcaiavs Marsh 34, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 01, 2019
Current lease liabilities 57,48 3784 3033
Non-current lease iiabilities 376.54 354.49 194.26
Total 434.02 30233 224.5%
Amount recapaized in statement of profit end loss during the yesr
. For the year ended For the year ended
fartieulans March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Depscciation expense on right of use asset {refer nots 3) 58.52 $6.46
[pterest expense on |ease Liabilities (refer note 17) 38.59 41.34
Expenses relating to Iow value leases (included in other expense) (refer
1.92 1.06
note 18)
Total 100.03 98.86
Maturity analysis of Icase labilities
As ut As at As at
Parficulars
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 0], 2019
Mafurity analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flaws
Less than ane year 5748 37.84 30.33
Onc to five ycars 230.60 225.02 162.90
Morse than five years 14594 129.47 3L.36
Total 434.02 39233 22459
Amount recognized in cash flow Statement
Particulars For the year ended For tiwe year ended
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
Total cash outflow for leases 77.95 80.84
Total 77.95 80.84
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29 First-time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2021, are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For all periods up to
and including the year ¢nded 31 March 2020, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Aceounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 (Indian GAAP).

Accardingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on March 31, 2021, together wilh
the comparative period data as at and for the year snded March 31, 2020, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. [n preparing
these financial statements, the Company s opening balance shect was prepared as at April 01, 2019, the Company’s date of transition ta Ind AS This note
explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at April 01,
2012 and the financial statements as al and for the year ended March 31, 2020

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions and exceptions from the retrospective application of certain requiremenis under Ind AS which
are as follows:

(a) Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter o elect 1o continue with the carrying valuc for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognized in the
financial statements es at the date of Lransition after maldng necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for
other intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible assets and Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development Accordingly the
Company has elecied to measure all of its property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets, Capital work-inprogress and intangible assets under
development at their Previous GAAP carrying value.

(b) Desigmatlon of previously recognized finaneial instruments
Financial assets and fmancial liabilities are classified at fair value through profit or boss based on facts and circumstances as at the date of transition to [nd
AS ¢ April €1, 2019. Financial assets and liabilitics are recognized at tair value as at the date of wansition to Ind AS i e. April 01, 2019 and not from the

date of initial recognition.

¢} Estimates

The estimates at 1 April 2019 and at 31 March 2020 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAP except
impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model and unquoted equiry shares at fair value through profit or loss. The estimates used by
the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at April 01, 2019, the date of transition 1o Ind AS and as of March 31,

2020

d) Leases

Ind AS 116 requires an entity lo assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. According to Ind AS 116, this assessment should be carried out
at the inception of the contract or arrangement However, the Company has used Ind AS 101 exemption and assessed all arrengements based on conditions
in place as at the date of transition

€) Classification and measurement of financial asseis
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to asscss classification and measurernent of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date

of transition to Ind AS

Reconciliation hetween previously reported Indian GAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires an eatity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the
reconciliation from erstwhile Indian GAAP to Ind AS.
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i)  Eifect of Ind AS adoption on the balance sheet ag at April 01, 2019
Notes to first time Amount gs per Indian  Effects of transition to

adoption GAAP Ind AS Amount as per Ind AS
Assels
Non-current assets
(a) Praperty, plant & equipment 37433 - 374.33
(b) Capital work-in-progress 74.10 = 74.10
(¢) Right of use assets | - 187.17 18717
(d) Other intangible assets 319 = 319
(c) Intangible assets under development 336 - 32
() Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 2 30.75 (3.82) 2693
(p) Deferred tax assets (net) 4 44.60 488 4948
{h) Incame ¢ax assets (net) 76.68 - 76.68
(i) Other non-carrent assets 214 - 214
609.05 188.23 797.28
Current assets
(a) Inventories 4732 - 4732
{b} Financial assets
{1) Investments 5 17272 0.81 1853
{ii} Trade reccivables 3 402 11 (2.78) 39933
(iil} Cash and cash equivalents 176.60 - 176,60
(iv) Bank balanec ather than (iii) above 2537 - 25.37
{v) Other financial assets 65.67 - 6567
{c) Other current assets 1725 - 12.25
752.04 (1.97) 75007
Total assets 1,361.08 186,26 1,547.3%
Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 587 - 587
(b) Instruments in the nature of equity 35230 - 35230
(¢) Other equity l1to5 53693 (1339 521.53
Total equity 895,19 (15.39) 879,70
Non-current [iabilities
() Financial liabilities
(i) Lease linbilities - 194.26 194,26
(3i) Other financial liabilities 1 2211 (21.61) 050
{b) Provisions 20.80 e 20.80
42.91 172,65 215.56
Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 48.84 - 48.84
(ii) Lease Liabilities - 3033 3033
(iii) Trade payables 121.63 - 121.65
(iv) Other financial Jiabilities 131.49 0.76) 130.73
(b) Other current liabilitics 1 110.64 0.57) 110.07
(c) Provisions 10.47 - 10.47
423.08 29.00 452.09
Total liabilities 465.9% 201.65 667.65

Total equity and liakilities 1,361.08 186.26 1,547,385
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ii) _Effect of Ind AS adoption on the balance sheet as at March 31. 2020

Notes to first time

Amonnt 25 per Indian

Effects of transition fo

xdoption GAAP Ind AS Amounrt 35 per Ind AS
Assels
Non~current sssets
(2) Praperty, plant & equipment 42508 - 42908
(b) Capital wock-in-progress = = =
(¢) Right of use assets | - 346,77 34077
(d) Other intangible assets 6.70 - 670
{¢) Intangible assects under development 5.08 - 508
(f} Financial assets
{1) Other financial agsets 2 7541 {5 86) 69.55
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 4 46.96 218 5514
(h) Income tax assets (net) 152.81 - 152 81
(i) Other non-cusrent assets 1.97 - 1.97
Current assets 718.01 343.09 1,061.10
(a) Inveatories
(b) Financial Assets 4775 4725
(i) Trade receivables 3 36537 (4.89) 36048
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 144.12 - 144.12
(iii) Bank balance other than included in (if) above 3161 - 31.61
(iv) Other financial assets 146.74 146.74
(c) Other cumrent assets 23.70 - 23.70
759.29 {4.89) 75440
Total assety 1,477.30 338.20 1,815.50
Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 587 - 5.87
(b) Instruments in the nature of equity 35230 - 35230
{c) Other equity 1o 4 547.51 (2569) 521.82
Total equity 905.68 (25.69) 879.99
Non-¢urrent liabilitics
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities B 354.49 35449
(i#) Other financial liabilities 1 24.63 (24.13) 0.50
{b) Provisions 24.83 = 24.83
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 49.46 330,36 379.82
Current liabflities
(a) Financia! lisbilities
(i) Borrowings 166.91 - 166.91
(i) Lease liabilitics - 3784 37.84
(iii) Trade payables 87.44 - 8744
{ii) Trade payables
(iv) Other financial liabilitics | 93.64 52.64
(b) Other current Jiabilities 162.88 (4.31) 158.57
(c) Provisions 11.29 - 11.29
52216 33.52 555.69
Total liabilities 571.62 363.39 935,51
Total equity and liabilittes 1.477.30 338.20_ 1,815.50




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formeriy known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limbted")
Naotes (o the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounis in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

iif)

iv)

v)

Effect of Ind AS udoption on the statement of profit and loss for the year ending March 31,

Notes to first time ~ Amount as per Indian  Effects of transition ta

Amaunt a3 per Ind AS

adoption GAAP Ind AS
Revenue from operations 1,512.74 - 151274
Other income 2 23.27 0.80 24,07
Total income 1,536.01 0.80 1,536.81
Cost of materials consumed 132,85 = 132.85
Employes benefit expenses ] 54229 0.97 543.26
Finange cosis 1 8383 4211 5094
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1 101.58 56.46 15804
Other expenses 1,3,5 726.92 (84.17) 64275
Total expense 1,512.47 15.37 1,527.84
Profit before tax 23.54 (14.57} 8.97
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 1530 15,30
(2) Deferred tax 4 {23%) {3.55) (5.90)
Total tax expense 12.95 (3.55) 940
Profit after tax 10,59 (11.02) (0.43)
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified io profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains / (fosses) on defined
benefit plans 6.7 - 097 0.97
Income Iax effect 4 = (0.25) (0.25)
Other comprehensive income for the yuur, nat R 072 072
of tax
Tatal comprehensive income for the year 10.59 {10.30) 0.29
Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2020 and April 01, 2019
Equity reconciliation
Notes ¢o first time As at As at
adoption March 31, 2020 April 01, 2019
Tatal cquity as per previous GAAP 54751 33693
Impact on accaunt of application of Ind AS L16 (net) 1,2 {28.98) (19.07)
Impact of Impainment allowance on trade receivahles 3 (4.89) (2.78)
Change on account of fair value adjustment of finaneial instruments 5 - 0.31
Others - 0.77
Impact of above adjust on deferred taxes 4 818 4.8%
Closing balance of equity 521.82 £21.53
Impact of ahave Ind AS adjustments in the statement of cash Hows for the year ended March 31, 2020 is as folkows.
Cash flow reconciliation for the year ended March 31, 2020
Particulars Indian GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Net cash flow from operating activitics 10.42 80,84 91.27
Net cash flow from investing activities (90.28) - (90.28)
Net cash flow from financing activities 46.38 (80.34) (34.47)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents {33.48) - (33.48)
Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign currency cash and ¢ 1.00 - 1.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 176.60 176.6D
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 144.12 - 144.12




Veeda Clinical Rescarch Limited (formerly kmown as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited')
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the yesr ended March 31, 2021
{Allamounts in rupees nillion, unless atherwise stated)

Notes to first-time adoption

1. Leases
Under Previous GAAP, lease rentals were recognized 25 an expense after giving straight lining impact Under Ind AS 116, the lessee shall recognize right

of use assets and lease liabilitics at the inception of Jease. Right of use asset shall be depreciated over the lease period and lease liability shall be classified
as financial liability and finance cost shall be charged on it for each reporting period. The above calculated amount is cumulative of depreciation on right-

ofwuse assets, finance cost element and reversal of lease rent expenses.

2. Tncerest free security deposits given
The Company has given certain interest free security deposits towards the lease of its office premises. Under Indian GAAP, these deposits are recorded at

its transaction value However, under Ind AS, these deposits are measured at its fair value on inilial recognition. Interest income is accrued on discounted
value of these deposits and defemred rent expense is amortized (o profit and loss over the lease term,

3. Impairment allowance on trade receivables
Under Ind AS, impairment allowance on trade receivables has been determined based on ECL model. This model considers the delay risk (i e, delayed

receipts of payments) and the defauk risk (i.c. non receipt of payments) for calculating the impairment loss on financial assets.

4. Deferred tax
The various transitional adjustments have led to temporary differences and accordingly, the Company has accounted far such differences Deferred 1ax

adjustments are recognized in carrelation to the undertying transaction either in retained eamings or a separate component of equity.

5. Fair value adjustments on financial instruments
Current investments - Under Previous GAAP, current invesuments in instruments such as mutual funds are recognized at cost or net realizable vahse,

whichever is lower. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value The resulting fair value changes of these investments have
been recognized in remined earnings as as the date of transition and subscquently in Statement of profit and loss For the year ended March 31, 2020

6. Actuarial pain / loss transferred to Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, re-measurements i ¢. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the
net defined benefit liability are recognized in other comprehensive income instead of Statement of profit and loss. As a result of this change, profit for the
year ended March 31, 2020 has increased by Rs. 0.73 million, There is no impact on total equity

7. Qther comprehensive income
Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognized in a period should be included in profit of loss for the period unless standard requires or

permits otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognized in profit and loss but are shown in the Statement of profit and loss as ‘other
comprehensive income' includes remeasurement of defined benefit plans

8. Classification and presentation
The previous year Indian GAAP numbers have been reclassifisd/regrouped to make them comparable with Ind AS presentation.




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2021
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30 Imterest in joint venture

During the year, the company has acquired 50% interest in Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited on March 29, 2021, a joint ventire
involved in the business of clinical research for various pharmaceuticals companies. The company's interest in Ingennity Biosciences
Private Limited is accounted by using the equity method in these Consolidated Financial Statements. Summarized financial
information of the jeint venture, based on its Ind AS financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying amotnt of the

investment in consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Summarized balance sheet as at March 31, 2021:

Pariiculars ol

March 31, 2021
Non current assets {A) 119
Current assets (B) 12.22
Total Assets (A+B) 15.42
Non-cutrent tiabilities (C) 0.08
Current liabilities (D) 14.16
Total liabilities (C+D) 14.24
Total Equity 118
Contingent liabilities -
Capital Commitment -
Company's share in total ¢quity: 50% 0.59
Goodwill -
Company's carrying amount of the investment 0.59

Summarized statement of profit and loss for the period ended March 31, 2021:

Particulars

Period ended March
31, 2021

Revenue from contracts with customers
QOther income

Total income

Cost of raw material consumed

Employee benefit expense 0.51
Finance cost =
Depreciation & amortization 0.08
Other expense 5.16
Laoss before tax (5.75)
Tax expense 0.07
Loss for the period (5.82)
Other comprehensive income for the period -
Total comprehensive loss for ¢the period {5.82)
Company’s share of loss for the period (50%) {2.91)




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2021
{All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

31 Investmentin an associate
Daring the year, on March 19, 2021 the holding company has acquired 30% interest in Bioneeds [ndia Private Limited which is invotved in
the business of providing Integrated Discovery, Development & Regulaiory Services to Pharmaceutical, Biopharmaceutical, Agrochemical,
Industrial Chemical, Herbal, Nutraceutical & Medical Device companics. Bioneeds India Private Limited is a private entity that is not listed
on any public exchange. The holding company’s interest in Bioneeds India Private Limited is accounted by using the equity method in the

Consolidated Financial Statemenis

The following table illustrates the summarised financial infosmation of the company’s investment in Bioneeds India Private Limited ss at

March 31, 2021
Particulars As at March 31,2021
Non eurrent assets (A) 1,233.93
Curent assets (B} 265.53
Total assets (A+B) 1,499.46
Nown-current iiabilities (C) 471.13
Current liabililies (D) 821.04
Total liabilities (C+D) 1,292.17|
Total equity 207.29)
Contingent lisbilities 27.69
Capital Commitment 111.46]
Company's share in total equity : 30% (March 31, 2020: Nil; April 01, 2019: Nil) 62.19
Goodwill 304.20
Company's carrying amonat of the investment 366,39
. Year ended March 31,
Particulars 2021
Revenue from operations 6833.54
Other income 14.34
Total income &§47.88
Cost of rew inaterial consuted 119.24
Emnployee benefit expenses 24433
Finance costs 4472
Depreciation and amortization expenses 89.20
Other expenses 178 04
Total expenses 675.53
Loss before tax (27.65)
Tax expense 2.65
Loss for the year (30.30)
Attributable to:
-Equity holders of the parent (28.90)
~Non-contrelling interests (1.40)
Other comprenenstve loss for the year (0.80)
Attributable to:
~Equity holders of the parent (0.80)
-Non-controlling interests -
Total comprehensive income for the yvear (31.10)
Attributable to:
~Equity holders of the parent (29.70)
-Non-controlling interests {1.40)
Company’s share (30%) of total comprehensive income for the perlod from March 19, 2021 to March 31, (0.32)
2021 ‘
Nates:

1) As the holding company has acquired the interest on March 19, 2021, the comparatives are not presented.

ii) Subsequent to year end, the members in their meeting held on May 25, 2021 approved acquisition of 20.10% of the shareholding in
Bioneeds India Private Limited.

R iii) Subsequent to year end, the board in their meeting held on June 22, 2021 approved investment of Rs. 240 million in aptionally convertible

-~ redeemable preference shares (“CCRPS”) having minimum coupon rate of 0.001% which was subsequently spproved by membets in theis

“.¢ miccting held on June 24, 2021, .




Veedn Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited')
Notes to the consolidated Finaucial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2021
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32

33

Employee stock option plans
Under ESOP 2019, the board of directors is authorized to grant options exercisable into subscription of shares of the holding company Each option shall be
convertible into one equity share and the aggregate number of options subscribed into shares shal) not exceed 5% of the paid-up capital of the hoiding company

Le. 34,055 options. The options granled under ESOP 2019 will be exercisable at an exercise price of Rs 10,644 per share (Rs. 177.40 after considering effect
of split and bonus issue). If the options expire or become unexercisable without having been exercised in full, the unexercised options, which were subject

thereto, shall become available for futwe grant

The fair value of the share options is estiinated at the grant date using Biack-Scholes mode), taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share
aptions were granted. However, the above performance condition is only considered in determining the number of instraments that will uitimately vest.

The share options ¢an be cxercised up fo 48 months after 46 manths of vesting period and therefore, the contractual term of each oplion granted is 94 months
There are no cash settlement altematives. The holding company does not have a past practiee of cash settlement for these shere options. The compary accounts
for the Veeda Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 (VESP) as an equity-settied plan

The expense recognized for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

Particulars Muarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Expense arising from equity-seftled sharesbaged puyment ansactions 594 -
Tatal expense arising from share-based payment fransacticns 594 -

There were no cancellations of modifications to the awards in year ending March 31, 2021 or March 31, 2020

Movements during the year
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average cxercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the year:
Particalars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Number WAEP Number WAEP
Qutstanding at the beginning of the yrar 13,432 Rs 10,644 - -
Granted during the yeas 6,812 Rs 10644 14,244 Rs 10,644
Forfeited duting the year 664 e 812 -
Exercised during the year = . - i
Expired during the year : 4 = i
Outstanding at the end of the year 19,580 Rs. 10,644 13,432 Rs. 10,644
Excrcisabile at the end of the year 6,319 Rs, 10,644] - -

The weighted averzge cemaining conteactual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is 5.75 years (March 31, 2020 6.39 years).
The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was Rs.1,858 (March 31, 2020; Rs Nil}
The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the years ended Masch 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, respectively:

Particalars March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
VESP VESP
Dividend yield (%) 0 0
Expected volatility (%) 2226 17.22
Risk~free interest tate (%) 583 733
Expected life of shate options (years) 5715 6.39
Model used Black-Scholes| Black-Scholes|

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical voiatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which
mey not necessanily be the actual onteome

An FIR dated February 13, 2021 was filed against five of our employees on allegations of falsifying govement issued identification documents of potential
clinical study volunteer participants. Although the person with respect of whom the document was allegedly falsified was not 8 volunteer in our studies nior was
the Company named as an accused in 1he FIR, we conducted a detailed investigation as per investigation plang dated February 24, 2021, as enhanced vide the
version dated Apil 1, 2021, to re-verify volunteer identification information, confirm traceability of volunteer related information and to reassess systems
critical (o the conduct of studies. While we detected ne evidence of falsification of docurnenis at our Mehsana premises, we instituted a comective and
pieventive action plan (“CAPA™) to improve our systems fuither. Burther, the individual employee who is the prime accused in the FIR has since been
suspended pending final investigations. In (he same context, the CDSCO, by its orders dated August 9, 2021, cited the severity of lapses and the lack of
system in place to avoid incidences of generation of fake identity cards and screening/allotment and suspended the registanons of our Mchsana facility for a
periad of thirty days from the date of receipt of the order, and suspended the registration of our Shivalik and Vedant facilities for a period of seven days from
the date of receipt of the orders (the “Orders”) During the period of suspension, we were debarsed from enro]ling new studies but were allowed to continue the
angoiny studics across all three of aur Fcilities. Operations at all the three Facilities have now been resuned and all the studics have now been rescheduled in

subszquent period.
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